Exh. DL-28
Page 1 of 187

FILED

Depailment of Business and Professional RegLlation
Seniar Deputy Agency Clerk
CLERK Brandon Nichols

Date 71172020
File # 2020-03768

STATE OF FLORIDA
DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION
BOARD OF PILOT COMMISSIONERS
PILOTAGE RATE REVIEW COMMITTEE

IN RE: APPLICATION FOR A CHANGE CASE NO.: PRRC 2018 - 2
IN RATES OF PILOTAGE FOR THE COMBINED

PORT AREA OF JACKSONVILLE AND FERNANDINA

FILED BY THE ST. JOHNS BAR PILOT

ASSOCIATION AND FERNANDINA PILOT, LLC.

FINAL ORDER

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 310.151, Florida Statutes, and Rule 61G14-22,
Flonda Administrative Code, the Pilotage Rate Review Committee (PRRC) met at a duly-
noticed public telephonic meeting on June 26, 2020 to consider matters relating to a Petition for
Hearing in the above-referenced case filed by Crowley Liner Services, Inc., Crowley Puerto Rico
Services, Inc., Crowley Caribbean Services, LLC, and Crowley Latin American Services, LLC
(Crowley).

Committee members present were Robert Benson, Capt. Carolyn Kurtz, and Capt.
Michael Jaccoma. Jordan Cohen, Esq., was present on behalf of Crowley, and George Meros,
Esq., was present on behalf of the St. Johns Bar Pilot Association and Fernandina Pilot, LLC,
(Pilots). Legal advisors to the Board were Donna McNulty, Special Counsel, and Marlene Stern,
Senior Assistant Attorney General.

On April 27, 2020, the PRRC filed a Notice of Intent to Modify the Rates of Pilotage for

the Combined Ports of Jacksonville and Fernandina with the modified rates to take effect on July
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1, 2020, which is attached and is adopted and incorporated by reference as Exhibit 1. By letter
dated May 18, 2020, Crowley requested the PRRC to delay the effective date of the Notice of
Intent to January 1, 2021 due to the impact of COVID-19 on its business. On June 1, 2020,
Crowley filed an administrative petition with the PRRC challenging the Notice of Intent. No
other entities filed a request for hearing or challenged the Notice of Intent by the June 1, 2020
deadline.

On June 25, 2020, Crowley and the Pilots filed a Joint Stipulation to provide a full, final,
and complete settlement of all outstanding disputes between them with respect to this rate
proceeding, which is attached and incorporated by reference as Exhibit 2. Essentially, the Pilots
and Crowley agree to the issuance of a Final Order adopting the Notice of Intent and the
modified pilotage rates set forth therein, with those rates to take effect on January 1, 2021, and
Crowley agrees to withdraw its Petition in conjunction with the issuance of this Final Order. In
addition to other terms in the Joini Stipulation, Crowley also agrees not to further challenge,
appeal, object to, or oppose implementation of the Notice of Intent, the Final Order, or the
modified pilotage rates set forth therein.

Upon consideration of the proposed Joint Stipulation in this matter, review of the
documents in the record, discussion by the Pilots, Crowley, the PRRC, and being otherwise fully

advised in the premises, it is hereby,
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ORDERED that the PRRC approves the Joint Stipulation as an acceptable disposition of
these proceedings, and the modified pilotage rates set forth in the Notice of Intent, will become
effective on January 1, 2021.

This Final Order shall become effective upon filing with the Clerk for the Depariment of

Business and Professional Regulation.

DONE and ORDERED this So day of Ven e , 2020.

ARy I

ROBERT BENSON, CHAIR

PILOTAGE RATE REVIEW

COMMITTEE
CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

| HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the foregoing Order has been
provided by Certified Mail to: George N. Meros, Jr., Holland & Knight LLP, 315 South
Calhoun Street, Suite 600, Tallahassee, Florida 32301; Jordan S. Cohen, Esq.. Wicker Smith
O Hara McCoy & Ford, P.A., 515 E. Las Olas Blvd, Suite 1400, Ft. Lauderdale, FI. 33301; and
inter-office mail to Donna McNulty, Special Coupsel, Administrative L.aw Section, PL-0] The
Capitol, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1050 this l day of ﬁﬂ\y , 2020.

Prandoith Ao
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STATE OF FLORIDA
DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION
BOARD OF PILOT COMMISSIONERS
PILOTAGE RATE REVIEW COMMITTEE

-

IN RE: APPLICATION FOR A
CHANGE IN RATES OF PILOTAGE Case No.: PRRC 2018-2
FOR THE COMBINED PORT AREA
OF JACKSONVILLE AND FERNANDINA
FILED BY THE ST. JOHNS BAR PILOT
ASSOCIATION AND FERNANDINA PILOT, LLC.
/

JOINT STIPULATION

This Joint Stipulation (the “Stipulation™) is made and entered into as of June
25, 2020, by and among Crowley Liner Services, Inc., Crowley Puerto Rico
Services, Inc., Crowley Caribbean Services, LLC, and Crowley Latin America
Services, LLC (collectively referred to herein as “Petitioners”) and St. Johns Bar
Pilot Association and Fernandina Pilot, LLC (collectively referred to herein as
“Applicants™). Petitioners and Applicants may be referred to collectively herein as
the “Parties.”

WHEREAS, Applicants applied to Florida’s Pilotage Rate Review
Committee (“PRRC”) for a change in pilotage rates at the combined ports of
Jacksonville and Fernandina in late 2018, with said application amended in 2019;

and
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WHEREAS, the PRRC conducted a hearing in January 2020 and thereafter
issued a Notice of Intent to Modify the Rates of Pilotage for the Combined Ports of
Jacksonville and Fernandina (the “NOI"), filed on April 27, 2020, with the
modified rates set forth therein to take effect on July 1, 2020; and

WHEREAS, Petitioners filed a letter with the PRRC, dated May 18, 2020,
asking the PRRC to delay the effective date of the NOI and the modified pilotage
rates therein to January 1, 2021 due to the impact of COVID-19 on their business
(the “May 18 Request™); and

WHEREAS, Petitioners filed an administrative petition with the PRRC
challenging the NOI on June 1, 2020 (the “Petition™); and

WHEREAS, the PRRC is scheduled to meet via teleconference on June 26,
2020, for the purpose of considering the May 18 Request and the Petition; and

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to enter into this Stipulation to provide a full,
final and complete settlement of all outstanding disputes between them with
respect to this matter;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and
representations contained herein, and for other good and valuable consideration,

receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereby agree as follows:
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1.  Applicants agree not to oppose Petitioners’ May 18 Request to the
PRRC to delay the effective date of the NOI and the modified pilotage rates set
forth therein until January 1, 2021.

2.  Applicants and Petitioners agree to issuance of a Final Order, as
deemed appropriate by the PRRC, adopting the NOI and the modified pilotage
rates set forth therein, with those rates to take effect on January 1, 2021 (the “Final
Order”).

3.  Petitioners will withdraw the Petition in conjunction with the PRRC’s
issuance of the Final Order.

4.  Petitioners agree not to request or support another stay or delay
requested by any other interested persons or entities of the NOI, the Final Order, or
the modified pilotage rates set forth therein.

5.  Petitioners agree not to assist, encourage, or support any interested
persons or entities in pursuing legal or administrative challenges relating to the
NOI, the Final Order, or the modified pilotage rates set forth therein.

6.  Petitioners agree not to further challenge, appeal, object to, or oppose
implementation of the NOI, the Final Order, or the modified pilotage rates set forth
therein.

7.  This Stipulation extends only to the port areas of Jacksonville and

Fernandina.
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8. This Stipulation will bind Applicants, Petitioners, and any of their

parent entities or affiliated entities with common ownership or control.

9.  Each Party represents and warrants to the other that it has full

authority to execute this Stipulation.

EXECUTED by the Parties this 25th day of June, 2020.

s/ Jordan S. Cohen

Jordan S. Cohen

Florida Bar No. 551872

Brandon J. Hechtman

Florida Bar No. 88652

Wicker Smith O’Hara McCoy &
Ford, P.A.

515 E. Las Olas Blvd., Suite 1400

Ft. Lauderdale, Florida 33301

Telephone: 954-847-4800

jcohen@wickersmith.com

bhechtman@wickersmith.com

Counsel for Crowley Liner Services,
Inc., Crowley Puerto Rico Services, Inc.,
Crowley Caribbean Services, LLC,
Crowley Latin America Services, LLC

s/ George N. Meros, Jr.
George N. Meros, Jr.

Florida Bar No.: 263321

Tara R. Price

Florida Bar No.: 98073

Holland & Knight LLP

315 South Calhoun Street, Suite 600
Tallahassee, Florida 32301
Telephone: 850-425-5622
george.meros@hklaw.com
tara.price@hklaw.com

Attorneys for St. Johns Bar Pilots
Association
and Fernandina Pilot, LLC
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a copy of the foregoing has been served by

electronic mail this 25th day of June, 2020 to the following:

Amanda Ackermann

Executive Director

Anne W, Ahrendt

Government Analyst I

Board of Pilot Commissioners
2601 Blair Stone Road
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0783

Marlene K. Stern

Assistant Attorney General

Donna McNulty

Assistant Attorney General

PL-01 The Capitol

Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1050
marlene.stern@my(loridalegal.com

amanda.ackermann@myfloridalicense.com donna.mcnulty@myfloridalegal.com

anne.ahrendt@myfloridalicense.com

Counsel for Florida Department of
Business and Professional Regulation,
Pilotage Rate Review Committee

s/ Jordan S. Cohen
Jordan S. Cohen
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FILED

Dupestment of Susinem end Prefrmtonal Regutation
Senor Deputy Agency Clerk

CLER  Brandon Nichols

Dato 4/27/2020

Fle #

STATE OF FLORIDA
DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION
BOARD OF PILOT COMMISSIONERS
PILOTAGE RATE REVIEW COMMITTEE

IN RE APPLICATION FOR A CHANGE CASE NO ' PRRC 2018 -2
IN RATES OF PILOTAGE FOR THE COMBINED

PORT AREA OF JACKSONVILLE AND FERNANDINA

FILED BY THE ST JOHNS BAR PILOT

ASSOCIATION AND FERNANDINA PILOT, LLC

/

NOTICE OF INTENT TO MODIFY THE RATES OF PILOTA
FOR THE COMBINED PORT OF JACKSONVILLE AND FERNANDINA

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 310 151, Florida Statutes, and Rule 61G14-22,
Florida Administrative Code, the Pilotage Rate Review Committee (Committee) met at a duly-
noticed public meeting in Jacksonville, Florida on January 22, 2020, to review the rate
modification application filed by the St Johns Bar Pilot Association and Fernandina Pilot, LLC ,
(the Pilots)

Committee members present were Robert Benson, Sherif Assal, Capt Carolyn Kurtz, Capt
Michael Jaccoma, and Ed Russo. Legal advisors to the Board were Donna McNulty, Special
Counsel, and Marlene Stern, Senior Assistant Attorney General

On January 17, 2020, Crowley Liner Services, Inc , Crowley Puerto Rico Services, Inc,
and Crowley Caribbean Services, LLC (Crowley) filed a Motion to Dismiss or Alternatively to
Stay the Rate Review Proceedings (Motion) Essentially, Crowley challenges the notices of
hearings and alternatively asserts the proceedings should be stayed pending appeal of the Port
Everglades rate review case On January 21, 2020, the Pilots filed a Response in Opposition to

Crowley’s Motion contending that the Committee’s notices were proper and in accordance with
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Rule 61G14-22 007(5), Florida Administrative Code, and Section 310.151(3), Florida Statutes,
and that Crowley’s requesting of a stay of the proceedings is meritless Upon review of the
documents submitted, the arguments of Crowlcy and the Pilots, and discussion on the premises,
Crowley's Motion was denied

THE APPLICANT

St Johns Bar Pilot Association and Fernandina Pilot, LLC, (the “Pilots™), is an association
composed of present harbor pilots that is treated as a partnership for tax purposes and which
performs the pilotage services at the combined port area covering the ports of Jacksonville and
Fernandina, Florida The Pilots’ are located at 4910 Ocean Street, Jacksonville, Florida

The purpose of the Pilots is to provide pilotage services at the Ports of Jacksonville and
Fernandina in a safe and efficient manner and in compliance with the provisions of Chapter 310
Florida Statuies, the rules promulgated thereto, and any other provisions of law governing the
provision of pilotage services As such, the Pilots are entitled to charge pilotage rates as provided
in Section 310.151, F S, and, as further provided therein, to seek rate increases by filing an
application with the Committee

The Pilots submitted a revised application for a change in the rate of pilotage for the
combined port area of Jacksonville and Fernandina dated October 1, 2019, replacing the
application submitted September 2018 The last rate increase was January 2004 for the Port of
Jacksonville and was January 2011 for the Port of Fenandina In 2016, the Board of Pilot
Commissioners combined the port areas of Jacksonville and Fernandina In the application, the
Pilots state that they seek the proposed rates to maintain the efficient, reliable, and safe piloting
service that the Ports of Jacksonville and Fernandina currently receive, which Section 310 151,
Florida Statutes, requires The Pilots state that the proposed rates are based upon a vessel’s draft,

gross tonnage, length overall, and breadth overall, similar to the pilotage rate structure being used
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in other major Florida ports, with more tiers The Pilots assert that the ports have significantly
longer pilotage routes than some of the other ports, so the requested rate has two additional tiers
compared to other ports to address the additional transit time. Additionally, the proposed rates
would make the rates for tugs and barges operating as composite units or towing on a hawser the
same in both ports, and proposed rates for shifting are based on the actual mileage between berths
oranchorages Likewise, the proposed charges for detention, delay, standby, or cancellation would
be the same for both ports and are consistent with rates in other ports that have recently received
rate adjustments. The Pilots also propose a $100 port control fee and a $15 training and technology
fee per vessel unit per inbound or outbound transit The Pilots propose several Fenandina-specific
docking and undocking rates. There are other ancillary proposed rates. Further, the Pilots propose
that all rates and fees increase by 2 5% each year for 10 years starting on the anniversary date one
year following the effective date of the order

As provided in Rule 61G14-22 007 the Committee convened its Investigative Committee.
During the Investigative Committee process, the Investigative Committee received no complaints
from users of the port regarding the pilots’ ability to timely respond to the needs of the port or the
quality of their services nor did it receive any opposition to the application by the users of the port
The Investigative Committee further states that it did not receive any information from port
authorities, terminal operators, or other users of the port, regarding the requested increase in rates
of pilotage or whether the requested rates would affect competition with the nearby ports

At the conclusion of the Investigative Committee’s review, a report was prepared,
including attached exhibits, and the findings rendered to the Committee as required by Rule
61G14-22 007

Key assertions of the application and the specific modification requests may be found on
pages 1 through 6 of the report of the Investigative Committee and the application submitted,

which are part of the record
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The Committee has reviewed the application, the Report of the Investigative Committee
with appended exhibits, the various exhibits and documents submitted by the Pilots, any affected
entity, and the public at large, as well as the comments and any supporting exhibits of the following
individuals Richard Law, CPA, Captain Galen Dunton, Capt Nathan Daniel Cook, President of
the St Johns Bar Pilot Association, Captain William Hardee Kavanaugh, Jr (Pilots), Captain
Chnis Mons (Pilots), Captain Joseph James Brown (Pilots), Alan Twaits, Crowley Maritime, and
Terry Thorton, Carnival Cruise Line

In response to the public comments during the January 22, 2020, meeting, the Pilots stated
it prepared the application with the greatest care to comply with all the statutory criteria and stand
by its application as is. The Pilots offered that it would not object if the Committee elected to
delay implementation of the rate increases until July 2020 as to all port users without

discrimination among different port users

THE STATUTORY FACTORS

The Committee is charged with determining the rates of pilotage based upon a list of factors
set forth in Section 310 151(5) which states as follows

(a) In determining whether the requested rate change will result in fair, just, and
reasonable rates, the Committee shall give primary consideration to the public interest in
promoting and maintaining efficient, reliable, and safe piloting services.
(b) The Committee shall also give consideration to the following factors:
1 The public interest in having qualified pilots available to respond promptly
to vessels needing their service
2 A determination of the average net income of pilots in the port, including
the value of all benefits derived from service as a pilot. For the purpose of this
sub-paragraph, “net income of pilots™ refers to total pilotage fees collected in the
port, minus reasonable operating expenses, divided by the number of licensed and
active state pilots within the ports

3 Reasonable operating expenses of pilots.

4 Pilotage rates in other ports

5 The amount of time each pilot spends on a actual piloting duty and the
amount of time spent on other essential support services

6 The prevailing compensation available to individuals in other maritime

services of comparable professional skill and standing as that sought in pilots, it
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being recognized that in order to attract to the profession of piloting, and to hold
the best and most qualified individuals as pilots, the overall compensation
accorded pilots should be equal to or greater than the available to such individuals
in comparable maritime employment
7 The impact rate change may have in individual pilot compensation and
whether such change will lead to a shortage of licensed state pilots, certificated
deputy pilots, or qualified pilot applicants
8 Projected changes in vessel traffic.
9 Cost of retirement and medical plans
10 Physical risks inherent in piloting,
11 Special characteristics, dangers, and risks of the particular port
12 Any other factors the Committee deems relevant in determining a just and
reasonable rate
(c) The Committee may take into consideration the consumer price index or any other
comparable economic indicator when fixing rates of pilotage, however, because the consumer
price index or such other comparable economic indicator is primarily related to net income rather
than rates, the Committee shall not use it as the sole factor in fixing rates of pilotage.’

The Committee finds that the data set forth in the Investigative Committee report fairly
represents the state of shipping activity in the Port as well as accurately describes the operations
of the Port and the activities of the pilots serving the Port The Committee further finds that the
financial data presented both as historical fact and as projections reasonably reflects the present
and future financial state of pilotage charges, and the income derived therefrom, in the Port The
Committee accepts the Investigative Committee’s application of the above-mentioned data to the
various factors set forth in Section 310 151(5) and the conclusions set forth in its reports 2

As to the individual factors listed in Section 310 151(5), Florida Statutes, the

Committee makes the following findings

1 The public interest in having qualified pilots available to respond promptly to

! As the Commuttee opined in 1ts decision on the requested rate decrease for the Port of Miami
(PRRB Case No 96-01 at page 8), it is the Commuttee’s position that its authonty extends to granting a rate
decrease or increase, in whole or 1n part, or to deny the request completely.

2 To the extent that the Commuttee has accepted the findings of the Investigative Commuttee in 1ts
Report, those findings should be read as though set out m full herein including any reference matenal
contained in the appendices thereto

Combined Ports of Jecksonvillo and Fernandina, 2018-2, Page 5 of 14
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vessels needing their service
The Committee accepts and adopts the findings of the Investigative Committee as reflected

on page 7 of the Report of the Investigative Committee.

2 A determination of the average net income of pilots in the port, including the value

| benefits derived fr rvice a ilot For th f this sub- h. “n
income of pilots” refers {o total pilotage fees collected in the port, minus reasonable
operating expenses, divided by the number of licensed and active state pilots within the
ports

The Committee accepts and adopts the findings of the Investigative Committee as reflected

on pages 8 through 10 of the Report of the Investigative Committee

3 Reasonable operating expenses of pilots

The Investigative Committee notes that the operating expenses of the pilots are reasonable
and comparable to other large pilot organizations in Florida, and includes retirement, salaries, fuel
costs, and other expenses in its report

Upon review of the retirement section on page 11, the Committee modifies the third
sentence of the third paragraph as follows “Pilots over 60 years old are less agile, less flexible,
and not as strong as younger pilots ”

The Committee accepts and adopts the findings of the Investigative Committee as reflected
on pages 10 through 12 of the Report of the Investigative Committee with the aforementioned

modification

4. Pilotage rates in other ports
The Committee accepts and adopts the findings of the Investigative Committee as reflected

on pages 13 through 17 of the Report of the Investigative Committee The data in the Report

Combmed Ports of Jacksonville and Fernandina, 2018-2, Page 6 of 14
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indicates that both the existing and requested rates are substantially less those at than the competing

ports.

5 The amount of time each pilot spends on actual piloting duty and the amount of
time spent on other essential support services.

The Committee accepts and adopts the findings of the Investigative Committee as reflected

on pages 17 through 19 of the Report of the Investigative Committee.

6. The prevalllng comgensaglon available to 1nd:v1du§s in other manjlme services of

arabl : landing as that sough 2 recognized

in ordg to attract to ;he professmn of piloting, and to hold the best and most guﬂnﬁed
individuals as pilots, the overall compensation accorded pilots should be equal to or greater
than the available to such individuals in comparable maritime employment.

The Committee accepts and adopts the findings of the Investigative Committee as reflected

on page 20 of the Report of the Investigative Committee with the following comments.

The Committee has consistently established through various previous orders® related to this
and other ports that it accepts the proposition that the pre-pilot career path is the same for persons
who remain as senior bridge officers on American-flagged ships and for those who become pilots

In addition, Section 310.151(5)(b)6, sets the wage rate of *“comparable professions” as the
floor for pilot income not the ceiling As was also noted in the Port Everglades (96-03) and Tampa
(2008-01) Orders, the Committee has accepted that the wage rate of senior masters on American-
flagged ships varies greatly and thus the Committee can find no specific number to use as the only
acceptable “floor” for pilot compensation

The Committee thus uses the range of masters’ salaries as a range of “floors” of pilots’

4 All references to pnor orders of the Commuttee include Orders of the Pilotage Rate Review
Board, the predeccssor rate sctting cntity authorized under Chapter 310 131, Flonda Statutcs

Combined Ports of Jacksonville and Fernandina, 2018-2, Page 7 of 14
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income to be applied depending on the amount of vessel traffic at a port, the physical
characteristics of a port, the associated risks and complexities of handling vessels in a particular
port, and the size of vessels handled The Investigative Committee reports, based on testimony
from previous rates hearings, that from 2014 to 2018 U S pilots eamed an average $410,000 to
$498,000 (testimony of Captain George Quick, Vice President of Master Mates and Pilots), and
that a tabulation of pilot net income for 25 U S. ports averages $500,000 (Dibner Maritime

Associates, LLC, 2017)

qualified pilot applicants.

The Committee accepts and adopts the findings of the Investigative Committee as reflected

on pages 21 and 22 of the Report of the Investigative Committee.
8 Projected changes in vessel traffic
The Committee accepts and adopts the findings of the Investigative Committee as reflected

on page 22 of the Report of the Investigative Committee

9 Cost of retirement and medical plans

The Committee accepts and adopts the findings of the Investigative Committee as reflected

on pages 23 through 26 of the Report of the Investigative Committee.

10 Physical risks inherent in piloting

The Committee accepts and adopts the findings of the Investigative Committee as reflected

Combined Ports of Jacksonville and Fernendna, 2018-2, Page 8 of 14
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on page 26 of the Report of the Investigative Committee The Report of the Investigate Committee
lists many of the inherent risks the profession of piloting carries For example, boarding and
disembarking a vessel is one of the most difficult and dangerous events of piloting. Violent and
sudden thunderstorms, as well as sustained high winds which accompany fronts add to the
difficulty of handling vessels Also, with the Neo-Panamax vessels calling in the port, the need to
board and disembark further offshore exists with Jacksonville looking at areas nearly 10 miles

seaward of the sea buoy

11

The Committee accepts and adopts the findings of the Investigative Committee as reflected
on pages 27 and 28 of the Report of the Investigative Committee

Jacksonville and Fernandina encompass 67 nautical miles of pilotage waters, and both ports
have large tidal and current conditions and are among the strongest in Florida ports Among the
details provided, the Report lists unusual hazards to navigation Such unusual hazards in
Jacksonville include a severe and dangerous set that can occur in the Bar Channels and the jetties,
the less than 6 feet of clearance when cruise vessels pass through the Dames Point Bridge, and the
narrowing of certain channels to 600 feet Some of the unusual hazards in Fernandina include
severe and dangerous cross currents at the jetties and along the Amelia River, and some of the
strongest tidal currents and largest tidal range in Florida Both ports deal with dense seasonal fog,
heavy rain squalls throughout the year with prevalence in the summer months, and strong
Nor’easters prevalent in the fall and winter causing dangerous boarding and disembarking

conditions

Combined Ports of Jacksonville and Fomandma, 2018-2, Page 9 of 14
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12 Any other factors the Committee deems relevant in determining a just and
reasonable rate

The Committee accepts and adopts the findings of the Investigative Committee as reflected

on page 28 of the Report of the Investigative Committee

13.  The Consumer Price Index and Labor Costs.

The Committee accepts and adopts the findings of the Investigative Committee as reflected

on pages 29 and 30 of the Report of the Investigative Committee.

ANALYSIS AND DECISION

The Committee is of the opinion that the rates of pilotage at the Combined Port Area of
Jacksonville and Fernandina should be modified based upon the request for an increase by the St.
John’s Bar Pilot Association and Fernandina Pilot, LLC , the Investigative Committee Report, the
Pilots’ presentation, the statements of any affected entities, and past Committee precedent

In general, the modified rates are necessary to maintain the efficient, reliable, and safe
piloting service that the combined port area of Jacksonville and Fernandina currently enjoy The
proposed rate structure, similar to a version recently used in other major ports in Florida, is based
upon a vessel’s draft, gross tonnage, length overall, and breadth overall The modified rates are
necessary to more equitably distribute the costs of pilotage services at the ports among the various
maritime consumers The Pilots have not had an increase in rates since 2004 for Jacksonville and
since 2011 for Fernandina. The Committee believes that these new rates ensure that the quality of
the pilotage services at the combined port area of Jacksonville and Femandina remain constant,

the costs of the necessary services are more equitably distributed among the shipping community

Combined Ports of Jacksonville and Femandma, 2018-2, Page 10 of 14

PSP000876



Exh. DL-28

Page 19 of 187

and allow the Pilots to maintain an acceptable average income for the essential services they

provide.

The Committee therefore determines that as of July 1, 2020, the rates of pilotage at the

combined port area of Jacksonville and Fernandina shall be modified as follows

1 The formula for calculating pilotage rates shall be
(LOA Rate x LOA) + (Beam Rate x Beam) + (Draft Rate x Draft) + (GT Rate x GT)

LOA =

length overall, Beam = extreme beam, Draft = deepest draft, GT = Gross
tonnage (1969 IMO Conv )

- All linear dimensions shall be in feet and computed in half foot increments, or
fractions thereof
- Gross Tonnage rate is per 1,000 gross tons, or fraction thereof

2 The initia

Vessels of GT Up to 10,001 to 40,000 | Over 40,000 GT Over 40 ft.
10,000 GT GT draft and over
80,000 GT
LOA Rate $0 75 $100 $125 £1.50
Beam Rate $375 $5.00 $8 50 $1200
Draft Rate $22 50 $2500 $30 00 $40 00
GRT Rate $12 50 $1500 $22 50 $27 50

Minimum pilotage charge of $880 is based on minimums of LOA =300 ft, Beam = 50
ft, Draft = 18 ft., GT= 5,000

3 The pilotage rate for a barge-towed on a hawser, towed alongside or pushed (not a

. Draft. and GT attributes of the

mposite

win

it)yisb
nd s).

on the sum of the LOA, B

4 The pilotage rate for a tug pushing a barge in the notch as a composite unit is based on
the barge’s LOA, Beam, GT, and deepest Draft of the combined unit

essels between bert

andward of thg COLREGS line,
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(Fuller Warren Bridge to Shands Bridge),
in or out of Green Cove Springs, FL

Zone A V4 Standard Pilotage ($450 minimum)
(up to 1 mile)
Zone B Y, Standard Pilotage (3600 minimum)
(over 1 mile and up to 4 miles)
Zone C % Standard Pilotage ($750 minimum)
(over 4 miles and up to 8 miles)
Zone D Standard Pilotage Rate,
(over 8 miles) regular LOA, Beam, Draft, and GT rates
apply
Zone E Standard Pilotage Rate

6 Detention, Delay, Standby. or Cancellation of pilot not caused by local weather, medical
emergency, or for jeure
Detention of Pilot $150 per half hour or fraction thereof after first
half hour, no maximum
Delayed arrival or sailing $150 per half hour or fraction thereof after first

half hour, no maximum

Standby charge when pilot is on the
bridge part of the bridge team as in,
but not limited to, holding a vessel
in stream, tending a vessel at
anchor, making up a tow or
breaking a tow

$150 per half hour or fraction thereof, no
maximum

Cancellation of pilot

If cancelled, detention rate of $150 per half hour
will be charged from the pilot call out, (2 hours
before the ordered arrival time or 1 5 hours
before the ordered sailing time), until notice of
cancellation is received by the pilot dispatched
to the vessel or by the pilot office

7 Additional fees shall be:

a) Port Control Fee: $100 per vessel handle per inbound or outbound transit,

b) Training and Technology Fee $15 per vessel handle per inbound or outbound

transit,

Combined Ports of Jacksonville and Fernanding, 2018-2, Page 12 of 14
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c) In Fernandina a docking and undocking rate based on a vessel's LOA.
- LOA less than 330 ft. = No Charge
- LOA 330 ft. to less than 550 ft. = $0.50 per ft. LOA
- LOA 550 ft. and over = $0.75 per ft. LOA;

d) At the discretion of the pilots covering the ports of Fernandina and Jacksonville,
an additional pilot may be assigned to any neo-panamax vessel, dead ship tow, or
special circumstance vessel. The commensurate result being that said vesse! will
be charged two standard pilotage fees;

e) Pilot kept on board vessel when vessel departs the port area = $250 per day plus
First-class return transportation;

f) Payment is due upon invoicing. Balances beyond 45 days shall be considered in-
arrcars. Lines and agencies in arrears may be placed on a cash basis for future
departures; and

g) All rates and fees shall increase by 2.5% each year for 10 years starting on the
anniversary date one year following the date the rates become effective.

DONE and ORDERED this Z-0 _dayof A7 L 2020,

/44;(7* o

ROBERT BENSON, CHAIR
PILOTAGE RATE REVIEW
COMMITTEE

E G RIG
This Order will become final agency action if no request for a hearing is received by the
Pilotage Rate Review Committee (PRRC) by any person whose substantial interests will be
affected by this action within twenty-one days after receipt or publication of this notice, or by close
of business on June 1, 2020, whichever is later. A person whose substantial interests will be
affected may petition the PRRC for a hearing involving disputed issues of material fact before an
administrative law judge pursuant to Section 120.57(1), Florida Statutes, by filing an appropriate
petition with the Executive Director of the PRRC at the Department of Business and Professional

Regulation, P.O. Box 5377, Tallahassee, Florida 32314-5377.

Combined Ports of Jacksonvitle sad Fermandine, 2018-2, Page 13 of 14
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A petition for a heanng involving disputed 1ssues of material fact must contamn information
required by Rule 28-106 201, Florida Admimstrative Code, including a statement of all disputed
issues of material fact. The PRRC may refer a petition to the Division of Administrative Hearings
for assignment of an administrative law judge only if the petition is in substantial comphiance with
Rule 28-106 201, Flonda Administrative Code

In the absence of such a petition or 1if the PRRC concludes that the petitioner has not raised
a disputed 1ssuc of material fact and docs not designate the petition for hearing, this Order shall
become final agency action for purposes of Section 120 68, Florida Statutes

In accordance with Section 120 573, Florida Statutes, mediation 1s not available

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a truc and correct copy of the foregoing Order has been
provided by Certified Mail to George N. Meros, Jr., Holland & Knight LLP. 315 South Calhoun
Street, Suite 600, Tallahassee, Flonda 32301, and inter-office mail to Donna McNulty, Special
Counse, t Administrative Law Scctmn. PL-01 The Capitol. Tallahassee, Flonda 32399-1050 this

day of pr‘ ) .2020

U.5 Postal Service
CERTIFIED MAIL RECEIPT

{rala Y @7 %

7019 LbL40 0001 8500 7937

o WA NG PO B NG
Ol 24
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January 9, 2020

Ms. Amanda Ackerman, Executive Director
Pilotage Rate Review Committee

Department of Business and Professional Regulation
P.O. Box 5377

Tallahassee, Florida 32314-5377

RE:  Application for Change of Rates of Pilotage at Ports of Jacksonville and Fernandina by:
St. Johns Bar Pilot Association and Femandina Pilot, LLC

Dear Ms. Ackerman:
We have completed our review and investigation of the above referenced application dated

October 1, 2019 and hercby present our findings to the Pilotage Review Committee, as required
by Florida Administrative Code Rule 61G14-22.007(4).

/gd/ ,ﬂﬂ}fz’;’:

Cdr. Galen Dunton, U.S.C.G. Retired, Contract Consultant
Department of Business and Professional Regulation

Za_i,{(jﬁr

Richard H. Law, CP%, Contract Consultant
Department of Business and Professional Regulation

IC Repori Page 1
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REPORT OF THE INVESTIGATIVE COMMITTEE
DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION
PILOTAGE RATE REVIEW COMMITTEE
APPLICATION FOR CHANGE OF RATES OF PILOTAGE
AT PORTS OF JACKSONVILLE AND FERNANDINA
BY ST. JOHNS BAR PILOT ASSOCIATION AND
FERNANDINA PILOT, LLC

The following report and attached materials were considercd by the investigative committee and
are forwarded to the Pilotage Rate Review Committee for its action. This report will follow the
following format:

Pages
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 1
CERTIFICATION OF INFORMATION PRESENTED IN APPLICATION 6
ANALYSIS OF DATA FOR REQUEST FOR CHANGE OF RATES 7
EXHIBITS
1. Detailed Explanation of Requested Rates 31
2. Pilotage Revenue by Tonnage Layers — Present and Requested 32
3. Pilotage Fees for Selected Vessels 33
4. Number of Handles and Fees Paid by Customer 34
5. Pilot Compensation 35
6. List of Active and Retired Pilots 36
7. Consumer Price Index Tables 37
IC Report Page 2
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REPORT OF THE INVESTIGATIVE COMMITTEE
DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION
PILOTAGE RATE REVIEW COMMITTEE
APPLICATION FOR CHANGE OF RATES OF PILOTAGE
AT PORTS OF JACKSONVILLE AND FERNANDINA
BY ST. JOHNS BAR PILOT ASSOCIATION AND
FERNANDINA PILOT, LLC

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

General Comments
Port of Jacksonville

The Port of Jacksonville is the second largest and one of the most difficult ports in terms of piloting
in Florida. Excluding the 25.7 mile stretch from downtown Jacksonville to Green Cove Springs
(@ rare transit for pilots) the primary length of the port from sea buoy to downtown is 28 nautical
miles. The average handle time is the second longest in Florida, at 4.5 to 5.0 hours, compared to
the longest in Tampa at 7.5 hours.

The St. Johns River poses significant challenges to the pilots with strong currents, crosscurrents,
turns, and bridges. Some channels within the port narrow to 300 feet and the channel to Green
Cove Springs is only 200 feet wide. Seas at the sea buoy can be some of the roughest along
Florida’s cast coast, making pilot embarking and disembarking particularly dangerous.

Port of Fernandina

The Port of Femandina is one of Florida’s oldest ports. The distance from the sea buoy to the Port
is ] 1.8 nautical miles. The Port is not as difficult as Jacksonville but cross currents at the entrance
channel and at the Amelia River can be severe and dangerous. Although it can serve vessels with
34-foot draft, the port has not developed the infrastructure, nor does the area generate the volume
of business to compare to the traffic in the ports of Jacksonville, Miami or Tampa. The primary
customers consist of break bulk (paper and lumber) vessels and small to medium sized container
vessels. The majority of vessels have tonnage ranging from 5,000 to 20,000 GRT and lengths of
less than 500 feet.

The port had been served primarily by a single pilot for decades, with intermittent backup from a
Jacksonville cross-licensed pilot. In 2016, the pilot organizations for the ports of Fernandina and
Jacksonville were combined and currently there are four Jacksonville pilots that are cross-licensed
in Fernandina.

The pilots have performed safe and reliable services in both ports for many yeats. We have
received no complaints from users of the port regarding their ability to timely respond to the needs

of the port or the quality of their services. We also received no opposition to the application by
users of the port.

IC Raport Page 3
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REPORT OF THE INVESTIGATIVE COMMITTEE
DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION
PILOTAGE RATE REVIEW COMMITTEE
APPLICATION FOR CHANGE OF RATES OF PILOTAGE
AT PORTS OF JACKSONVILLE AND FERNANDINA
BY ST. JOHNS BAR PILOT ASSOCIATION AND

Rate History
Port of Jacksonville

FERNANDINA PILOT, LLC

The last three rate increases raised the rates by 5% in October 1993, by 6% in May 1997, and a
three-phase increase approved in a 2001 rate application that increased rates by 6% in January
2002, 6% in January 2003, and 6% in January 2004.

An application requesting three consecutive annual rate increases of approximately 8.0%, 7.85%,
and 7.35%, respectively; which, when compounded, would have increased rates 25% by the third
year was made on September 8, 2008 but the rate application was denied by the Rate Review Board

(Committee).

Port of Fernandina

The last rate increase in Fernandina was effective January 1, 2011, which increased draft and

tonnage by 10%.

Current Rates — Both Ports

Date of last change
Draft

Tonnage

Minimum Draft/Tonnage
Detention of Pilot
Cancelled sailing
Pilots Kept on Board
Failure to Amend ETA
Standby of Pilot
Towing

Shifting within zone
Shifting zone to zone

Jacksonville
1/1/2004

$21.20
$.0464
15°/3,000 GRT
$200/hour ($400 max)
$200
$250/day + transportation
$200/hour (8400 max)
$200/hour (no max)
Full fee
Ya full fee
Full fee

Fernandina
1/1/2011

$25.35
$.0575
15°/3,000 GRT
$250/hour ($500 max)
% full fee
$250/day + transportation
N/A
$250/hour (no max)

N/A
$250
N/A

IC Report Page 4
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REPORT OF THE INVESTIGATIVE COMMITTEE
DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION
PILOTAGE RATE REVIEW COMMITTEE
APPLICATION FOR CHANGE OF RATES OF PILOTAGE
AT PORTS OF JACKSONVILLE AND FERNANDINA
BY ST. JOHNS BAR PILOT ASSOCIATION AND
FERNANDINA PILOT, LLC

te Analysis
The following schedule presents the effect of the requested rates for a small (minimum size) vessel

in both ports (The draft and tonnage (GRT) are authorized minimums and the length (LOA) and
beam are an estimated example):

Current Small Vessel 15°, Draft 3,000 GRT, LOA 300°, Beam 50’ Requested

Jacksonville Fernandina
Draft $ 318.00 $ 380.25 $ 405.00
GRT 139.20 171,00 62.50
LOA N/A N/A 225.00
Beam N/A N/A 187.50
Total $_457.20 $ 53125 §_880.00

Fixed Charges $ 115.00
Total Pilotage Fee 3_995.00

Percentage increase for Jacksonville: 117.7%; Fernandina: 80.6%

Current Large Vessel 35°, Draft 60,000 GRT. LOA 700°, Beam 100’ equested

Jacksonville Femandina
Draft $§ 742.00 § 88725 $ 1,050.00
GRT 2,784.00 3.420.00 1,350.00
LOA N/A N/A 875.00
Beam N/A N/A 850.00
Total $3.526.00 $4.30725 $£4125.00

Fixed Charges § 115.00

Totsl Pilotage Fee $4,240,00
Pcrcentage increase for Jacksonville: 20.2%; Fernandina: <1.5%>

Exhibit 2 presents the entire handle list in various layers of tonnage so the Rate Review Committee
can evaluate the effect of the requested rates on different sized vessels. The smallest vessels would
see increases of 118% per handle and the pilotage fee for the largest vessels would increase only
5.6%. Whereas the overall increase in pilotage fees using the requested rates is 26%, the loss of
126 large vessel handles in 2020 only increased the total revenue by 16%.

The requested fixed changes per handle for port control ($100) and training and technology ($15),
would produce $440,000 assuming handles of 3,826,

3 IC Report Page 5
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REPORT OF THE INVESTIGATIVE COMMITTEE
DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION
PILOTAGE RATE REVIEW COMMITTEE
APPLICATION FOR CHANGE OF RATES OF PILOTAGE
AT PORTS OF JACKSONVILLE AND FERNANDINA
BY ST. JOHNS BAR PILOT ASSOCIATION AND
FERNANDINA PILOT, LLC

Projected T c and Revenue

Jacksonville Port Authority (JPA) accounted for 2800 of the 3700 handles in 2019. Doug Menefee,
Director of Port Operations for JPA stated that traffic is expected to remain ievel for 2020 and the
foreseeable future. However, the pilots informed us that one cargo operator (CMA) relocated 100
handles to Tampa in May of 2019, which reduced pilotage revenue by $280,000 in 2019 and
$475,000 in 2020. Another operator (MOL) reduced handles for a large cargo vessel by 26
handles, or reducing revenue by $120,000 in 2020.

Menefee stated JPA is working on bringing new cargo business from Europe, Asia, and the
Caribbean, potentially increasing handles by 52, but no firm commitments have been made. JPA
recently signed an eight year contract with Camival Cruise Lines which accourited for 87 handles
in 2018. The requested rate would increase the pilotage fee on the Carnival Elation from $3,900
to § 4,600.

Comparabie Rates

The nearby ports of Savannah, Brunswick and Charleston all have substantially higher pilotage
rates than the current rates in Jacksonville. Fernandina, which accounts for iess than 5% of total
traffic in the two ports, also has pilotage rates less than the three competing ports.

If the requested rates are approved, the Jacksonville and Fernandina rates will remain twelve to
twenty-five percent less than the three competing ports. Page 10, section 8 of the pilots’
application presents detailed information on comparative pilotage fees and percentage variances
with Jacksonville. Section 4 of the Investigative Committee report presents additional tables and
analysis of comparable rates. The Investigative Committee has not received any information
(positive or negative) from port authorities, terminal operators or other users of the port, regarding
the pilots” request to increase rates of pilotage and how if any, the requested ratc may affect
competition among the nearby ports.

Pilot Net Income

The pilots’ application presents average net income per pilot for 2018 at $398,000. The
Investigative Committee identified additional fringe benefits and other expenses not related to the
direct operation of the pilots’ business which increased net income, including all benefits by
$34,500 per pilot which increased net income per pilot to $432,500.

The requested rate increase is projected to increase net income per pilot in 2020, assuming the rate
increase was effective January 1, 2020 to $518,700. These two, average net mcomes for 2018 and

IC Report Page 6
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REPORT OF THE INVESTIGATIVE COMMITTEE
DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION
PILOTAGE RATE REVIEW COMMITTEE
APPLICATION FOR CHANGE OF RATES OF PILOTAGE
AT PORTS OF JACKSONVILLE AND FERNANDINA
BY ST. JOHNS BAR PILOT ASSOCIATION AND
FERNANDINA PILOT, LLC

estimated for 2020 do not include the value of unfunded pension benefits, which the Investigative
Committece estimates at $45,000 per pilot.

Estimating future net income is not an exact accounting exercise. There are significant variables
which can materially affect such estimates, the most significant of which are the size, mix and
number of handles that call on the ports; and whether or not the 14 existing pilots are an optimal
number of pilots for the two ports.

The Pilotage Rate Review Committee does not set pilot net income but rather, must set rates that
are fair, just, and reasonable in order to maintain efficient, reliable, and safe piloting services.

Requested Rate — Both Ports

Page 2 of the pilots’ application presents a detailed explanation of the requested rates. We have
attached this page as Exhibit 1. The requested rates follow the model rate structure recently
approved in Miami and Port Everglades, with variations based on tonnage.

In addition, to the basic rate structure and ancillary charges for shifting, anchoring, detention,
delay, standby, and cancellation, the pilots request a port control fee of $100 per handle and a
training and technology fee of $15 per handle, which is estimated to produce $440,000 in
additional pilotage revenue.

5 |C Report Page 7
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REPORT OF THE INVESTIGATIVE COMMITTEE
DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION
PILOTAGE RATE REVIEW COMMITTEE
APPLICATION FOR CHANGE OF RATES OF PILOTAGE
AT PORTS OF JACKSONVILLE AND FERNANDINA
BY ST. JOHNS BAR PILOT ASSOCIATION AND
FERNANDINA PILOT, LLC

CERTIFICATION OF INFORMATION PRESENTED IN APPLICATION

This section of the investigative report is intended to identify any errors noted in the examination
of the application submitted by the pilots. The following errors were noted:

The projected 2020 financial information was made with the assumption that a new pilot boat
would cost $1.25 million and would be financed 100 percent at 6% interest. The pilots’ application
stated correctly that estimates for the new pilot boat were $2.6 to $2.8 million. Therefore, the
projecied net income and related average net income per pilot is overstated by approximately
$5,000.

IC Report Page 8
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REPORT OF THE INVESTIGATIVE COMMITTEE
DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION
PILOTAGE RATE REVIEW COMMITTEE
APPLICATION FOR CHANGE OF RATES OF PILOTAGE
AT PORTS OF JACKSONVILLE AND FERNANDINA
BY ST. JOHNS BAR PILOT ASSOCIATION AND
FERNANDINA PILOT, LLC

ANALYSIS OF DATA FOR REQUEST FOR CHANGE OF RATES [CHAPTER
310.151(5) FL. STATUTES]:

The bold type represents the items listed in the above rule. The standard typc is information or
comments by the investigative committee.

In determining whether the requested rate change will result in fair, just, and reasonable
rates, the Board shall give primary considerations to the public interest in promoting and
maintaining efficient, reliable, and safe plloting services,

The Board shall also give consideration to the following factors:

1. The public interest in having qualified pilots available to respond promptly to
vessels needing their service.

The pilots are essential to the safe movement of vessels within the pilotage waters of the
State. In addition to their navigation and supervisory skills, they must be knowledgeable
of local weather, hazards, silting, speed and direction of currents, and timing and direction
of tidal movements. They provide development of safety and operational guidelines for
the port operation and participate in the process of developing port and professional
regulations. They also provide cxtensive training to deputy pilots.

The pilots serve multiple public interests:

© Protection of life and property

® Protection of the environment and the economic base that is dependent upon it

® Providing a sense of security that the entire scope of responsibility is assumed
only by the best qualified pilot available.

No interested parties (other than pilots) attended the Investigative Committee hearing on
December 4, 2019, and we received no feedback on pilot services in the two ports.
Otherwise, we received no complaints from the two Port Authorities, or other interested
parties regarding the level of service, qualifications and skills of pilots or their ability to
respond promptly to vessels needing their services.

IC Report Page 9
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REPORT OF THE INVESTIGATIVE COMMITTEE
DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION
PILOTAGE RATE REVIEW COMMITTEE
APPLICATION FOR CHANGE OF RATES OF PILOTAGE
AT PORTS OF JACKSONVILLE AND FERNANDINA
BY ST. JOHNS BAR PILOT ASSOCIATION AND
FERNANDINA PILOT, LLC

2. A determination of the average net income of pilots in the port, including the value of
all benefits derived from service as a pilot. For the purpose of the subparagraph, “net
income of pilots” refers to total pilotage fees collected in the port, minus reasonable
operating expenses, divided by the number of licensed and active state pilots within
the ports.

The application included consolidated, audited financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2017, consolidated, compiled financial statements for 2018; and
consolidated, compiled projected financial statements for 2019 and 2020, assuming the
requested rates were in effect on January 1, 2020. The consolidated financial statements
combine the pilotage revenues and related expenses for both ports.

These financial statements are the basis from which average net income (actual and
projected with the requested rates) per pilot is determined and presented in the pilots’
application.

The 2020 projected pilotage revenues applying the requested rates is the most significant
factor in the determination of 2020 average net income. The 2020 projected expenses,
while significant in total are easier to compare and analyze with historical 2017, 2018 and
2019 amounts. In order to corroborate the 2020 projected revenues, we requested a list of
all vessels and related LOA, beam, tonnage, and draft for 2017-2018 fiscal year (same
period used by the pilots for their projections) and recalculated the historical revenue using
existing rates and recalculated the projected 2020 revenue using the requested rate
structure. Our recalculated amounts substantially agreed to the 2018 and 2020 amounts
presented by the pilots.

The following analysis of average net income per pilot for the indicated years, begins with
the consolidated net income and adds certain fringe benefits, additional compensation and
discretionary costs (not related to the essential operations of the piloting business), such as
lobbying, political contributions and charitabie contributions.

IC Report Page 10
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REPORT OF THE INVESTIGATIVE COMMITTEE
DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION
PILOTAGE RATE REVIEW COMMITTEE
APPLICATION FOR CHANGE OF RATES OF PILOTAGE
AT PORTS OF JACKSONVILLE AND FERNANDINA
BY ST. JOHNS BAR PILOT ASSOCIATION AND
FERNANDINA PILOT, LLC

vera et Inco. Pilot
Actual Projected with Rate
2018 2020
Cousolidated Net Income § 5,570,000 $ 6,848,000
Investigative Committee Adjustments
Standby Labor S 55,000 s 55,000
Health Insurance 308,000 322,000
Contributions 122,000 120,000
Pilot Boat Correction* 0 <83,000>
Total Adjustments § 485,000 $ 414,000
Adjusted Net Income 6,055,000 7,262,000
Number of Pilots 14 14
Average Net Income per
Pilot . 432,500 518,700
Estimated value of
Unfunded Pension 45,000 45,000
Total Net Income Per
Pilot s 477,500 $ 563,700

*Pilot Boat Correction: The cost of the new pilot boat and related interest

expense was incorrectly projected at approximately one half of the estimated
cost (82.6 million vs. $1.25 million).

By comparison, 2007 average pilot net income, including fringe benefits {excluding the
unfunded pension) was $375,000, which is approximately $57,500 less than their 2018
average net income (excluding pension).

The pilots request a 2.5% annual increase in all rates and fees (including the port control

fee - $100 and the training and technology fee - $15) for ten years following the effective
date of a rate increase.

IC Report Page 11

PSP000891



Exh. DL-28
Page 34 of 187

REPORT OF THE INVESTIGATIVE COMMITTEE
DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION
PILOTAGE RATE REVIEW COMMITTEE
APPLICATION FOR CHANGE OF RATES OF PILOTAGE
AT PORTS OF JACKSONVILLE AND FERNANDINA
BY ST. JOHNS BAR PILOT ASSOCIATION AND
FERNANDINA PILOT, LLC

If the port traffic, including the size and mix of vessels remained the same as 2018 (the
basis on which the 2020 projected statement of income was compiled), revenues for the
years 2021 through 2030 would be increased as follows by applying the 2.5% annual
increase:

Year Projected Revenue
2020 (Base) $ 11,450,000
2021 $ 11,736,000
2022 $ 12,030,000
2023 $ 12,331,000
2024 $ 12,639,000
2025 $ 12,955,000
2026 $ 13,279,000 B
2027 s 13,611,000
2028 $ 13,951,000
2029 $ 14,300,000
2030 $ 14,657,000

Assuming operating expenses continue to approximate 42% of total revenue, net income
would approximate 58% of revenue. As such, estimated 2030 net income would be
$8,501,000 or $607,218 average per pilot (excluding fringe benefits and the unfunded
pension). Retirees who earned a 50% share of active pilot income would increase to over
$300,000.

Reasonable Operating Expenses of Pilots.

Operating expenses of the pilots are fairly reasonable and comparable to other large pilot
organizations in Florida. The pilots have an inherent motivation to operate in a cost
effective and efficient manner in order to maximize net income per pilot. Given that
Jacksonville has not had a rate increase since 2004 and Fernandina since 2011, they have
not been subjected to scrutiny of their operating costs by anyone, other than themselves.
Therefore, there is a strong presumption that operating expenses are closely scrutinized and
reasonable from the pilots® perspective.

Retirement

The unfunded retirement is the single largest expense for the pilots. In 2018, $1.11 million,
representing 27% of total operating expenses was paid to six retirees, averaging $185,000
per retiree,

i IC Report Page 12
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REPORT OF THE INVESTIGATIVE COMMITTEE
DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION
PILOTAGE RATE REVIEW COMMITTEE
APPLICATION FOR CHANGE OF RATES OF PILOTAGE
AT PORTS OF JACKSONVILLE AND FERNANDINA
BY ST. JOHNS BAR PILOT ASSOCIATION AND
FERNANDINA PILOT, LLC

The projected retirement expense for 2020 is estimated at $1.57 million, or $241 ,000 each
for five of the retirces who have carned a 50% pilot share and $140,000 and $227,000,
respectively for two retirees with less than 50% shares.

Since retirement expense is based upon the active pilots’ current income, the requested rate
increase will have a substantial effect on the total cost of retirement,

Although retirement cost may seem high and a generous benefit to retirees, it has good
business merits. It encourages older pilots to retire before they become more susceptible
to injury. Pilots over 60 years old are less agile, more flexible, and stronger than younger
pilots. Most pilots do not attain a state pilot position until their thirties, or later, which
limits their productive, high income years. Injuries occur even to younger pilots with the
possibility of cutting a promising carcer short. For these reasons, these pension plans are
common to most of the pilot organizations in the larger ports (that can afford them) around
the U.S. Unfortunately for the pilots in smaller ports in Florida (Pensacola, Panama City,
and Ft. Pierce) these plans simply are not affordable.

aries
Total salaries for employees, other than pilots and retirees were $884,000 in 2018,

representing 21% of total operating expense. Staff salaries for various positions during
2018 are presented below;

Pasition i of Pogitions 2018 Av e
Office Manager 1 $105,000
Boatman 4 $ 75,500
Dispatchers 4 $ 64,750
Accountant ] $ 73,300
Maintenance 1 $ 90,400

Salaries for employees was projected to increase modestly at 2.1% in 2019 and 2020.

Fuel Cost

The pilots project fuel costs to increase 30% from 2018 ($169,000) to 2020 ($219,000)
primarily for two recasons:

1) New low-sulphur requirements in 2020 are expected to increase diesel prices by
20%.

. IC Report Page 13
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REPORT OF THE INVESTIGATIVE COMMITTEE
DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION
PILOTAGE RATE REVIEW COMMITTEE
APPLICATION FOR CHANGE OF RATES OF PILOTAGE
AT PORTS OF JACKSONVILLE AND FERNANDINA
BY ST. JOHNS BAR PILOT ASSOCIATION AND
FERNANDINA PILOT, LLC

2) Longer transit times and distance for vessels with drafis over 40 feet will increase
fuel costs. A second sea buoy will be located 9-10 miles further offshore which
will require more fuel, maintenance, and manpower. The dredging project to
accommodate the neo-panamax vessela will not be completed until 2021 or later,
so projecting the additional fuel cost in 2020 for this reason is premature. However,
the projected cost will likely be realized in the next few years and given the
frequency of pilotage rate hearings, the effect on the cost of operations and net pilot
income is relevant at this time.

Sample mid-year diese! prices in 2017, 2018 and 2019 were as follows:

Price Per Gallon

2017 $1.6392

2018 $2.3750

2019 $2.0516
Other Expenses

The following expense categories are projected to decrease significantly from 2018 to
2020.

2018 2020
1) Deputy Compensation $140,000 $0
2) Legal and Professional Fees $325,000 $ 59,000

Explanations

1) The deputy in 2018 became a state pilot in mid-2019 and will not receive wages
in 2020, as he will receive a pilot share of net income. One pilot retired in
February 2019, leaving the same number of state pilots (14) for 2019 and 2020.

2) Legal and Professional was high in 2018 for costs associated with the rate
application, such as producing audited and compiled financial statements.
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FS310.151(S)(b)4. Pilotage Rates in other ports.

The Jacksonville Ber Pilots Association used the ports of Charleston, Savannah, Brunswick and
Mobile as comparative rates based on the type of vessels handled in each port and ports that
directly compete with Jacksonville and Femandina for business. There are a number of minor
differences in the data presented on our Tables 1, 2, and 3 versus the information presented in the
pilots’ application. For instance, we verified the actual vessel characteristics with the Coast
Guard's Port Safety Interchange database (very minor differences); we verified the 2019 pilotage
rates with the various ports (except Brunswick which did not respond); and we calculated tonnage
rates by rounding to the nearest 1,000 tons for the four ports, and used no rounding of tonnage for
Jacksonville, as they requested.

Although Tables 1, 2, and 3 present minor differences with the pilots’ data on the four competing
ports, our tables and the pilots’ data present information indicating that both the existing and
requested rates are substantially less than the competing ports.

The below table is a sample cross section of the types of vessels calling for comparison:

Table 1 - Vessel statistics for comparison

Vessel Type LOA(ft) | Beam(ft Daaft (f) GRT
Midnight Czar
Ex: EOT Spar Container 300 55 18 2762
Stenaweco Excellence | Tanker 601 106 32 29429
Bontrop Amsterdam
Ex; W. H. Blount Bulker 736 105 30 35904
Goodwood Car Camier 653 106 28 59516
Camival Ecstasy Cruige 855 103 26.5 70526
MOL Marvel Contasner 991 142 38 78316
MSC Beatrice Contaner 1201 168 44 151559

Data verified thru PSTX database.

The following rates are in effect at the various ports used in comparison as follows:

Tabie 2 - Rate comparison between compelitive ports (Rates in dollars)

Port Rate/ | Min Rate Min | Fuel | Safety/ | Pilot | Cap | Dock/ | Safety | Docking
draft | Draft { GRT GRT Comm | Boat | Inv undock | % Pilot

52-

Charleston 2685 | 16 | 0.06585 | N/A | 85

Savannah 2754 | 15 | 0.06606 | N/A 71.54

Brunswick* 2624 | 20ft | 0.06189 | 8000 175 225 536.98

Mobile 38.00 | 151 0.06250 | 6500 | 5% 10.00 100 45+ 150 1.5%
fee 50 fee

Jax (Present) 21.20 | 15 f 0.0464 3000

*Attempted numerous times to verify with Brunswick Pilot Association fees.
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The following table uses the above vessels and the calculated pilotage fees assessed in the comparison ports for a
one-way voyage.

Table 3 - Comparison costs of sample vessels in competing ports, one waz voyage

Vessel Jax present | Jax Proposed Brunswick Savannah Mobile
Midnight
Caar 8 50976 |$ 101375 |$ 195690 [$ 136564* |8 1,300.00* |§S 1,539.19
Stenaweco
Excellence $ 204391 (S 248744 ($ 363336 |5 293462 [$ 288670 |$ 3.669.99
Bontrop

Amsterdam $ 230195|8 266456 |5 395222 |$ 327590 [S 322810 |$ 3,98843

Goodwood § 335514 |5 401136 (8 5385.10 |§ 480626 |$ 475480 |$ 5504.99
‘E:::'iv;! $§ 3834218 444109 |8 602653 [§ 549161 |S 543888 8§ 6,176.47
n:)rtel $ 443946 (8§ 546286 |S 682341 [$ 633680 [$ 627445 [$ 7,17437
LB‘:lctn'cc $ 796514 (S 986037 |$ 11499.82 |$ 1132442 [§ 1124260 |§ 12.276.26

*Minimum fee for both Savannah and Charleston which is more than the proposed minimum fee in Jacksonville,

Using the pilotage fee for a medmum, 36,000 ton vessel, Bontrop Amsterdam, compared to the handle distances in
each competing port, the pilotage fee per mik: 1s presented below:

Fee for Bontrop
Distance in Miles Amsterdam Fee per Mile
Jacksonville® 17.5 $2.302 $132
Jacksonville Proposal® 175 $2,665 $152
Charleston 16.0 $3,228 $202
Savannah 21.0 $3,276 $156
Mobile 31.0 $3,088 5120
Brunswick 9.0 $3,952 $439
* Jacksonville range of distances: 13 to 22 miles, excluding Green Cove and the 10 mile sea buoy extension for Nen-Panamax

vessels. Aversge 17.5
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The following table compares the number of handles vs revenue from their last increase in 2004 Though they applied
for another increase 1n 2008, it was denied m 2009. In 2008 they had 12 active pilots vs in 2018 they now have 14
active pilots.

Table 4 - Jacksonville Revenue vs Handles 2004- Sept. 2019

Year Handles Revenue Revenue per Handle
2004 4,083 $ 6,505,295.11 [ 1593
2005 3,775 $ 6,738,690.98 $ 1785
2006 4,313 $ 7,867,337.69 5 1824
2007 4.169 $ 7616484 61 $ 1827
2008 4,246 $ 7,875,363.64 $ 1855
2009 3,940 § 7.941,524.14 3 2015
2010 4,237 § 9,225935.54 $ 2177
2011 4,110 $ 9,178,181.01 $ 2233
2012 4,065 $ 9,135,333 81 $ 2247
2013 4,115 § 80928701.55 s 2176
2014 4,164 $ 9,442,987.09 $ 2268
2015 3,994 $ 9,953,565.56 s 2492
2016 3913 $ 9.947,975.64 b 2542
2017 3,734 $ 9,897,137.99 b3 2650
2018 3,685 $ 9,791,185 23 $ 2657
2019 2857 | § 7,625986.63* $ 2669

Data taken from Board Office records. #2019 data thru 9/2019
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The table below 15 the calculated pilotage fees for one-way veyage for standard large and small vessels in the all the
Florida ports for companson purposes.

Table 5 - Pilotage Rates - 2018 data

Florida Port $/Foot | Rate/Feet | Rate/GRT | Min ORT | Small Vsl | Large Vsl | Effect Date
Fernanding 25.35 15 0.057 3000 627 1829 01/01/2011
Port Canaveral 12,50 12 0.028 2500 295 900 10/01/1981
Fort Pierce 26.60 10 0 060 2000 601 1924 05/01/2010
Palm Beach 16.00 13 0.034 2500 373 1109 08/01/2014
Port Everglades 13.30 14 0.0356 2500 328 1092 06/13/2003
Port Everglades PENDS

[ (compromise) | 22.50 |18 0.0105 | 5000 920 1956 Litigation
Miami 22.50 18 0.01125 5000 1024 2319 05/19/2018
Key West 18.40 12 0.0345 2000 401 1168 04/01/1991
Tampa 39.27 12 0.0713 2600 892 2440 02/01/2010
Panama City 28.75 16 2.65* 175 1248 2265 09/27/2019
Pensacola 25.00 18 2.00* 200 850 1505 08/19/2011
Jacksonville 21.20 15 0.0464 3000 521 1500 01/01/2004

Notes:

Fees rounded to nearest dollar

Panama City/Pensacoia does not use a tonnage charge but a Unit charge: (Unit=Length x Width/100). Panama City
charges a docking undocking fee of $0 25/ft. for vessels greater than 350° 1.OA, also a capital Boat and maintenance
fee of $200/movement.

Port Everglades and Miami use a combination of the box formula plus a GRT charge, with discounted rates below
10,000 GRT. Miami includes $100 Harbor Control fee for each handle.

Tampa uses a different minimum draft charge for vessels less than 10,000 GRT (12°) and for vesscls greater than
10,000 GRT (20")

Small Vessel = 342'LOA, 55' beam, 2033 GRT, 18’ draft

Large Vessel = 636" LOA, 79" heam, 23200 GRT, 20° draft
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Table 6 - Handles, Pilots and Revenue - 2018 data

Avg

Handle # Revenue/ Revenue/
Elonda Port thandles  Revenue Time PRilots Handle Handle hr
Fermandina 176 $ 191,028 4.0 0 $ 1085 $271
Jacksonville 3685 9,791,185 4.0 13/1 2657 664
Port Canaveral* 2170 5,994,727 2.0 8N 2763 1382
Fort Pierce** 2.5
Palm Beach 2719 2,195,118 1.5 S/ 807 538
Port Everglades 8827 11,967,183 26 1773 1356 52)
Miami 5544 13,597,747 26 16/4 2453 943
Key West 815 4,351.297 25 3N 5339 2136
Tampa 4692 13,665,957 75 16/3 2913 388
Panama City 474 598,959 20 2 1264 632

Pensacola 87 136,451 20 1 1568 784

® * Port Canaveral Pilots submitted a letter to PRRB on 10 Fcb 06 indicating their average handling time
should be increased. Used historical data for consistency.
e ** Ft Pierce closed

Table 7 - Approximate distances for piloting po and passenger vessels within port areas (NM)

Port Cargo Passenger E%s| Port _Cargo Pamqg_er_1
Fermandina 118 12.0 Port Everglades 70 5-6.0
Jacksonville 12.5-20.9 15.1 3% Miami 5.7-8.0 6.85-8.85
Canaveral 6.0 70 28| Koy West 8.5 7.6-19
Ft Pierce 4.4 N/A 8] Tampa 259433 44.0
W. Palm Beach | 2.3 23 @ Panama City 10.0-17.0; 43 N/A

i Port St Joe

%% Pensacola 11.0 N/A

Notes:

Data taken from prior mte inveshgations, chart estimations and actual port input.

FS310.151(5)(b)5: The amount of time each pilot spends on actual piloting duty and the
amount of time spent on other essential support services.

The combined port are of Jacksonville and Fernandina workload is divided between two duty
watches of seven pilots for each watch on a 21 day on/21 day off schedule. While on watch, a
pilot is on call and must remain in communication and be available 24 hours per day. The pilot
who will receive the next available vessel is the “first call pilot”. In a typical 7 day week, each of
the on watch pilots. will perform the “first call pilot” duties for a full day. This equates to 624
hours/yr. as “first call pilot™ (1 day/week x 26 weeks/yr. x 24 hrs/day).

7
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The “first board pilots™ responsibilities include : working with dispatchers and agents to set vessel
start times based on tide windows and coordinate vessel traffic, handles special circumstances such
as overdraft vessels, COTP orders, port information and berth depth questions. In Femnandina, he
also works with the agents to arrange tug assistance and set arrival and departure times The “first
board pilot™ is also responsible for reopening the port after it was closed due to fog or extreme
weather conditions,, When the “first board pilot” is dispatched for pilotage duties, the
responsibility is shifted to the next pilot on rotation.

Each pilot also averages an additional week/year as standby pilot for injuries or sickness, etc. so
that the on watch cycle maintains a full 7 pilot watch. This avoids delays in peak sailing times or
overloads due to port closures as described above. When scheduling pilots, no consideration is
given to weekends, holidays or time of day. This equates to 168 hrs/yr. (7 days/yr. x 24 his/day).
The only exception is when a pilot feels it is unsafe for them to be on the water and 8 hrs. of rest
1s taken. The current complement of pilots allows for the two watch rotation and is normally
sufficient to cover peak demand.

In 2018, the 14 pilots averaged 276 vessels each and with an average handle time of 3.0 hrs./handle
equates to 827 hrs of actual handle time: ( 176 + 3685 handles / 14 pilots x 3 hrs./handle). The
pilots reside in the combined port area with most of the pilots in the Jacksonville, close to the pilot
station. The average commute time is about 2 hrs in Jacksonville and for thos¢ in Fernandina 3.0
hrs. The average embark and disembark travel time in Jacksonville is 0.5 hrs and 1.0 hrs. for
Fernandina. Whenever the new boarding area is established for the neo-Panamax vessels off
Jacksonville (approx. 10 miles further east of sea buoy), the average travel for them will be an
extra 0.5 hrs. For 2018, this equates to 564 hrs travel time/pilot/yr. (176 x 3.0 hrs. travel) + (3685
x 2.0 hrs. travel /14 pilots).

The neo-Panamax vessels calling at Blount Island (turning area 1075 feet) and TRAPAC area
require an additional hr of bridge time due the only turning area sufficient to make the turn is off
the TRAPAC berth (turning area 1175 feet). The length of bridge time is also increasing for vessels
drafting more than 36 feet due to proceeding against the flooding current.

Each pilot also averages 10 hrs/week, equating to 520 hrs./yr. (10 hrs./weck x 52 weeks/yr.)
managing Association business and essential support for Fernandina and Jacksonville ports. The
essential support is provided by the Association President and Vice President, the Technology and
Pilot Boat pilots. They also serve the port community through the Jacksonville Maritime Exchange
(JMTX) board, Propeller Club executive board, Florida harbor Pilots executive board and the Right
Whale Southeast Implementation Team (SEIT). The pilots also work closely with the U.S. Coast
Guard, U.S/ Army Corp of Engineers, The Jacksonville Port Authority and Nassau Count Ocean,
Highway and Port Authority to promote safety and port growth.
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The St Johns Bar Pilot Association is a key member of the NE Florida Port Coordination team and
help the U.S. Coast Guard verify aids to navigation afier tropical or burricane storms. The pilots,
dispatchers and pilot boatmen are the last to leave and first to arrive after a storm. They assist
other port entitics to quickly and safely reopen the ports of Fernandina and Jacksonville and re-
establish commercial traffic. After Hurricane Dorian, they were able to reopen those ports to

commercial traffic within 24 hours of its passing.

When considering the pilot’s bridge and travel times, operational and administrative
responsibilities, plus government and community interactions. A summary of on-watch time is

summarized below:
On-Watch / Off-Watch / On Duty / Off Duty
365 days per year
x 24 hours per day
8,760 total hours per year
4380 total hrs/ 2 watches
Hours Explanation

On Call time: 27wk x7days x24 hrs. =

Total Hours on-watch 4536

Allocation of total time:

Bridge Time:
3861 handles + 14 pilots x 3.0 hours

Transportation Handle Time
Fer: 176 handles + 14 pilots x 3 hrs.
Jax: 3685 handles + 14 pilots x 1 hrs.

Total Handle Time (Bridge & travel)

Essential Support time
1 week/pilot x 52 weeks

“First board Pilot” time

1 day/week x 26 weeks/yr. x 24 hrs./day
Total time

19

4536

26 weeks of rotation 24/7,
plus 1 week standby

On-Wat
827
38
263

1128

520

_624
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6. The prevailing compensation to individuals In other maritime services of
comparable professional skill and standing.

The prevailing compensation of US pilots and Florida pilots, compared to other comparable
maritime professions is not a finite amount, as it rests with the judgment of the Pilotage Rate
Review Committee.

Previous Rate Review Boards and Committees have established a floor of base compensation for
Florida pilots equal to or greater than US flagged senior captains. In the late 1990’s and early
2000s, this “floor” amounted to the range of $200,000 to $220,000. In 2012 Administrative
Hearing on the Port of Ft. Pierce, Judge Watkins' recommended order acknowledged that
nationwide, average compensation for pilots are about $400,000 per year. But total compensation
for a senior US captain who is an employee with certain defined benefits, including funded pension
plans, is not perfectly comparable to Florida pilots. Chapter 310 requires a determination of
average net income of pilots, including the value of all benefits. This includes an estimate of the
value of the unfunded pension benefits which is difficult to compare to a funded pension plan,
Chapter 310 also provides that net income is determined after deduction of reasonable operating
costs of the pilots operations. The Investigative Committee has consistently considered certain
costs such as; political and charitable contributions and lobbying expenses as discretionary
expenses to be included in “all benefits”. These types of expenses are not attributable to
employee/captains, but are likely paid by their employers.

Captawn George Quick, Vice President of Master Mates and Pilots has provided testimony at many
of the previous rate hears from 2014 to 2018 and testified that US pilots carned an average of
above $410,000 to $498,000. Another maritime consultant, Dibner Maritime Associates, LLC,
provided testimony at the 2014 Miami hearing and a tabulation of pilot net income for 25 US ports,
indicating a range of $260,000 to $687,000, and an average of $500,000. See Exhibit 5.

Other than a pilot, the most relevant, comparable profession is a captain on a large U.S. flagged
vessel. However, the skills, risks and working conditions of a ship’s captain and that of a pilot are
considerably different:

® A pilot must have a wider range of technical skills because of the variety of sizes
and operational/handling characteristics of the vessels he handles.
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7. The impact rate change may have in individual pilot compensation and whether such
change will lead to a shortage of licensed state pilots, certified deputy pilots, or
qualified pilot applicants.

Florida is a highly desirable place to live and Jacksonville offers a nice standard of living, a mild
climate, and the cost of living is one of the lowest of Florida's major cities. Non-pilot
compensation in excess of $250,000 would represent a well-compensated professional in this
region. Florida has 94 pilot positions statewide, 96% of which are in ports where the compensation
ranges from in excess of $250,000 to $500,000, which is competitive with the other state-regulated
ports. Recent increases in Miami and Port Everglades has provided support for the setting rates
that produce pilot incomes in the top quartile of pilots nationwide,

However, we have no data to support any conclusions as to whether this increase (or if rates remain
the same and pilot compensation fell slightly) will actually lead to a shortage of licensed state
pilots, deputy pilots, or qualified pilot applicants.

The following schedule summarizes average pilot income, including benefits, from 2007, 2017,
2018 and estimated 2020 if the requested rate increase is approved:

Income Before Fringe Benefits Total Average
Year Fringe Benefits and Unfunded Pension* Income
2007 $363,000 $42,000 $405,000
2017 $395,000 $80,000 $475,000
2018 $398,000 $80,000 $478,000

*Fringe $35,000. Pension $45,000 = $80,000
Projected Pilot Income

Year Projection Without Rate Increase Projection With Rate Increase
2020 $478,000 $564,000

The number of qualified/approved applicants for pilot openings in Jacksonville has been fairly
strong since 2007, surpassed only by Miami, Everglades and Canaveral which averaged 22.5
approved applicants from 2012 to 2018. Jacksonville applicants were as follows:

Year Number of Applicants

2007 12
2008 15
2011 14
2015 11
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We cannot determine by this information, the quality of the applicants. Although most of the
applicants meet minimum requirements of Chapter 310.071, Florida Statutes, the true test of an
applicant’s ability is not known until the appointed deputies complete their deputy training
programs at their respective ports.

8. Projected changes in vessel traffic.

The port in Jacksonville is made up of a diversified group of business entities. The Jacksonville
Port Authority (JPA) is a “Landlord Operator”, which means it only owns the land that it leases to
various tenants who, in turn, provide their own facilities and services to run their operations. JPA’s
land consists of the Talleyrand, Blount Island, and the Ed Austin Terminals, which account for
only haif of the totai ships that cail on the port.

The other non-JPA terminals include: Buckeye, Marathon Oil, Navy Fuel, NuStar Qil, Center
Point, Trans Mountain Asphalt, Blount Island Marine Corporation and the Port at Green Cove
(Tug and Barge only).

Traffic in Jacksonville has declined slightly from 2010 to 2018 but pilotage revenue has increased
during the same time period, due to the increase in s1ze of vessels which is a common trend in the
shipping industry. Projected 2020 traffic will decline by 126 handles.

Fernandina traffic and related pilotage revenue has decreased significantly during 2010 to 2018
primarily due to economic issues with the port and its customers.

The following table presents the number of handles and revenue for each port from 2010 to 2018:

Jacksonville Fernandina
Year Handles Revenue Handles Revenue
2010 4237 $ 9,225,935.54 441 $ 527,000
2011 4110 | |$ 9,178,181.01 391 $ 525,000
2012 4,065 $ 9,135,333.81 232 $ 318,000
2013 4,115 $ 8,928,701.55 170 $ 212,000
2014 4,164 $ 9,442,987.09 156 $ 183,000
2015 3,994 $ 9,953,565.56 173 $ 221,000
2016 3,913 $ 9,947,975.64 177 $ 192,000
2017 3,734 $ 9,897,137.99 161 $ 183,000
2018 3,685 $ 9,791,185.23 176 $ 182,000

This table shows that the revenue per handle (in Jacksonville) increased from $2,177 in 2010 to
$2,657 in 2018, indicating an increase in the averagc size of vessels by approximately 22%.
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Cost of retirement and fringe benefit plans.

Retirement Plans

Regular Employees

The pilots sponsor a qualified 401(k) retirement plan which covers substantially all employees.
The Association makes an annual contribution to the plan equal to 15% of participants’ annual
salary of employees hired prior to December 31, 2012. The Association makes an annual
contribution to the plan equal to 7% plus a 3.5% match of participants’ annual salary of employees
hired after December 31, 2012.

Employer contributions in 2017 and 2018 totaled $105,600 and $113,000 respectively.

Pilots

The pilots’ retirement plan is not funded or set aside on a current basis. Their retirement is based
upon the Articles of Association between pilots, which provides for the following:

After 20 years active service and upon reaching the age of 55, upon retitement he will
receive for a percentage of an active pilot’s distributive share as follows:

Age And Years of Service Percentage of Active Pilots’ Share
55 20 35%
55 21 38%
55 22 41%
55 23 44%
55 24 47%
55 25 0%

The pilots maintain a record of pension benefits that were paid from their share of pilot
income while they were an active pilot, and the amount of benefits received as a retiree.
Upon the death of an active or retired pilot, the excess (if any) of the benefits paid versus
received is paid to the pilot’s survivor on a monthly basis until the balance is paid out.

If the pilots ceased business, the retired pilots would receive no retirement income
because their compensation is based on pilotage on a month-to-month basis.

There is no cap for five existing retirees who retired before 2001. The active pilots have
agreed to cap their future retirement benefit to an aggregate of 20% of gross pilotage
revenue. Captain Eldemire is the only retired and living pilot not subject to the cap as of
2019,
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Tax laws also allow the pilots to fund individual retirement plans with their share of pilot income.
Depending on the type of plan selected, they can contribute up to $55,000 in 2018 which is adjusted
annually by the Internal Revenue Service. If such plans are consistently funded at the maximum
annual contribution, along with a conservative investment strategy, each pilot can accumulate a
considerable retirement account. Since these plans are funded by each individual pilot out of their
respective income shares, it is not included as an additional benefit in our determination of average
net income per pilot.

Actual and projected retirement expense, with and without the requested rate increase, are
presented below:

Prgjected Without Projected Wiih
Year Actual Requcst Rate Requested Rate
2018 $ 1,121,000 $ - $ -
2019 S 1,289,000 $
2020 $ 1,573,000

The following schedule presents the total amounts paid to retired pilots in 2000, 2007, 2018 and
cstimated for 2020 with the requested rate increase:

Estimated
2000 2007 2018 2020
Retirement $ 1,522,000 $ 1,116,000 $1,121,000 $1,573,000
Number of retirees 12 6 6

7
Average per retiree $_127.000 $ 186000 § 187.000 $_225,000
Analysis of Valuation of Pension

The valuation of the pension plan benefit is a highly judgmental issue and should be analyzed by
a qualified actuary in order to determine the imputed benefit to be included in total pilot income.
Recognizing a multitude of risks and uncertainty involved in the valuation of this benefit, we
present the following simplified analysis for the Rate Review Committee’s consideration:
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Analysis
1. If a retired pilot was paid $180,000 a year for 20 years, how much would he have to
accumulate in a funded pension plan to pay out this benefit? Answer: Assuming a 6%
interest factor, $2,046,000.

2. If a pilot worked 20 years, how much would have to be contributed to & funded plan for
each of twenty years worked, to accumulate $2,046,000?7 Answer: Assuming a 6% interest
factor, $55,500.

3. In prior rate investigations, the Investigative Committee used an estimate of $45,000 to
value the unfunded retirement benefit. Due to the negative and positive factors discussed
below, the Investigative Committee will continue to estimate the value at $45,000.

The following negative and positive factors present some of the most significant variables which
could have a negative or positive effect on the valuation of the pension/consulting benefit:

Negative Factors
1. Ifa pilot voluntarily resigns before he completes 20 years’ service, he forfeits any future
benefits. There is no vesting on a year by year basis. Benefits are pro-rated for
preretirement, disability and death.

2. Two factors in the plan document can materially limit the annual retirement benefit;
a. The 20% aggregate of total pilot revenue
b. The 50% limit on active pilots’ compensation

3. Many other business and economic factors could affect the future benefit, since it is not
funded. Port traffic, legislative changes, and rate seiting events, could have a material
impact on such valuations.

4.  The retiree has no residual equity in the unfunded plan. Upon death of the retired pilot or
the spouse, benefits cease. Therefore, in the example of how much needs to be accumulated
to pay the assumed benefits for 20 years (above), a premature death with no residual value
would result in a much lower estimate.

Peositive Factors
1. The pilots” income has been relatively stable over the last 18 years (as they have
historically), which means that the $180,000 assumed flat benefit, may increase or decrease
over time, which would understate or overstate our previous computation,

2. The analysis assumes the pilot lives only 20 years. If he lives longer, the computation is
too low. If he or his widow die sooner, the computation is too high.
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When you multiply our $45,000 estimate of pension valuation times the 14 active pilots, the sum
is only $630,000. Whereas, the sum of the cash payments made to the retirees is $1.1 million for
2018. The difference is attributable to the committee’s attempt to value a funded plan (which
does not exist) and compare it to the benefits paid on an unfunded plan. Actuarially, the two
valuations would never agree. Again, it is a matter of judgment by the Pilotage Rate Review
Committee to consider 1) The Investigative Committee’s valuation of a funded plan or 2) to
consider the cash payments to the retirees as an indirect benefit to the active pilots.

Equity Valuation Payments

When a deputy pilot becomes a full pilot, he must buy an interest in the partnership (association),
which is valued at the date of admission. A new pilot acquires his interest over a 100 month period.
This is deducted from his otherwise fuli pilot’s share of income each month, and is redistribuied
to the other active and retired pilots.

When a pilot retires, his interest is purchased by the association, based upon the same formula as
someone buying in. (Fair value determined at the date of retirement paid over 100 months.) Since
these transactions occur in a haphazard pattem from year to year, and amounts paid in or paid out
are balanced between all pilots, the investigative committee ignores these transactions in
determining individual pilot income and instead focuses on average net income per pilot.

Medical Plan

The Association pays the health insurance premium for the pilots and deputies, but not their
dependents. Currently the pilots’ premium is $1,210 per month or $14,520 per year per pilot.

Employees are members of a union and their dues, which are paid by the employee, covers a
portion of the health insurance premiums which includes their dependents. The Association
contributes $1,236 per month per employee to the union plan, which essentially covers the
employee part of the total premium.

FS310.151(5)(b)10. Physical risks inherent in piloting.

The profession of piloting carries inherent risks. Boarding and disembarking a vessel is one of the
most difficult/dangerous events of piloting and quickly end a career. Coupled with varying
weather, sea conditions, and irregular work schedules creates a physical toll. With the Neo-
Panamax vessels calling in the port, the need to board and disembark further offshore exists with
Jacksonville looking at areas nearly 10 miles seaward of the sca buoy. Violent and sudden
thunderstorms, as well as sustained high winds which accompany fronts, add to the difficulty of
handling vessels. Even with the technological advances on today’s vessels, no technology can
avert the consequences of human error or take the place of the skill and judgment of the pilot.
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FS310.151(5)(b)11. Special characteristics, dangers and risks of port.

Jacksonville and Fernandina encompass 67 nautical miles of pilotage waters. Both ports have
large tidal and current conditions and are the strongest amongst Florida ports. With the increased
size of vessels calling, especially in Jacksonville, the risk management and environmental
concerns have drastically increased. Though the channels have remained the same except for
depth, the size has increased nearly 195 feet and 52 feet in beam and thus the hydrodynamic forces
are much more in play with these vessels. These vessels are larger than the ACOE simulations
used in designing the present channel limits. These vessels require timing when passing under the
high-tension electrical line at Dames Point and through the Dames Point Bridge with tight limits.

Lengths of various “Pilotage Waters' channels:

Jacksonville's navigable waters extends from the sea buoy down the St. Johns River to Green Cove
Springs and the ICW from the St Johns River to the just past the Atlantic Ave Bridge for a total of
53.4 Nm. However, the federal channels only extend to the end of Terminal channel and very few
vessels requiring pilotage ever transit from the Hart Bridge to Green Cove Springs or down the
ICW. The 22 federal channels encompass 25.5 NM of river.

Fernandina’s navigable channels extend from the sea buoy down the Amelia Island River through
City Front Reach, though most piloted vessels don’t go beyond Seaboard Reach for a total pilotage
route of 13.6 NM.

Specific details highlighted in the application.

Widths of various “Pilotage Waters” channels:
In Jacksonville, the federal channel range from 300 feet in Blount Island Channel to 1175 feet in
Dame Point Tun.

In Fernandina, the federal channels range from 400 feet in Seaboard Reach to 1100 feet in
Quarantine Reach.

Specific details are highlighted in the application

Depths of various “Pilotage Waters” channels;

Jacksonville has federal channels with a depth of 50 feet in the St. Johns Bar Cut Range East
channel and thence 40 feet through most of the channels to the berths on Terminal Channel, thence
34 feet to Hart Bridge. Blount Island and Blount Island East Channels have 38 feet and 30 feet

draft respectively.

Femandina has federal channels with depths of 46 feet in the Entrance Channel, then 45feet in
Range A and thence 36 feet from Quarantine Reach through Seaboard Reach.
Specific details are highlighted in the application.
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List of unusual hazards to navigation:

In Jacksonville, a severe and dangerous set can occur in the Bar Channels and the jetties. The
estuarine system in the St Johns Rivers creates strong crass currents in many sections of the lower
tiver, Due to the age of the river and the recent and dramatic increase in size of vessels calling in
Jacksonville, many of the recreational boat berths and ramps are very close the navigable channel
and do not comply with USCG and ACOE guidelines concerning setbacks. The cruise vessel
calling at Jacksonville has less than 6 feet of clearance when passing through the Dames Point
Bridge. When the channel was deepened to 40 feet, White Shell and St. Johns Bluff channels were
narrowed from 900 feet to 600 feet. The channel presently does not meet the requirements of the
ACOE for deep water two way traffic.

In Fernandina, there exists a severe and dangerous cross current at the jetties and strong cross
currents along the Amelia River. There exists a high concentration of please and shrimp vessels
within the port and from the ICW traffic. Tidal currents are among the strongest and the Tidal
range is the largest in Florida. Fernandina deals with the additional challenge of the availability
of limited tug boat assistance.

List “Weather Related” hazards to navigation:

In both Jacksonville and Fernandina, they deal with seascnal dense fog. Heavy rain squells can
occur through the year but are most prevalent in the summer months. Strong Nor’easters cayuse
dangerous boarding and disembarking conditions, most prevalent during the fall and winter
months. A fresh wind from the north through the south will create a very strong current across the
jetties and create dangerous conditions.

List limitations imposed by Association:

Jacksonville has a maximum draft of 40 feet in the federal channels with a minimum of 5% under
keel clearance required for safe navigation with no restrictions based on length. Beam or GRT. Air
draft beyond Dames Point Bridge is limited.

Fernandina has a maximum draft restriction of 36 feet with a minimum of 2 feet under keel
clearance for safe navigation. Tug and barge combinations of greater than 2000 GRT must be made
up on the hip prior to entering the Amelia River,

FS8310.151(5)(b)12. Other relevant information:

Jacksonville is one of 22 strategic ports in the United States, providing pilotage to US Sealift
vessels during times of mobilization. In 2020, the St. Johns Bar Pilot Association will have served
the port of Jacksonville for over 190 years. The pilots in the combined ports work hard to promote
and maintain a high level of cooperation between all the port entities and are committed to
providing a safe, efficient and reliable pilotage service. As pilots, they are mindful that pilotage
fees are a portion of the total port costs, but not a significant cost compared to other port costs.
They feel it’s in the best interest of the state to approve these rates to ensure that they able to

28 IC Report Page 30

PSP000910



Exh. DL-28
Page 53 of 187

REPORT OF THE INVESTIGATIVE COMMITTEE
DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION
PILOTAGE RATE REVIEW COMMITTEE
APPLICATION FOR CHANGE OF RATES OF PILOTAGE
AT PORTS OF JACKSONVILLE AND FERNANDINA
BY ST. JOHNS BAR PILOT ASSOCIATION AND
FERNANDINA PILOT, LLC

continue the high level of service and attract and retain a high level of qualified applicants and
pilots, and upgrade equipment and infrastructure necessary to support a deepened port by the ever
larger vessels calling.

13.  The Board may take into consideration the consumer price Index or any other
comparable economic indicator when fixing rates of pilotage; however, because the
consumer price index or such other comparable economic indicator is primarily
related to net income rather than rates, the Board shall not use it as the sole factor in
fixing rates of pilotage.

The last rate increase was effective January 1, 2004 and the Consumer Price Index (CPI) was
184.2. As of November 2019, the CPI was 257.2, an increase of 39.6%. See Exhibit 7.

Due to many variables in determining average net income per pilot, such as: port traffic and size
of vessels; number of pilots, deputies and retirees; and fluctuation of expenses for fuel, boat
replacements and repairs; selecting a single year’s pilot net income to compare to the current year
CPI, can result in significant distortion.

Based on prior rate investigations, we selected average net income per pilot over the following
years to normalize the base year for a comparison to the CPI.

Year Average Net Income*

1995 $313,000

2000 $320,000

2007 $405,000
Average $346,000

*Not including unfunded pension benefits
Using $346,000 as an estimated base year for 2004 and applying the increase in CPI from 2004 to

2019 of 39.6%, the CPI adjusted net income would be $483,000. This compares very close to the
pilots’ projected 2020 net income of $489,000 with the requested rate increase.
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Our second CP1 analysis compares revenue per handle for select years from 2004 to 2019. This
analysis is not a reflection of costs but rather how the size and mix of vessels provide increases

in revenue relative to the CPL

Year Revenue/Handle Average CPI
2004 $1593 188.9
2006 $1824 201.6
2010 $2177 2180
2014 $2267 2370
2018 $2657 2520
2019 $2669 257.0
nalysis of Chan m 2004 to 2019
Change in revenue per handle ($2,669 - $1,593) $1,076.
Change in CPI (2004 — 2019) + 36%
2004 revenue per handle times the change in CPI from 2004 to 2019 $2,166
2019 revenue per handlc $2,669
Increase in revenue per handle over change in CPI 3503
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Detailed Explanation of Rate Change being Requested )
To a base pilotage ratc of: LOA Rate x LOA + Beam Rate x Beam + Draft Rate x Draft + GT Rate x GT]
LOA = Length overall, Beam = extreme beam, Draft = Doopest draft, and GT = Gross Tonnage (1969 IMO Coav.)

All linear dimensions shall be in feet and computod in half foot increments, or fraction thereof,
Gross Tonnage rate is per 1000 gross tons, or fraction thereof.

The initial rates in dollars per foot or per 1000 grose tous for Arrivals or Sailings ehall be:

Vessels of GT: 10,001 t0 40,000 GT  Qver 40.000 GT

LOA Rate $0.75 $100 $1.25 $1.50

Beam Rate $3.75 $5.00 $8.50 $12.00

Draft Rate $22.50 $25.00 $30.00 $40.00
$15.00 $22.50 $£27.50

GRTRate $12.50
Minimum pilotage chargc of $880 is based on minimums of: LOA = 300R, Beam = 50R, Drafl = 18}, GT = 5,000
The pilotage rate for a barge towed on a hawser, towed alongside or pushed (not s composite unit) is bascd on the sum

of the LOA, Beam, Draft and GT attributes of the towing tug and barge(s).
The pilotage rate for a tug pushimg a barge in the notch as a composite unit is based on the barge’s LOA, Beam, GT

and deepest Dnaft of the combined mit.

_'i;‘ ge Kaie 1 "....' / CEBE v DETLLE @l LOOMARSE Wil
Zone A (up to ] mile) = % Standard Pilotage ($450 minimum)

Zone B (over | mile and up to 4 miles) = % Standard Pilotage ($600 minimiam)

Zone C (over 4 miles and up to 8 miles) = % Standard Pilotage ($750 minimum)

Zone D (over B miles) = Standard Pilotage rate; regular LOA, Beam, Draft and GT rates apply

Zone E (Fuller Warren Bridge to Shands Bridge); in or out of Green Cove Springs, FL. = Standard Pilotage

e ile § it Ai) ‘J.i;' L _..‘

YA, T

Detention of pilot = $150 per half hour or fraction thereof afier first half hour, no maxinmum.
Delayed arrival or sailing = $150 per half hour or fraction thereof after first half hour, no maximum.
Standby charge when pilot is on the bridge part of the bridge tcam as in, but not limited to, holding a vessel in stream,
tending a vessel at anchor, making up & tow or breaking tow = $150 per half hour or fraction thereof, no maximum
Cancellation of pilot; if cancelled, detention mte of $150 per half hour will be charged from the pilot call out, (2 bours
before the ordered arrival time or 1.5 bours before the ordered sailing time), until notice of cancellation is received by

the pilot dispatched to the vessel or by the pilot office.

Port Control Fee = $100 per vessel handle per inbound or outbound transit
Training and Technology Fee = $15 per vessel handle per inbound or outbound trangit

Detention, Delay

In Femandina a docking and undocking rate based on a vessel’s LOA.

LOA leas than 330 ft = No Charge
LOA 330 f to less than 550 ft = $0.50 per ft LOA

LOA 550 ft and over = $0.75 per ff LOA

At the discretion of the pilots covering the ports of Fonandina and Jacksonville, an additional pilot may be assigned
to any neo-panamax vessel, dead ship tow, or special circumstance vessel. The commensurate result being that said
veagel will be charged two standard pilotage focs.

Pilot kept on board vessel when a vessel departs the port arca = $250 per day plus First-class return transportation

Payment is due upon invoicing. Balances beyond 45 days shall be considered in-mrears. Lincs and Agencies in
arrears may be placed on a cash bagis for future departures.

All rates and foes shall increase by 2.5% each year for [0 years starting on the anniversary date one following the
effective date of this onder. yest
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Customer Name
NYK Line (NA)

Hoegh

MOL

Carnival Cruise Lines,

Ocean Network Express (North America, Inc
T. Parker Host, Inc.

Maersk A/S

TOTE Maritime

CMA CGM (America)

K-Line

GAC Shipping {(USA) Inc.

Yang Ming Marine Transport Corp.
Atlantic Container Line

Moran Shipping Agencies inc.
All American Ship Agents

Siem Car Carriers

Crowley Caribbean Services, Inc
Hapaq Lloyd

Hyundai Glovis

Kline

Ace Marine, Inc.

MOL Panama, (nc.

Hapag Lioyd

Mediterranean Shipping Co
Hapag-Lloyd

Zim American Shipping Services
C. B. Agency

Crowley Marine Services,
Wallenius Wilhelmsen Logistics-Americas, LLC
Siem Car Carrier

Saga Welco

K Line America, Inc.

Terminal Shipping Co.
Great American Line

Crowley Technical Mgmt
CSAV

Kirby Offshore Marine
G2 Ocean US, Inc.
Great American
United Ocean
Colonial Group, Inc.
MLS USA Carporation
US Shipping
Maersk
Port Qperatiions
King Ocean

ULV AAPTUVNTVLLVUVRNVLUVVVLVLOVDVVBIDPVBVITOVNLLNDOOBLLVLB VBV VLYLD VBV VLYY VNV

Amount
754,364.06

725,912.19
682,540.72
602,103.54
593,666.24
554,751.90
552,281.27
513,521.72
416,398.51
397,602.32
257,556.11
255,545.83
245,992.18
218,544.61
212,257.01
196,810.06
187,194 86
149,164.78
143,956.86
133,609.45
131,800.00
126,637.80
122,354.51
104,015.32
98,965 92
96,058.90
84,562.05
77,237.33
72,301.61
70,413.50
65,719.86
45,409.80
43,597.27
42,737.26
36,251.87
34,892.42
30,551.01
29,818.87
27,065.00
25,939.75
25,229.89
24,860.55
24,711.45
24,197.28
20,800.00
20,773.19

No. Of Handles
109
106
103

77
67
189
83
127
49
59
66
29
60
65
69
30
92
17
21
20
35
16
12
50
1
9
41
18
10
11
16

~ 00 N WO Oy
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K Line

Mobro Marine, inc.
Owners

Guif Harbor Shipping Age
Bouchard Transportation
Mitsui 0.5.K. B

US Shipping

Great American Lines
Nissan Motor Car Carriers
Pasha Hawaii Holdings LLC
Team Tankers

Dutra

Exxon Mobil
Scorpian Marine Management
U.S. Marine Management, Inc.
Dome Chartering
Maritime Management
Crowley Gov't Contract
Vane Line Bunkering Inc.
Gulf Africa Lines
American Petroleum Services
Nissan Motors Carrier
Mitsui-RORO
Cruise Mgmt Int'l
Moran Towing
Galborg
Scorpio MR Pool Ltd
Clearlake Shipping
Scorpio Marine Management
Scorpio Tankers
Keystone Shipping
Macs Maritime
K3 Maritime Agency, Inc
North Florida Shipping
BAE Systems
Odfjell Bankers
FEDNAV
Harley Marine Gulf
Spliethoff
Genesis Marine , LLC
Chembulk
Maran
Pacific Gulf Marine
Monroe

Hornbeck Offshore Services LLC

MY Freedom-Owner
Intermarine-Worldwide

MWV DUVBDDLDOBDDLDANNVLDNN DDLUV UYLV YLEVIWVYEYOVWUVVWYVEUV VLN

20,284.85
18,688.40
18,544.76
18,266.32
16,059.54
15,924.11
14,124.72
13,824.34
13,600.61
13,296.39
12,724 36
12,650.00
12,331.09
11,705.06
11,650.22
11,400.82
10,782.57
9,893.58
9,371.71
8,435.40
7,831.96
6,683.90
6,654.30
6,552.74
5,405.99
4,121.87
4,079.18
4,025.65
3,950.15
3,941.32
3,828.59
3,598.87
3,372.44
3,242.23
3,208.19
3,158.44
3,050.54
2,842.56
2,577.51
2,467.87
2,291.23
2,193.18
2,124 14
1,955.37
1,828 84
1,828.84
1,662.46
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Bagger Enterprise
Intermarine

Scot Stuttgart Tankers
Patroit Marine, LLC
Ocean 7

Reederei Stefan Patjens
Fountainhead Marine, LTD
Express Marine, Inc.
Aqua, LTD

Bella Vita Cl Corp

BWA Yachting Florida
MY Lady Sandals-Owner
RC Construction
Schifffahrts Gm & Co KG

1,600.24
1,423.08
1,357.27
1,300.00
1,276.96
1,196.29
1,089.42
1,015.38
914.42
914.42
914.42
914.42
457.21
300.00

RV SRV IRV LV ARV AR VR VA Y IR Ve AR 7 IRV R T IR P I Y

e R R R W e N W

Totals $9,687,397.37

1961
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stomer
North Florida Shipping
Seatrade USA
C. B. Agency
All American Ship Agents, LLC
G2 Ocean US, Inc.
T. Parker Hosl, Inc.
Dutra Group
Columbia Group Transport, LLC
TOTE Maritime

Amoun No. Of Handles

S 48,747.15 35
$ 48,125.76 16
$ 34,324.53 17
$ 30,962.82 10
$  5407.80 2
$  3,375.10 1
$  2,604.09 1
$ 194276 1
$  1,174.95 1
Totals $ 176,664.96 84
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BOQLES LAW FIRM —
BATON ROUGE, LLC

JANET S. BOLES 7914 Wrenwoad Boulevard, Suite A WILLIAM B. KIRTLAND
janc@jboleslaw.com Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70809 bkiland@jboleslaw.com
Telephone. 225.924.2686
Pacsimile: 225.926.5425

March 15, 2017

Larry McNutt, Jr., Administrator s
Louisiana Pilotage Fee Commission

Two United Plaza, Suite 702

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70809

RE: Louisiana Pllotage Fee Commisston Docket No. P-13-001
Filing of Pilots’ 1099 Income Distribution Disclosure —
Year ended December 31, 2016
New Orleans-Baton Rouge Steamship Pilots Association
BLF File No, 5361

Dear Mr. McNutt: .

Pursuant to Louisiana Pilotage Fee Commission (“Fee Commission™) Order P-13-001
issued on November 14, 2013, please find attached for filing the New Orleans-Baton Rouge
Steamship Pilots Association’s pilots’ 1099 income disttibution disclosure for the year cnded
December 31, 2016.

This financial data is being submitted for informational purposes only and requires no
action on the patt of the Fee Commission.

With every good wish, I am,

Nllen 8. kit | 5

WBK/his Janet S. Boles
Enclosure William B. Kirtland

cc: Captain Stephen Hathom
Captain Louis M. Wattigney, Jr.
Captain Stephen Wall
Art Lentini, Esquire
Kevin Neyrey, CPA
Dennis Tizzard, CPA
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New Orleans-Baton Rouge Steamship Pllots Association

$425,220.06
$605,382.98
$498,578.30
$607,020.20
$656,603.04
$570,752.76
$607,805.68
$623,417.50
$610,861.22
$501,776.82
$578,400.04
$480,063.06
$574,205.19
$653,939.68
$602,549.67
$487,447.14
$326,816.09
$693,765.90
$589,156.52
$627,368.46
$6817,394.84
$503,784.50
$587,770.52
$590,993.50
$571,875.06
$680,4568.78
$6554,930.56
$559,101.20
$616,565.68
$689,762,09
$479,601.97
$658,752.07
$535,618.01
$6082,865.15
$597,604.12
$528,853.10
$669,140.91
$604,534.45
$585,706.18

40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
n
74
75
76
77
78

Year 2016

1099 Pliot Shares

$667,761.65
$505,268.00
$688,260.32
$605,137.34
$593.877.58
$500,177.18
$683,608.96
$611,801.80
$580,161.58
$660,039.87
$670,498.69
$627,224.85
$504,854.52
$698,037.97
$599,307.12
$589,294,23
$619,106.97
$618,563.11
$702,333.42
$580,213.81
$696,200.22
$630,181.79
$528,775.28
$692,502.90
$603,300.20
$606,075.88
$608,578.74
$596,791.60
$610,668.36
$838,912.65
$667,700.74
$627,781.12
$618,700.28
$566,402.43
$538,8624.54
$508,332.02
$610,465.26
$547,013.30
$570,234.75

79

81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88

90
9
92
93
94
95
96
97
98
99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
12
113
114
11§
116
117

Exh. DL-28

$505,762.21
$578,006.66
$500,092.83
$680,763.23
$454,040,71
$596,767.88
$600,686.47
$647,571.00
$5086,003.13
$528,717.02
$566,160.91
$607,000.72
$616,760.56
$843,164.30
$667,301.84

$618,686.30

$688,717.20
$575,262.70
$613,341.76
$626,137.28
$606,384/10
$600,624.39
$607,473.71
$666,336.42
$637,068.07
$604,718.67
$578,018.93
$606,369,02
$686,031,44
$627484.74
3530.533169
$570,408:38
$576,335.00
$564,902.83
$565,540.34
$609,018.54
$574,191.38
$586,477,35
$688,626.03
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445, BUREAU OF LABOR STATISTICS

Economic News Release
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Table 1. Consumer Price index for All Urban Consumers (CPI-U): U. S. city average, by expenditure

category

Tabie 1. Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consinnars (CP1-U): U.S. city averags, by expenditure catagory, November 2019

11982-64=100, uniess otherwise nated]
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, Relutive : | | Nov. ~ =~ Oct | Aug. | S { ot |
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Table 24. Historical Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumaers (CPI-U): U. §. clity avarage, all tems-Continued
(1982-84=100, unless othenwise noted)

Year Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sep Oct Nov De¢
1870 378 380 382 85 386 B8 390 390 382 394 326 398
1671 ¥ 99 400 401 403 40.8 407 408 40.8 400 400 411
1972 411 LK) 414 4“5 418 417 419 420 421 423 424 426
1973 426 429 433 438 439 4“2 4.3 451 452 458 459 462
1974 486 472 478 480 88 48,0 94 500 606 571 89S 519
1975 621 525 527 529 532 536 542 543 546 549 853 855
1678 558 558 859 581 565 568 571 574 516 57.9 580 582
1877 58.5 801 595 600 803 8a7 610 812 8t4 618 61.0 62.1
%78 625 628 634 63.9 B46 652 667 1] 86.5 871 674 077
1979 683 851 28 706 s 723 3 738 746 752 %4e %67
1080 178 789 801 810 818 a7 827 8313 B840 848 856 883
1881 a7o0 ar.e 885 891 838 906 @16 823 932 034 037 940
1982 04.3 B4 6 45 94.9 958 970 975 vy a7 e 88 2 s8a 976
1983 14} 870 7.9 eag 002 885 99 1002 1007 1010 1012 1013
16884 1018 1024 1026 1031 1034 1037 1041 1045 1050 1053 1083 1053
1985 1055 106 0 1064 1089 1073 1076 1078 1080 108.3 108.7 1000 1083
1686 1096 1093 1088 1086 1088 1095 1095 1087 1oz 110.3 1104 1105
1987 112 1116 1121 127 11314 1135 1138 1144 1150 153 1154 1154
1988 1157 1180 1185 171 117§ 180 1185 1190 1198 1202 120.3 1205
1963 1211 1216 1223 1231 1238 1241 124 4 1248 1250 123.8 1259 1261
1800 1274 1280 1287 1209 1202 1209 130 4 1318 132.7 1335 1338 1338
1991 1346 1348 1350 1352 13548 1360 19%.2 1366 137.2 1374 13r8 1379
1992 1381 1388 1393 139.5 1397 140.2 1405 1406 1413 1418 1420 1419
1993 1426 1431 1436 1440 144 2 444 1ad 4 1448 145 1 1467 1468 1458
1984 1482 1467 1472 1474 1476 1480 1484 1480 140 4 1485 1497 1487
1995 150.3 1509 1514 1519 1522 1625 1525 1529 1532 1537 1536 1535
1996 1544 16549 1857 1563 166.8 1587 1§70 1673 187.6 158 3 1586 158 &
1997 169 1 1596 1800 1802 180 1 1603 160.5 1608 1612 1616 1616 1613
1998 101.6 1619 1622 1626 18628 1630 1632 1634 1836 1640 1640 1639
1999 1643 1645 1850 1882 1662 166 2 1667 1671 1679 168.2 1663 1683
2000 188.8 1698 1712 1713 1716 1724 1128 1728 1737 174 0 1741 1740
2001 1751 1758 176 2 1769 1777 178.0 1776 1176 1783 17 1774 176.7
2002 1771 177.8 1788 1798 1798 179.9 180 1 1807 1810 1813 .3 180.9
2003 181.7 1631 184 2 1838 1835 1837 18380 1846 1852 1850 1845 184 3
2004 1852 1882 1874 1880 189 1 1897 1884 1095 1899 1909 1910 1903
2005 1007 1918 193.3 1948 194 4 1045 19654 1964 1988 190 2 1978 198 8
2008 1983 1887 1698 2015 2025 2029 203.5 2039 2029 2018 2016 2018
2007 202416 203490 | 205352 206666| 207.940| 208362| 208208 | 207917 | 208480| 208934 210177 | 210038
2008 211080 | 211603 | 213523 | 214823| 218632| 218815| 219984 | 219086 | 218.783 216573 | 212425 | 210228
2009 211143 212183 212709 213240 | 213856 | 215693 | 215351 215834 | 215980 | 216177 | 216330 215.049
2010 218087 | 218741 217631 218008( 218178 217985 | 218011| 218312] 218430 219711 | 218603 | 219.179
201 220223 | 221300 | 223467 | 224.906| 225964 | 223722 | 225922 | 226.845| 228889 | 226421 | 226230 | 225.672
2012 220685| 227683 | 220.302| 230.085| 220816 220478 220104 | 230379 | 231407 | 231317 230.221 229601
2Mm 230280 | 232186 | 232773 | 232531 232945 | 233.504 | 233986 233877 | 234149 | 233548 232088 | 233048
2014 233918 234701 | 236293 | 237072| 237900 | 238343 | 238260 237852| 238031 | 287433 | 236 151 | 234 812
2015 233707 | 234722 236118 | 230800 | 2376805| 238638 238654 | 238216 | 237945 297838 | 237336 | 236 525
2018 236918 | 237111 | 238132 230261| 240220 241.018| 240628 | 240849 | 261428 | 241729 | 244383 | 241 432
2017 242839 243603 | 243801| 244524 | 244733 | 244055 | 244708 | 245519| 248819 3 . .
Ses footnoles af end of table
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$t. Johms Bar Pilot Association

PORT OF JACKSONVILLE

FLORIDA
4910 QCEAN STREET
ATLANTIC BEACH, FLORIDA 32233
Telephone - 804-249-5631
FAX - 904/249-7523

This updated and revised application for change of rates of Pliotage, for the combined Part area of
Iscksonville and Fernandina, amends and replaces the application submitted September 2018. New

projections have been included based off based off historical data from 2018 as well as projections for
2019 and 2020.

WE ARE THE “JACKSONVILLE PILOTS”
|IC Report Page 54

PSP000934



Exh. DL-28
Page 77 of 187

REVISED AND UPDATED APPLICATION FOR CHANGE OF RATES OF PILOTAGE
Pag. |1
0CTz 1208

L - |l STATE OF FLORIDA
DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS APPLICATION FOR A
AND S EAL CHANGE IN RATES OF G ey |
PO Bex $377 PILOTAGE
TALLAHABSEE, FLORIDA
12114-5377
150-717.1900 REVISED

R e e S e |

AFPPLICATION SHOULD BE TYPED

PLEASE CHECK THE AFPFROPRIATE BOX TO IDENTIFY THE APPLICANT:

Q Insdivideal Person
Q Rlagis Lisgueed Einis PEst

PART A APPLICANT PROFILE DATA

Name of Individual/Association/Gronp Home Telophone: | Besiness
$t. Johne Ber Pilot Associstion end Femandina Pilot, LLC (txclndz erca Telephona:
code) (Inchsdo aroa
Name of Authorized Represantstive & Titlo (904) 321 431§ code)
Caplain Willism Hardes Kavansogh Jr., State Pllot (904) 249 5831
Mailing Busctmd Mo 4910 Ocean Street Apsrtment Ho. :ﬂmm-t;-rﬂm
ay Iacksonvyille sut» Flonda ZpCes 32233
Femment | cxy Samo us ahove Beust ad We
Addmar Agartusmnt No,
Oty fiawte iovida Zp Coe
1P FEESONS (/TEES THAN A FILOT:

Wmmmmmwmofmmtmmmmmhmwby
the catablished rates: Not Applicable.
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REVISED AND UPDATED AFPLICATION FOR CHANGE OF RATES OF PILOTAGE

PART B

1. Name of Por for which mie change 18 being requested:
The combined port area covering the part of Jacksonville, Florida and the port of Fernandina, Florids.

The rate change being roquestad modifies and roplaces the existing rstes for pilotage and other related services for
vessels calling the ports of Jacksonville, FL end Fernandina, FL and subject to pilotage as per Florida Statute 310.141.

The formula for calculsting pilotage rates shall be modified from a base mte of. [Draft Rate x Draft + GT Rate x GT)
To a base pilotage rate of: LOA Rate x LOA + Beam Rate x Beam + Draft Rate x Draft + GT Rate x GT)

LOA = Length overall, Beam = extreme beam, Draft = Deepest draft, and GT = Gross Tonnage (1969 IMO Conv.)
All finear dimensions shall be fn feet and computed in half foot increments, or fraction thereof.

Gross Tonnage rate is per 1000 gross toms, or fraction iheroof

The initial rates in dollars per foot or per 1000 groas tons for Arrivals or Sailings shall be:

Vepsels of OT:  upto 10000 GT 10,001 10 40.000 GT  Over 40.000 GT

LOA Rate $0.75 $1.00 $125 $1.50
Beam Rate $3.75 $5.00 $8.50 $ 12.00
Draft Rate $ 22.50 $25.00 $ 30.00 $40.00
GRT Rate $ 12.50 $ 15.00 $22.50 $27.50

Minimum pilotage charge of $880 is based on minimums of: LOA = 300ft, Beam > 50ft, Draft = 1&1t, GT = 5,000

The pilotage rate for a barge towed on & hawser, towed alongside or pushed (not & composite anit) is based on the sum
of the LOA, Beam, Draft and GT attributes of the towing tug snd barge(s).

The pilotage rate for a tug pushing & barge in the notch as a composite unit is based on the barge’s LOA, Beam, GT
and deepest Dnaft of the combined unit.

ZnnnA(upmlmle)=V48undlrdPllohgu(S450mmmm]

Zone B (over 1 mile and up to 4 miles) = 4 Standard Pilotage ($600 minimum)

Zone C (over 4 miles and up to & miles) = % Standard Pilotage ($750 minimum)

Zone D (over 8 miles) = Standard Pilotage rate; regular LOA, Beam, Draft and GT rates apply

Zone B (Fuller Watren Bridge to Shands Bridge); in or out of Green Cove Springs, FI. = Standard Pilotage

Deemhnnofpilot slsowmmumwmmmm mmﬁmm.

Delayed arrival or sailing = $150 per half hour or fraction thereof after first half hour, no maximmum.

Standby charge when pilot is on the bridge part of the bridge team as in, but not limited to, holding a veasel in stream,
tending a vessel at anchor, making up & tow or breaking tow = $150 per half hour or fraction thereof, no maximum
Cancellation of pilot; if cancelled, detention rate of $150 per half hour will be charged from the pilot call out, (2 hours
before the ordered mrival time or 1.5 hours before the ordered sailing time), until notice of cancellation is received by
the pilot dispatched to the vessel or by the pilot office.

Port Control Foo >~ $100 per vessel handle par inbound or outbound transit
Training and Techmology Fee = $15 per vesscl handle per inbound or outbound transit
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In Femandins s docking and undocking rate based on & vesael’s LOA.
LOA lcss than 330 ft = No Charge

LOA 330 ft to lcss than 550 ft = $0.50 per ft LOA

LOA 550 ft and over = $0.75 per f LOA

At the discretion of the pilots covering the ports of Femandina and Jacksonville, an additional pilot may bo assigned
to any neo-panamax veasel, dead ship tow, or special circumstance veasel. The commensurate result being that said
vessel will be charged two standard pilotage fees,

Pilot kept on board vessel when a vessel departs tho port area = $250 per day plus First-class retum transportation

Payment is due upon invoicing. Balances beyond 45 days shall be considered in-arrears. Lines and Agencies in
arrears may be placed on a cash basis for future departures.

All rates and fees shall increase by 2.5% each year for 10 years starting on the anniversary date one year following the
effective date of this order.

3. Basis for requosted rate change:

Florida Statutes 310.151 (5) (a) In determining whether the requested rate change will result in fir, just, and
reasonable rates, the commitiee shall give primary consideration to the public interest in promoting and mainteining
efficient, reliable, and safe piloting services.

The St. Johns Bar Pilot Association Iast received a rate adjustment effective January 1, 2004. According to Buresu of
Labor Statistics consumer price index, today’s prices in 2019 are 35.82% higher than average prices throughout 2004,
The Association continues to spend gignificant amounts on boat repairs, and has had increases in operation costs,
including for salaries and related benefits. These improvemnents have been made in accondance with the mandate of
F.S. 310.0015 (3) (c) “Pilots shall maintain or secure adequats pilot boats, office facilities and equipment, dispstch
systems, communication equipment and other facilities, snd equipment and npport services necessary for a modern,
depeadable piloting opamation.”

The St. Johns Bar Pilot Association is secking the proposed rates in arder to maintain the efficient, reliable and safe
piloting service that the ports of Jacksonville and Femnandina currently receive. The ports areas of Farnandina and
Jacksonville were combined by the Florida Board of Pilot Commissioners in 2016. By initiating the combining of the
port arcas of Jacksonville and Fanandina the St. Johns Bar Pilot Associstion ensured the port of Fernandina would
continue to receive relisble piloting services. The port of Fernandina is small and previously faced the same
challenges of other small Florida ports. The ports of Pensacols and Psnama City have had significant issucs attracting
qualified spplicants for deputy pilot exam and retaining deputy pilots because of uncertainties i vessel traffic and
compensation.

This rate application attempis to simplify and replace the current rates for the combined port ares. 'We belicve that our
application’s praposed rate structure is fair, just and reasonable for all users requiring piloting services in the ports of
Jacksonville and Fornandina, We are proposing new mtes for the ports of Femandina and Jacksonville that are based
upon & vessels draft, gross tonnage, length overall and breadth overall. A similar version of thia pilotage rate stacture
is already being used in other major parts in Florida and will allow the cost of pilotage to be spread out more evenly
over all classes and sizes of vessels. The ports of Femnanding and Jacksonville have significantty longer pilotage
routes than the ports of Miami or Port Everglades, and the requested rate for pilotage has two additions] tiers to
address the additional transit time. The fourth tier is specifically for the ships over 80,000 gross tons with drafts over
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40f that will utilize tho now offihare boarding arca off of Jacksonville. The proposed rates will allow the St. Johns
BurPilotAmciutionmbemdymdcapd:hmtdilblynmpnunmomhmpihtbudingmmdhwm.
lfthcpmpoudnmmIPvaed.themmbimdpmﬂuomemdinldemhnnvﬂhwﬂllﬁﬂhvepﬂnhpm
that arc considezably less than other competing ports in the Southeast United States.

The formnla and rates for tugs and tows for Femandina and Jacksonville are currently differcot. The proposed mtes
would make the rates ﬁirmglmdbugunpmﬁn;ncompmitemﬁtormingonahmﬁleminhothm

ﬁcm&mﬁﬁiﬁghl@nﬂm“mwmmmmm_ Under the
mm.vmmumdmmmﬁmwmmmuwuwwﬁr
shifting seven miles. Thcpmpowdumﬁnuhiﬁhgmbuedmﬂnmulmﬁupbmmbmmwm
anchorages.

The currcat charges for Detention, Delay, Standby or Cancellstion of pilot are different for the ports of Femandina
and Jacksonville. The proposed chnxuﬁ)rDumﬁm.Dehy,SMyotCmochﬁmwouldbeﬂwmforhoth
mmmm«mwmmwmmrwmmmm“mudymmuﬁm.

TheSlOOpoxtcontmlfeeiunewfectooﬁ'nelﬁeongoin;coﬂofmnughgmlhiﬂcintbopuﬂoﬂmvﬂh
and Fernandina. Thceonﬁhedportmoﬂnckmvillundandimcovmowﬁ?nnnimlmiluofl?lmidn’l
mwm;thmmwlUMSmmmvmmme This would
nomnﬂyheﬂwmewithlﬁvaﬂlhlongmdwiﬂtﬂwmguhhmewhmuofmehlm The US Coast
Guard cutrusts the St. Johns Bar Pilot Association to manage the river and monitor vessel movements with what is
csacntially a private VTS. mwmmmmmmh-mwnwmwmmm
community but it is not without cost. There is a iarge suite of addinonai monitoring and cormmunication equipmeni
that allowa ua to efficiently provide this service which is normally performed by the U.S. government at great cost.
Wemleekingnponm&olbeofilwpavmlmitpahhamdaombmmdmdtmpuﬁdlyomm
cxpmuﬂﬂmmmmdmmviﬁngnpﬁvmﬁvuulﬁcmmimmgmdmnﬁm Our
mmmmdmmmmmumusummlmmmmmmammmy
and Mayport navy bascs on a rogular basis.

TheminingmdwdmohgyfeeofSISpavmlmitpainhmndumtbmmdnndthnmwﬁeemoovurmoltof
the Association’s annual expenses for training and maintaining our personal pilot units (PPUSs). Over the last five
yuntheSt.khmBuPﬂmA-odlﬁunhunpmtmwofSﬂ.SOOunhywﬁanhgudpﬂoﬁngm
mmmmmmmmu&mmmtmmmmmm-upmonm
piloting service. Under cur current tramning regime, our pilots attend manned model or simulstor training every five
years and follow the American Pilots Association (APA) guidelines for professional development. This continual
training itvolves manned models, ship handling simulstor classes and escort tug training. This training is relevent to
mmwmwmmmmmmmmmmmmmmammm
prepares our pilots for casualties such as losa of stoexing or propulsion. The next phase of our training will focus on
dmhﬂnaﬁehrg«ﬁipsﬁﬂwﬁaﬂm]wkmnvﬂhuﬁcﬁcﬂ-fnﬂchmdhpmmmhmmpw The
mhhgfwmqnmdhmhappuuﬁmhpmdmmnoffonwbemwuippdmdmdybma
deepenad river and harbor.

Fernandina currently has a docking or undocking charge of $125 for vessels under 350 foct and $175 for veasels over
350 fiset. If a tug or tugs are used to dock or undock there is currently an additional charge of $250. The proposed
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rete would modify and keep the docking and undocking charge in Fernandins. The proposed docking or undocking
rate in bascd on length overall (LOA) and distributos the risk associated with docking or undocking more cvenly
across the vessels that call the port of Femandine. The proposed rates: for vessels under 330 fi (100 meters) there will
be no docking or undocking charge, vesacls between 330 ft and 550 ft would be charged $0.50 per foot of LOA and
vessels 550 f and aver would be charged $0.75 per foot of LOA. Using the current rates, a 400 ft LOA ship using &
tug to dock or undock is charged $425 ($175+$250). If the proposed docking or undocking charge is spproved the
same 400 ft LOA ship would be charged $200 (4004t x $0.50/R) for docking or undocking with or without a tug.
Using the proposed rate a 600 ft LOA ship would be charged $450 (600ft x $0.75/ft) for docking or undocking with a
tug instead of $425.

There are rare instances where due to a vessel’s design, cargo stowage, lack of maneuvemability and/or the prevailing
conditions, two pilots may be needed to ensure a safe transit. Dead ship tows have beea two pilot jobs in Jacksonville
and currently require two pilots. The size of the largest ships that call on Jacksonville will continue to increase, and
we will have even leas margin for errar. We are requesting the option to place two pilots on & neo-panamax vessel if it
is deemed neccssary by the pilots. A special circumatance vessel would be a vessel with protruding cranes, obscured
visibilily due w deck cargo, or when moving a vessel when visibility is reduced.

The proposed rate for a pilot carried away to sea remaing unchanged. In extremely rare cases the weather, sea
conditions or other factors may provent a pilot from safely disembarking a vessel at doparture. The pilot would then
be carried to the next port of call and sent back to Jacksonville, This has not happened in cither port in the last 25
yeam and is simply a request that a pilot will be grantod return passage back to the combined port area of Fernandina
and Jacksonville if they are unable to disembark st departure.

The rates for Special Pilot Boat Sexvices for deliveries or water transporiation to vessels have been removed for both
ports. Offshore pexrsonnel transfers are risky for trained pilots and dangerous to technicians and ship persoone) that
are unaccustomed 10 boarding vessels at sea.

We are requesting a fixed annual ingrease of 2.5% each year for ten years starting on the anniversary date one year
following the effective date of this order. This is mrtually beaeficial to the Association, the Board and to our
customers. This will allow our rates to keep up with the projected rate of inflation and make further rate applications
unnecessary until almost twelve years from adoption. This saves the Board the expense, considerable time and
resources that must be allocated to mate hearings. For our customenn, this will allow twelve yoars of cost certainty. It
must be noted that ports outside of Florida are usually adjusted annually based on CPI-U and that is why Florids
pilotage rates and pilot compensation contimues to lag behind other ports in the United States.
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4 E Jacksonville effective date January 1, 2004
Chargs 2r0e k)
praft (13 foot minismm) $20.00 per draft foot $21.20 pexr draft foot
Toanage (3000 GAT minimum) §00.0437 pexr ORY $00.0464 per GET
Detention 9200 per hour, §400 max Ba=s
Cancalled sailing $200 Basa
filot{(s) kept oa boaxd, $250/day + return transportation BSama
railure to amand ETA $200 par hour, $400 max Bz=a
Standby $200 per hour, no maximum B
shifting within zone, W standazd pilotage Beza
Shifting fzom sone to =zoma standard pilotage Bama
Towing one pilot required standard pilotage Ba=a
Towing two pilots required atandard pilatage (1°%) ¢ min(2*) Bame
Deliver ordezs to Veesels $100 inside / 9200 outaide Ba=n
Water Tramsportation 925 par paraos / $150 minimm iz
Femnandina effective date January 1, 2011

Chaxgs Frem o
Draft (15 foot minimum) $23.09 per draft foot §25.35 paz dzaft foot
Tonnage 3000 GRY minisum §00.05183 per GRT §00.0570 par GRT
Dateantion or Delay $250 per hour, 500 max fe=me
Standby $250 per hour, no momimum Baibin
Canceled Ssiling % standsrd pilotage Bama
pilot{s) kept on board §280/day + veturn txamsportation BSeme
Shifting s230 Besa
Daad fhip Tow 1.5 = standaxd (full) pilotaga Bama
Tug/Barge Cosbiaation 1.5 = Deep Draft Ba=s
Docking/Uadocking over 350£t In/Out 175 Dasma
Docking/Undooking 3502t end leas In/Out §1as Hema
Docking with tughoat (e) #2258 (+ doaking/undocking) $250 (+ docking/undacking)
Personnel Transfexr $280 psx hour Bema
Miscsllupaous Charxgesa

Oxdaring Tegs, No Charxge Boesn

Oxdaring Linemen, No Charge Bama

Line Boat Barvice Wo Charge Be=a

5. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

{a) PILOT
Ploase attach the appropriate finmoial stateenent as Exhibit | or Exhubit IL
Soo Exbibit 1 - Audits and Projections
(v) EERSONS QTHER THAN A PILOT
lluwmh.mwmmmwdmuumﬂwumuw-umhofuhthlut-nf
pilowge? Not Applicable O YES ONO

Pleasc attach the appropriate financisl information as Bxhibit I or Bxhibit FII.
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*Number of Vessals Handled s
Tonnage of Vesscls Third Proceding Second Preceding Last Procading Estenated Cosrent Projected Next
Handled Fiacal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Yoar Fiscal Year Fiscal Year

F/Y/B: 127312016 F/Y/R; 1273172017 F/Y/B: 1273172018 FIY/R: 12/31/2019 F/YM:12/312020

Less than 500 GRT 158 152 195 210 200
500 < 1000 GRT 9 126 [£] 60 L]
1000 <2000 GRT 86 61 143 146 140
2000 < 5000 GRT 132 124 144 126 130
5000 < 10000 GRT 173 264 334 I 34
10000 < 20000 GRT 494 433 417 302 400
20000 GRT snd Over 2875 2831 2760 2918 250
Draft of Vessals Handled
Loas than 8 fool 94 94 120 166 160
8 <10 fomt 19 26 41 36 i
10 < 15 fost 140 152 __158 120 130
18 <20 foot 241 282 21 244 260
20 <25 foet 630 559 547 608 600
25 <30 foet 1657 1642 1603 1608 1600
30<35 feat 762 650 661 856 840
35 feet and Over 474 616 658 546 500

Length (LOA) of Vessals
Handled

Leas than 100 foet 24 35 38 40
100 <250 feet kX )| 304 397 388 400

250 <500 foet i 459 543 488 490

500 <750 foct 2236 2168 200 2266 260

750 feet and Over 1039 1025 1078 994 940
Canocllations per your®® 30 29 30 30 £

*Thase nurghers include tows. A tug and tow are scpamic vesscls but count 8s one (1) hmndic. In 2016 there were 290 tows, in 2017 thoro were 303
town, in 2018 there were 391 tows. Estimato of 380 tows for 2019. Estimate 370 towa for 2020,

**Cancellod vessols are counted ax handles, bot drit information is typically not recorded.  Total mmber of Cancellad vessels por year is shown.
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FEENANDINA

Toomage of Vessela
Handlod®

Third Preceding
Fiacal Year
F/Y/B: 12/3172016

Eecond Precading
Fiscal Year
F/Y/B: 12/31/2017

Number of Vensels Handlod m 5

Last Preceding
Fuscal Yosr
PIY/R: 12/31/2018

Fiacal Yoar*
F/Y/B: 1273172019

Projected Next
Fincal Year
P/Y/B:12/3172000

Lass then 500 GRT

500 < 1000 GRT

< 2000 GRT

2000 < 5000 GRT

S le v |o

5000 < 10000 GRT

0
0
o
64
BS

10000 < 20000 GRT

16

»> I8

» IBIB IR |e | |e

| 20000 GRT and Over
Draft of Vessels Handled

Less than 8 fest

8 <10 feot

10< 1S feet

]

15 <20 feet

72

20 < 23 feot

32

25 <30 fot

20

B N8

30<35 fox

3S faet snd Over

Length (LOA) of Vessels
Handled

Lass than 100 foct

100 < 250 faet

250 < 500 foet

160

147

110

500 < 750 fisct

12

16

12

750 feet and Over

Cancellations per year**

%2019 estimates based on actnal handlos for firet 6 months of 2019.

*#Cuncelled vessels are counted ss handles, but wo druft information is reconded.,  Total sumber of Cancelled vessels per yoar is thown.
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7. Comparison of the avernge net income of pilots in the port, using current rates, including the value of all benefits detived
from services as a pilot, to the projected average net income using the requested rates.

With requested rates

Combioed Port Area | FRIORPRIOR YEAR | PRIORYEAR20!8 | Basod oo Jom thru june | PROJECTED YEARI-

2017 PRESENT YEAR 2019 2020
Total Numbez of Pilots 13.6 14.0 13.8 14
Gross Pilotage Foce $9,834.459 $9,887,915 $9,887,915 $11,453,256
Opesating Expeases $4,462,037 $4,317,644 $4,265,937 $4,605,029
Net Income $5,372,422 $5,570,.271 $3,621,978 $6,848.227
Aven.p Net lncoms
Pex Pilor $395,031 $397,877 $407,390 $489,159

*Aftar combining the poets of Jacksonville and Fomnandina on March 1%, 2016, the pilot in Fernanding has received 1/3 (33.33%) of the
groas pilotsge foes. This was $56,496 for 2017 and $62,724 in 2018. The state pilot in Fernandina retired November 1, 2018 after 44
yoars of service. The part of Fernandina is now covered by pilots who are licensed for both the port of Fernandina snd the port of

Jacksonville,

Itemize Other Reasonable Operating Expenses of Pilots: (unsudited)

SEE AUDIT AND PROJECTION
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(mw.y) ..‘ AVAR A2 A A . 3

CHARLESTON, SC - (fuly 1,2019) ~ $1,300.00 $26.85 per draft foot $0.06583 per GT
SAVANNAH, GA -(July 1,2019)  $1,365.64 $27.54 per draft fivat $0.06606 per GT
BRUNSWICK, GA - (April 1,2019)  $1,019.92 $26.24 per draft foot $0.06189 per GT
MOBILE, AL - (e 1, 2019) $ 976.25 $38.00 per draft foot $0.06250 per GT

_gm_mm Auof&mmmpﬂumhvamwmm 'i‘hmeldd:nomlclurmw
include docking and undocking charges, tumning charges, fuel surcharges, boat fees, communication foes, and
other charges in addition to their base pilotage rate. The pilots in the ports of Charleston, Savannah and Brunswick
received rate increases in 2019 based on the CPI-U adjustment for 2018 of 1.9%. The pilots in Mobile received
a mate increase June 1, 2019. The Florida ports of Fernandina and Jacksonville are overdue for a rate increase to
offiet the inflationary price increases of the last 8 to 15 years.

Jacksonviile & Fernanding Charieston, SC Savannsh, GA Mobile, AL, Brunswick, GA

Vessel and (Type) strcopested rates  as of 7/1/19 as of 771719 as of ¥/1/19 as of /1719
BOT Spar (Container) $891.25 $1300 +45.6% $1366 +52.9% $1090 +22.2% $1020+14.2%
Steaaweco Excollemce (Tanker) $2370.95 $2787 +18.0% $2825 +19.2% $3055 +28.9% $2598 +12.2%
W. K. Blount (Bulker) $2553.62 $3170+24.1% $3198 +25.2% $3384 +32.5% $2938 +17.8%
Guoodwood (Car carrier) $3898.92 $4671 +19.8% $4703 +20.6% $4784 +22.7% $4314 +13.3%
Camival Ecstacy (Cruise) $4335.69 $5369 +23.5% $5402 +24.3% $5415+24.9% $4953 +16.7%
MOL Marvel (Poat Panamax) $5350.93 $6070 +15.4% $6110+16.2% $6339-+18.5% N/A
MSC Beatrice (Neopanamax) $9663.87 $11161 +14.5%5$11224 +15.2% N/A N/A
Vessel Type LOA () Beam (ff) Draft (ft) GT

EOT Spar Container 300 53 18 2,762

Stensweco Excelleace Tanker 601 106 32 29429

W. H. Blount Bulker 736 106 30 35,904

Goodwood Car Carrier 656 106 28 59,516

Camival Ecstasy Cruise 860 103 26.5 70,526

MOL Marvel Container 991 142 38 78316

MSC Beatrice® Container 1,200 168 44* 151,559

*would be required to utilize the new offshore boarding area

b) (REQUIRED BY PILOT APPLICANT/OPTIONAL BY NON-PILOT APPLICANT)

Time Speut by Applying Pilot Time Spent by Applying Pilot on Other
on Actual Piloting Duty Esacntial Suppatt Servioes
(Actual Hourv/Y ear) (Achual Hours/Year)

The workload for the combined port area of Jacksonville and Femandina is divided between two duty waiches of
scven pilots cach, Pilots rotate on pilot duty for 21 days and off pilot duty for 21 days to cover vessel traffic,. While on
watch, a pilot is "on call” and must remain in constant communication with the pilot station and be available on shost
notice 24 hours per day. The pilot who will receive the next available ship is known ae the “first bonrd pilot”. During s
typical 168 hour week, each on-duty pilot will spend about 24 hours as the first board pilot. In a given year each pilot will
spead an average of 624 hours on sctive standby as the first board pilot. The first board pilot sczves as the lead pilot for
the Association and works with the dispatchers and vessel agents to sct vessol stast in times based on tide windows and
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coordinate vessel traffic. The first board pilot handles special circumstances such as overdraft vessels, USCG Capiain of
the Port Orders, port infrastructure and berth depth questions. The first board pilot is also responsible for re-opening the
river afler it has been closed due to fog or extreme westher. The first board pilot for Femanding works with the agents to
order tugs and sct arrival and sailing times. When the first board pilot is dispatched to a job the duty of first board pilot is
passed oato the next pilot in the rotation.

On average, each pilot also covers an additional week per year as a standby pilot. When a duty watch is short
(dus to injury, sickneas, etc.), a standby pilot comes in and kesps the watch fully manned with soven pilots. This is
needed to avoid vessels from being delayed due to a shortage of pilots during peak sailing times. A standby pilot may
also be called in during periods of overload. Overloads usually occur after periods of fog, or any other teeporary port
closing. When scheduling pilots, consideration is not given for weekends, holidays or the time of day or night, Pilots
work in strict rotation except that a pilot may take an eight (8) hour rest period if he foels it is unsafe to continuo without
such a rost. The current compliment of 14 state pilots allows for two watches of seven pilots each. This is normally
sufficient to cover periods of peak demand.

For the most recently completed year (2018) the 14 licensed state pilots for the Ports of Jacksonville and
Femandina handled an average of 276 vessels cach. The average bridge time for the primary commercial berths varies
from sbout 2 hours to just under 4 hours. The current average bridge time of 3.0 hours per handle has been slowly
increasing as larger veascls require slower transit spoeds to svoid surging moored vessels and construction barges. These
large ships require more time to turn around and have longer docking and undocking evolutions due to additional mooring
lincs. The large container ships calling Blount Island Terminal also requirc an additional hour to proceed inbound through
thhe Dames Point Bridge to turn sround. The turning ares off Bloont Island is only 1,075 feet wids and ths larger ontainer
ships must proceed inbound throngh the Dames Point Bridge and turn sround in the TRAPAC tuming basin. The length of
time for the outbound transit for vessels over 36 feet is also increasing as the largest and deopest outbound veasels are
proceeding outbound against flood curent. Whean the harbor decpening project is complete, the new deep draft boarding
ares will add an bour of bridge time to the inhound and outbound transits of the large neo-panamax container ships.

The pilots who serve the ports of Jacksonville and Fernandina resido in the combined part ares. The average
transportation time per handle is about 2.0 hours in Jacksonville and sbout 3.0 hours per handle for Femandine. Most of
the pilots who cover both ports live closer to the pilot station and commercial berths in Jacksonville. The sverage travel
time for the pilots who cover Fernandina is longer due to the distance traveled to and from a job. The time speat on the
pilot boat to embark or disembark a pilot is shout 0.5 hours in Jacksonville and 1.0 hour for Femmnding. When the deep
water boarding ares is established off of Jacksonville the time on the pilot boat will increase by half sn hour during fair
weather. Due to the unpredictable vehicle traffic in the combined port area, we try to arrive anboand approximately 30
minutos before a veasol is scheduled to depart. This preventa delsy to sailing vessols and allows pilots time to familiarize
themselves with the vessel and start making traffic arrangements with other commercial vessels,

Each pilot also spends an average of 10 hours per woek (520 hours/year) managing Association business and
providing cascatial support to the ports of Jacksonville and Fernandina. This essential mupport is performed by the
Associstion President, the Associstion Vice President, Technology pilot, and the pilot responsible for the pilot boats.
PMMWEMMMMM&MWN&IMM&MM
board, Jacksonville Propeller Club executive board, Florida Board of Pilot Commissioners board, Jacksonville Harbor
MMMMWPMMM&WM&MWWeWU.S.
Implementation Team (SEIT). The pilots also work closely with the U.S. Coast Guard, the U.S. Army Corps of
Engmeers, the Jacksonville Port Authority (JAXPORT) and the Nasssu County Ocean, Highway and Port Authority to
promote safety and port growth,

The St. Johna Bar Pilot Association is 2 key member of the NE Florida Port Coordination toam. The Associstion
assists the USCG in the verification of critical aida to navigation (ATONS) after & tropical storm or burricane. The pilots,
boatmen and dispatchers are some of the lust people to evacuste and some of the first to retum afier & storm has passed.
mmu,mmmmmmmmwﬁumMMn&ummmofﬁmm
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Jacksonville and recstsblishing commercial ship traffic. The St. Johns Bar Pilot Associstion was instromental in the
reoponing of the ports of Fernandina and Jacksonville within 24 hours of the passing of Hurricane Dorian.

Upon completion of the Jacksonville Harbor deepening project, ships smiving with drafts aver 40 feet will be
required to be boarded and disembarked much farther offshore in order to avoid the scatiored shoal areas East of our
current sea buoy. The sew offshore boarding area for Jacksonville will be Jocated in the vicinity of latitude 30-19.9 N,
longitude 081-09.5 W, and will require our pilot boats to run an additional nine 10 ten miles farther offchore. Moving the
pilot boanding area farther offshore and into deeper water will greatly reduce the potential for a ship grounding along the
northeast conat of Florida. This will significantly increase our handle time for these larger vessels. It will also directly
impact our operation by increasing our transit time out o snd returning from deep draft shipa by 30 io 45 minntes and wili
add significant cost in terms of bost maintenance, manpower, and fuel. Planning is alrcady underway to ensure adequate
resources are availablo to meet the challengea of these deeply laden neo-panamax vesscls. A new pilot boat with the
ability to handle the new offshore boarding requirements will be noeded when the new deep water boarding srea is being
used regularly. The cstimated construction coat for this type of purpose-built boat are 2.6 to 2.8 million dollars for a 56
foot pilot boat and 3.8 to 4.0 million dollars for a 64 foot pilot bost.
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The hivestigutive Report for the 2017 Miami Rate hearing states that "the piloting profession should be the
furemost profession 1 compare colpensation, because Florida ports compete with all of the other piloting
organtzations in the U 8. and the world to atiact and hold the best qualified pilots."

Recently, the Investigative Committee included the below findings in it's report for the Pilotage Rate Review
Committee for the Port of Panama City’s application for change of mates of pilotage.

“hﬁeZOlZAdminiﬂnﬁvcHwhgontthmtothPim,Judchuﬁnfmcmmdodmdcr
lahnwledgedﬂ:atnaﬁmwide,wmcmpmuﬁmforpﬂoumabommﬂwpcym.

Captain George Quick, Vice President of Master Mates and Pilots has provided testimony st many of the
previous rate hearings from 2014 to 2018. Recently he testificd that US pilots earned an average of above
$410,000 to $498,000,

Another maritime consultant, Dibner Maritime Associates, LLC, provided testimony at the 2014 Miami hearing
wid)atabulnﬁonofpilotnctincomcforZSUSpm,lndhﬁlgarnndm,mwmm.udm
average of $500,000.

Oﬂmrthanapilot,tlmmonmlcmt,oompmhlepm&uioniuaptainmnlugeus.ﬂnm«ml.
However,ﬂwll:ilh,rilhmdwmkingcondiﬁonsofuhip'seqminmddmtofapilotmmﬁdmbly
different:
-Apilotmustlmreawidermgeofwuhnicllskillsbemnofthevaﬁetyofsimmdopenﬁmwhmd]ing
characteristics of the vessels he handles.
-Apilntumeumorephyliultilhbemmoftheboudingmdhoardingofﬂ:evusolsingoodmdbad
weather.
-Apilotilcomhmlypllcedinlmmﬁﬂaimlﬁmbeumhndﬁnglvmlin,mnmdmmdlpaﬁ:
usually the riskiest situation that a vessel encounters.
-Whmusa:hip’lclpuininmcmployoeofﬂlelhip'sowner,npﬂolisn;nimbuﬁmmnwholmmuthe
ﬁsh:ndmwnﬂsof;ﬂmhmﬁngmﬂmkmﬂndhhveﬂhplﬂmdequipnm;mdmemﬁmuy
improve his skills and train depoty pilots.
-mmmmmmmmmhm.Vuhﬁommmﬁmofﬁm;mﬂdm
systems; mﬁpﬁmeqtﬂpmmtmimmdmmmminﬁmtﬁﬂﬂmgw}ofmw;homormw
mechanical failures; weather events, and unexpected traffic complications make each handle unique.”

WhentheawcmnpmuﬁomutimnmforullUSpiloumu‘ljumdforinﬂation.thepﬂotsoftheSLJohm
Barl’ilotAnociaﬁonmcmmﬂyeompmnwdualewlBELOWthcmﬁmalAVERAGEmddmﬂﬁumly
BELOW other pilots in major ports in the Southeast United States. Without equitable compensation the ports in
the state of Florids are not going to be able to attract the best applicants.
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Pilotage Chargo Prosent Churge Actual Revenue Raquested Rovenue Based Incressed Pesoeatage of
Fem us of: for 12 Moniha Charge on Requested Roveauo Based Incressed
i Charge, & on Requested Roverue 0n
. Application Applied to Chargs Appliad Preceding 12
dackacnyille Year snded :fmnlAuM:yz 10 Preceding 12 | Months Activity
4/30/2014 Montha ¢
DRAFT &L‘:ﬁ:g& $119.498 $6,904 61%
PecFoot ... 10,001 - 40k AT | $757,175 $115,090 179%
z:imn = $25.00 per foot
Over 40,000 0T | $1,792,500 $525,800 4%
g'm perdmft | $2,184,46 38,00 per oot
Over B0,000GT | $0 $0 N/A
Miniomm 15 & & Over 407t draf
= $40.00 per fhot
Minirmum18 fi
0 10000GT=
m slz'sow lm m-416 (-363.505) (-73.1 ")
Per 1000Geoss | o 0 e GRT 10,001- 40k GT= | $412,156 (-$862,780) 67.1%)
Tos ﬂf‘(m per $15 00 per 1,000
IMO conveation) ﬁ": ""I- . 'Im, 37,110,551 Over 40,000GT | $2.713,367 (-$2,582,196) 515%)
Grh Iﬂ‘: S"nm m) "322.50 Wlm
Maximum Over 40t dnft & | 30 $0 N/A
GT =nane Minisum Over §0,000 GT
3000GRT =$27.50 par1 000
Minimmum S000
. 0-10,000 GT
o4 CraRGE: $0.75porkot | $70,188 78188 Now Chasge
Vomel Length
Ovenll 10,001 - 40k GT | $654,751 $654,751 Now Charge
=51.00 pex foot
None 0 Ovec40,0000T | $1,841,179 $1,341,179 New Chargo
=$1.25 per oot
OverdOfidnit & | g0 $0 N/A
Owur 80,000 GT
=$1,50 per bot
300 ft
0- 10,000 GT
% $3.7Sprfoot | 363351 63351 New Chage
Vessel Boam 10,001 —40x GT | $503,117 $503,117 Now Charge
= $5.00 per foot
None s0 Over 40,0000T | $1,834,892 $1,854,892 New Charge
= $8.50 par foot
Over 40t dnt & | 30 $0 N/A
over 80,000 GT
$12.00 per foot
Miwinmum 50 ft
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v || 18
coI NTROL FEE: Nons 100 Charge
co : $0 $ $352,100 $352,100 New
mmomnm%v None s1s 888
TECHNOLOG) $0 025 88,025 Naw Charge

— Undar 1 mile
All Vessels . ;::om“: $8,239 $3,239 New Charge
Veasals without
stsering/motive | In Zone; 1< 4 miles
s | ja | *basepdotsge | 563,820 o fmdacdratn | 365,578 ($1,758) (27%)
Zones:
4 <Bmiles
;’:omm' mee | 519,995 $19995 New Chasge
Zome to Zane-
Full pllotage $121,742 e | s1La67 ($10,575) (8.7%)
CHARGES:
: $150 per half
$200 per hour, afier first $7950w
) aftcr first balf $10.500 hoar $15,900 $26501085,300 | (-25%) to 50%
- hour Bom tme | 54450t 41,5508
Cancellstion $200 $6,200 gllocwas $13,950 $7.750 (-25%) to 125%
EII'.N‘I, Silllp-hm s0 &pww
0 %0 NA
Boat Sexvices $25 to $150
$2300 Removed Removed Ramoved Removed
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FERNANDINA
Pilotage Charge | Present Charge Actual Rovenue | Roequested Revenue Based Increased Percentage of
Thom na of for 12 Moaths Chasge oo Requasted Revenne Basad Incressed
Mil" Charge, 88 on Requested Revenue on
E i Application Applied o Chargo Applied | Preceding 12
Year ended Actual Agtivity to Preceding 12 | Months Activity
a0 4302018 of Procoding 12 | Momths
Months
0 - 10,000 GT
DRAFT $2250pex ok | $54,067 (-§264) 03%)
Per Foot, . .. $25.35 pec draft 10,001 - 40k GT | $I -$231 -14%;
Minirmum to foot $71,062 =£m per foot b ! ) 0
foat
Minjrmum L5 ft Over40,000GT | $0 $0 N/A
= $30.00 per foot
Ovar £0,000 GT
& Ovor 40 dnaft | $0O $0 NA
= $40.00 per fhot
Mininm] 8 ft
0 - 10,000 GT =
TONNAGE $1250 per 1,000 | $9,001 (-827.665) (-15.2%)
CHARGES;
Per 1000 Groas | $0.0570 per GRT 854,301 10,001- 40k GT= | 34617 (-$12,928) -13.7%)
Tans or fraction $15.00 per 1,000
thereof
Minimim ($57.00 pex 1000 Over 40,000GT | $0 $0 N/A
GRT gross regsiered =$22.50 por1 000
Iaxiaym tons)
GRT - none ) Ovor 408 draft &
P Over 80,000GT | $0 0 NA
3000GRT =£$27.50 pex1 000
Mininmm 5000
0- 10,000 GT
o~ $0.7S per ot $33,580 $33,580 New Charge
Vessel Length
Ovemnll 10,001 —-40k GT | $13.440 $13,440 New Charge
=31.00 per foot
Nooe 30 Over 40,000GT | $0 $o N/A
=$1.25 per foot
Over 40f draft & N/A
ovrso,000GT | %° =
=31 50 per foot
M’“&mn
0-10,000 QT
$3.75 por foot $24977 $24 951 Now Charge
Vessol Bogm 10,001 - 40k GT | $9,541 $9,541 New Charge
= §5.00 per fhot
None $0 Over 40,000 GT | $0 $0 NA
= $8.50 per foot
Over 401t druft & N/A
over 80,000 GT e .
= $12.00 por foot
Minkmom 50 ft

IC Report Page 70

PSP000950




REVISED AND UPDATED APPLICATION FOR CHANGE OF RATES OF PILOTAGE

Exh. DL-28
Page 93 of 187

| | 17
[ FORT

g.N‘I‘ROL FEE: | Noas $0 $100 $15,200 $15,200 New Chargo

'lﬂ%l

TECHNOLOGY 15

- Nooe $ $3,800 $3,800 New Charge

DOCKING/ Under 350 ft = Under 330 f =

UNDOCKING: | §125 . NoCage | %0 (:38,750)

All Voasols . .. Total docking Total Docking
350 f and aver~ $28,650 308<5508= | g16,384 with new ate =
$175 $0.50 per ft LOA (-3966)

(334%)
= 550 ftend over = | $2683 $133.50
mm $0.75 per R LOA

SHE Under | mile

All Vossels . . . ;go'mm New Charge Now Charge Now Charge

Veasels without

stocring/motive $250 $0 1 <4 aniles

power, . .. " = 15 gtandard rate 50 s0 $0

Minimum . . minimum

Zonos: S0

4 <8 miles

=% standard rate

7% Now Charge New Churge Now Charge
OverSmils= | $0 0 $0
standard plotage

OTHER $150 pec half

CHARGES: hour $300 o0 $500 (-$200) 0 5100 | (40%) po +20%

Detention $250 par bour $500

. $150 per half
Cancellstion 1/2 standard $853 hour $4%0 (-3403) (47%)
pilotge rts
$150 per half
Standby $250 por hour ) Foim s 0 NA
Boat Sexvices $250 per houe $2,500 Removed Removed Ramovad Removed
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ia 2.1 hours

3.6 hours
bours

FERNANDINA ~ From Pilot

Lengths of Various "Pilotage Waters” Channala:

Include “Average Length® of Pilotage Trip and estimated time to complete pilotags "dock to dock®.

IACKSONVILLB From Pilot Boarding/Dissmbariking Area in vicinity of ses buoy “STI” to;
BAE Shipyard = 8.0 nautical miles; Estimated transit timo is 1.0 hour; Bstimated time to All Fast is 1.5 hours
JAXPORT Blount Island Terminal = 12.75 nmtioal miles; Estimated transit time is 1.6 hours; Estimated time to All Fast

Ares in vicinity of sea buoy “STM™ to:

- TRAPAC Torminal = 14.2 nautical miles; Estimated mbound transit time is 1.8 hours; Estimated time to All Fast is 2.3
- mms-lsmluﬁdmnu;wmmuz.omummﬁmmmmurmns.Om
- JAXPORT Talleyrand Termingl = 21 ngutical miles; Estimated transit time 15 2.6 hours; Estimated time to All Fast is 3.1
- North Florida Shipyard = 22,5 nautical miles; Estimated transit time is 2.8 hours; Estiraated timo to All Fast is 3.3 hours
- Groen Cove Springa = 46 nautical milos; Batimated transit time is 5.8 hours; Bstimated time to All Fast is 6.3 hours

- Nassan Tenminal = 11.8 nautica! miles; Estimated transit time is 1.5 hours; Eatimated time to All Fast is 2 hours

The above calculations for Jacksonville and Fernandina assume the vesssi ix a skip with a totsl average transit speed of
ammmmmumwnmwu.wwmmhm Ih

nqubdmrdunupcdham‘wtomwwmfwoﬂrw Ships with drafis over 3G proceed outhound
against flood current. The toial average outbound speed for the large contuiner ships is claser to 4.75 knots from when
the siip riariz letting go linas o when the pilot is disembarked offshore. Tugs with hawssr sows are typically
underpowered, slower, and have longer transis times thon ships or ATBs.
*ATBs, Tenk barges and Tankers Rave lorger docking and undocking evolutions at the ianker beriks due to smidller deck
crew, the use of a line boat and the increased number of mooring lines required by the ofl terminals,

JACRSONVILIE, FL
HAME OF CHARMEL

St. Johms Bar Cut Ranga East
§t. Johnms Bar Cut Rangs West
Pllot Towm Cut

Mayport Cut

Bharman Cut

Mile Point Lowsr Range and Turn
Training Wall Raach

Short Cut Twrm

Ehits Ebells Cut

8t. Jobns Bluff NReach

Demss Pt.-Fulton Cutoff
Damas Pt. Turm

Rlouat Island Channal
Mlount Island Esst Channel
(uarantine Islsod Upper Rmnge
Brills Cut Range

Broward Poiat Tura

Dromasnd Creek Rangs

Trout River Cut

Chasevilla Tusa

Long Branch Hasge

Terminsl Channel

Hart Bridge to Fullar Warran

Intra-cosstal Naterway

(lﬁﬂ
800
760
{ 14]
760
625
[ +1]

475-625
578

450-600
6§00
473

1173
300
300
aas

425-600
€00
400
400

8300-600
630

500-575
200

Tuller Earren to Grean Cove Springs 200

100

JACKSCHVILLE TOTAL ROUTR

mmmmnvm rluapw.am"cm=

LENGTH
(MADTYCAL MYLES)

3.27

1.67

NwoooKaoMDONMON
i TR el T T i
VEFOANBUBOEE S W
CeaasasaRIRgE

a8
'YX R
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FERANDIMA, FL WIDTR LENGTH PROJECT DEPTH
NAME OF CHAMISET. {FRET) (MADTICAL MILES) FEET (MLLN)
Entrance Channal 500 .5 46
Range A (Inner Ancharage) 482 1.5 45
Quarantioa Hesch 400-1100 1.7 3¢
0ld Town Reach 400-360 0.3 36
Beaboard Reach 400 0.6 3¢
0.7

City Front Reach 250 a8 {22)

FERMAMDINA TOPAL ROUTE 14.3

TOTAL for ocombined port area is over 67.7 nautical miles of Florida's navigable waters.

JACKSONVILLE

Severe and dangerous set across the jottios and bar channel. The estuary system that feeds the St. Johns River results in strong
cross currents that st vessols out of the channel in several sections of the lower St. Johns River. The ship chammel in Yacksonville
ummwmmmwmumhﬂmawwwhmammmu
waterwsy. Due to the age of the ship channel, many bertha and docks are closer to the ship channel than the USCG and ACOE
guidelinea for berth and dock scthacks. The rocent snd dramstic increase in ship size has resultod in extremely tight clearances
betweon ships and the overhead obstructions crossing the St. Johns River. The cruise vesse) calling Jacksonville reguiarly has
loss than 6 feet of clearance when passing through the center span of the Dames Point Bridge. When the chanmel was decpened
10 40 fect the channel sections of White Shells Cut and St. Johns Bluff Reach were namowed from 900 foet to 600 foet in width,
mmmm-mmmmcmdmmmmmmhmmmwmimm
way traffic.

FERNANDINA

Severe and dangerous set across the bar channel at the jettios and strong cross currents on the Amelia River. High concentrations
of pleasure boats, shritp fleet vossels and ICW traffic. The tidal currents are among the strongest in Florida and variation in the
height of tide is the largest in Florida. Pihhh?anmdhndeﬂuﬁlhthlddiﬂmﬂdnﬂmnfﬁmihdwm.

List "Weather-velated” Huzards to Navigation:

JACKSONVILLE and FERNANDINA

Sessonal dense fog is prevalent in both port areas, Heavy min squalls can be encountered throughout the year but coour more
frequently during the summer months. Strong Nos'easters canse dangerous conditions for boarding and disembarking vessels
mhMMMMAMMMWMNﬁMMmmwm-mmm
across the end of the jettics and the condition is ussally dangerous.

IhmhhﬁmwhyAmdﬁmumﬁlm.MW.memm.dmwmhp«ﬁ
pilotege waters and provide reasons for same:

JACKSONVILLE
Maximmm Draft of 40 fi based on 40 & Federal Channel, Minimum 5% UKC required for eafie navigation, No length restrictions,
No tonnage restrictions. No beam restrictions, Air Draft beyond Demes point is limited by Dames Point Bridge (174 f at center),

FERNANDINA
Motimum Draft of 36 fi bused on 36ft Federal Chennel. Minumum 2t UKC required for safe navigation. Tugs and Bargos of
mhhdzm&meummhmdnmthbwwmﬁuﬂnmm.

Ofther Relovant [nformation
Jacksonville is one of 22 strategic seaports for the United States. The St. Johns Bar Pilot Associstion provides piloting service to

U.Smﬁﬁvuhm' times of mobilization.
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According to 8 2018 economic study, the port of Jacksonville has a regional economic impact of more than 31.1 billion
dollars annually. In 2019 JAXPORT was voted by poet users as the best post in the country to do business. The efficient,
relisble and safe piloting services provided by the St. Johna Bar Pilot Association has helped make Jacksonville a port of
chaice for many shippers. The coastal waters of North East Florida sttract visitors from all over the world and the pilots
of the St. Johns Bar Pilot Association have an excellent safety rocord, thereby protecting this important marine

environment.

SEE ATTACHED AUDIT AND TABLE IN SECTION 7 OF THIS APPLICATION

3. Reasonable operating expenses of pilots.
SERE AUDIT

4. Pilotago rales in other porty.

The four ports that most directly compete with the Ports of Jacksonville and Fermandina for import and export cargos
are the ports of: Mobile, Alsbama; Charleston, South Carolina; Savannsh, Georgia and Brunswick, Georgia. These are
tidal river ports and have similar tidal ranges, tidal current strength, channel dimensions, configurations, and serve the
same types of vessels that call the ports of Jackuonville and Fernandina.

Charleston, SC (July 1, 2019) Minimum Charge: $1,300.00

Draft Rate - $26.85 per foot (15ft minimum)

Gross Tonnage Rate - $65.83 per 1,000 gross tons

Additional Charges — Fuel Surcharge per transit (changes monthly; $52 to $85)

Savannah, GA (July 1, 2019) Minimum Charge: $1,365.64

Draft Rate - £27 54 per foot (15ft minimum)

Groas Tonnage Rate - $66.06 per 1,000 gross tons, or fraction thexeof
Additional Charges — Safety and Commaunication Fee of $74.54 per movement

Brunswick, GA (April 1, 2019) Minimmym Chaxrge: $1,019.92
Draft Rate - $26.24 per foot (20ft minimum)
Groas Tonnage Rate - $61.89 per 1,000 gross tons, or fraction thereof (8,000 gross tons minimum)
Additional Charges — $936.98 per call ($468.49 per transit)
Pilot Boat fund $225 per call
Communications Fee of $175 per call
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Docking Pilot Charge $536.98 per call)

Mobile, AL (hune 1, 2019) Minimum Charge: $97625
Draft Rate - $38.00 per foot (15f minimum)
Gross Tonnsge Rate - $62.50 per 1,000 GT
Additional Charges —$20S per transit plus 6.5% surcharge for transportation and Safety Fducation
Communications Fee - $10.00
Pilot Boat Fund - $100.00
Capital Boat Fund - $45.00
Cspital Improvemeant Fee - $50.00
5% Transportaion/Fuel Surcharge per veasel transit
1.5% Safety Bducation Surcharge per vesse! tranait

SEE SECTION 8. (b). of this spplication. Averages based on 14 state pilots.

4,380 hra/year on waich (365 dxys x 24 hra pex day) / 2 watches

625.7 hra/year active standby as first board pilot (4,380 hre / 7 duty pilots

822 hra/yr bridge time (274 handles x 3 hrs (svg)

548 bre/yr transportation time (274 handles x 2 hrs (avg)

520 bre/yr essential support services (52 weeks x 10 hrs per week) may or may not be performed while “on watch”

SEE SECTION 8 (c)
"At the Miami rate hearing in 2017 the Rate Reviow Board agread that the pilot compensation for major Florida ports
(such as Jacksonville) should be in comparabls to the compensation of pilots in other major ports in the United States.
The pilots of the St. Johns Bar Pilot Associstion are currently compenssted significantly Jess than their peers in the
Southeast and in other major ports in the United States.

The requested rate change is needed to attract the best and most qualified individuals. The current draft rates for
Jacksonville are 39.9% LESS than the average of the draft rates for Charleston, Savannsh, Brunswick and Mobile. The
current tonnage rates for pilotage in Jacksonville average 38.1% LESS than the piloiage rates in these ports that most
directly compare and compete with Jacksonville. Based on comparisons of net income, the Florida pilots who cover the
ports of Jacksonville and Fernandina are compensated at rates that are 35% to 45% LESS than the pilots in ncsrby ports in
the Southeast. Without an increase in pilotage rates the combined port area of Jacksonville and Femnandina will not be
able to attract the best professional mariners. Pilot compensation as stated in Florida Statutes Chapter 310.051 amplifies
the need to “hold the beat and most qualified individuals” with adequate levels of compensation. Thirteen of the fourteen
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pilollwoddn;hJMhW.UMMMMUMMLMﬁ:mhdmywm
upon oceans prior to starting their training as & deputy pilot. An Unlimited Master’s Liconse is the highest license issued
by the United States Const Guard to mariners and is & testament to the experience, initiative and ability of the holder. The
majority of the applicants for the most recent deputy pilot exams lacked this lovel of qualification or cxperience. Pilots
aro well compensated due to their critical role in port infrastructure, environmental protection and port security.
Presently, Jacksonville pilots are compensated far below the national average for 8 port of this size and far below the
pilots in the ports of our closest competitors. This proposed mte leaves the pilots of the St. Johns Bar Pilot Association
positionod nour the average of other pllot assoclations nationally and should ensure that we can attract the “best and most
qualified individuals™,

8. Projected changes in veusel traffic,

Over the last 5 years the trend in veasel traffic is an increase in vessel size and overall carrying capacity, and an overall
decrease in traffic volume. The number of vessel handles had been decreasing slightly while the volumes of autos,
containers and bulk commoditics moving through the port of Jacksonville increased (See table below). The In 2009 the
largest container ships calling Jacksonville carried 4,500 TEUs. Ten years lster wo are handling 11,000 TRU capacity
vessels in Jacksonville. Looking shead, the mmber of total vessal handles for the sombinad port sres should be steady.

In June of 2019, the container shipping company CMA-CGM stopped calling on the port of Jacksonville. CMA-CGM
had been calling Jacksonville since 2009, and the weekly servico was made up of large poat panamax ships. Loging those
ships represents around a $250,000 decrease in our 2019 estimated revenue and a $500,000 decrease in our initial 2020
projections due to the large LLOAs, beams, gross tonnages and drafts of those ships.

The curreat harbor decpening project should help attract new liner sexvices to Jacksonville, but the now post panamax
vessels that are currently calling the southeast are not close to their carrying capacity. It will take several years of
continued increases in contamer import and expoit volumes before more ships are nesded to call.

Petroleum tanker and ATB traffic should remain steady.

Bulk sggrogaie imports will continue to fluctuate with construction demand. In 2017 the coal berth st Blount lsland
thut down. The power plant that it supplied has been demolished and there sre currently no planas for this berth.

Auto carrier traffic should remain steady, but Jacksonville faces steep competition from Brunswick, Ga and the Georgis
Ports Authority.

Puerto Rico trado container volumes should remain steady in the near future, but there has been an exodus of more than
130,000 Puerto Ricans from Puerto Rico since hurricane Masia in 2017, Since the pharmaceuticsl and textile
manufacturers began to pull out of Puerto Rico in 2006, the economy of Puarto Rico has contracted and the US Temitory
is over 74 billion dollars in debt.

Cruise ship traffic in Jacksonville is steady, with Camnival expected to have ships call through 2021. The future of
cruise vessels in Jacknonville is uncertain as the current Fantasy class passenger ship calling Jacksonville is over 28 years
old. Most newer cruise ships are too large to safoly pess under the high tension power lines at Blowunt Island and the
Dames Point bridge at high tide. The JAXPORT cruisc terminal will nood to be moved to allow for larger ships but there
are currently no plans to do so.

JAXPORT CARGO STATISTICS

VESSEL CALLS L

FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018
2,083 1,933 1,846 1,826 1,782 1,656 | 1,761
TONNAGE B T

FY2012 | FY2013 | FY2014 | FY2015 | FY2016 | FY2017 | FY 2018
Continerized | 4,905299 | 4,895211 | 5,062,969 | 5,035,085 | 5,558,361 | 5,878,168 | 7,109,643
[Breakbulk |  816027] 941,983 | 792,344 | 726242 | 887,878 | 902,726 | 871,131
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REVISED AND UPDATED APPLICATION FOR CHANGE OF RATES OF PILOTAGE

i | 23
Bulk 1,207,086 1,045,193 1,204,835 1,094,986 1,026,230 1,169,087 742,499
Automobiles 1,308,565 1,296,468 1,252,017 1,325,366 1,244,335 1,380,284 1,385,712
Total 8,236,977 8,178,855 8,312,165 8,181,888 8,716,805 9,330,266 | 10474,283

UNITS

FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018
Coatainer TEU 923,660 926,809 936,973 915,292 968,279 1,033,068 1,270,480

Automobiles 608,726 630,697 605,170 656,599 636,134 693248 | 665432
CRUISE -

FY2012 | FY2013 | FY2014 | FY2015 | FY2016 | FY2017 | FY 2018
Vessel Calls 81 7 7. 78 82 74 I
Passengers 195,426 185,434 181,580 183,192 197,295 177417 199,899 |

The sbove JAXPORT statistics do not roflect the vessel calls or tonnages of cargo moved through privately owned
terminals in Jacksonville or the vessel calls or traffic for the part of Fernandina. The sbove shown the alight decrease in
vessels to JAXPORT berths and the overall increase of cargo being moved through those besths.

Aclive pilots receive medical coverage from the Association. This cost has increased 15% over the last 5 yeara from
$1,040 pex individual pilot in 2014 to over $1,195 per pilot in 2018, The expenses for modical plans for the St. Johns Bar
Pilot Association and their employces is expected to increase by 18% aver the next five years.

The St. Johns Bar Pilot Association docs not have a traditional fanded retiremont plan, The retirement plan is similar to
the pilot retirement plans in Miami and Post Everglades. In 2018 the retiroment plan expense was $1,120,758% and
represented 11.3% of the $9,887,915 gross pilotage revenues. The retirement expense is capped at 20% of the gross
pilotage revenue and will increase up to the cap as eligible pilots retire over the next S to 7 ypars,

10. Physical risks inherent in piloting.

Pilots risk physical injury every time they embark or disembark a ship. There are the physical risks that are routinoly
taken by pilots when transitioning to or from the pilot boat any time, day or night in varying weather and sea conditions.
Mhmmmwmnof-ﬁﬁwmammmmmuummmmmu
thoy adapt to the iregular flow of vessel traffic.

11. Special charactevisti ; i

iU, QeiECTE, ENG Tk

As described in Section 10 of this spplication, the combined port ares of Jacksonville and Femnandina cover over 67
nautical milos of Florida®s navigable waters. The pilots of the St. Johns Bar Pilot Associstion maintain sn excellent safety
record in & very challonging port aroa with the largest tidal variation and the strongest tids] cumrents in the state of Florida.
This 18 supported by comparing the NOAA tide and tidal current predictions along piloted waters of the St Marys River,
Amclia River and St Johns River with the predictions for other Flogida ports. In recent years, piloting has become more
difficult and more important from a risk management and environmental protection perspective. The ships that we handle
have dramatically increased in size. Larger ships are more difficult to handle. Comparing Iarger ships that are underway
at a given sposd with smaller ships of the same typoe traveling at the same speed, the larger ships will be less
mancuversble, A larger ship will have a larger turning radius, longer stopping distance, and require more rudder and
engine power to mancuver than s smaller vessel, The size of the foderal ship channels in Jacksonville and Fernandina
have remained virtually unchanged but size of the largest ships has increased by 195 feet (20%) in length and 52 feet
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| 24

(49%) in beam. This means that the “footprint” of the largeat ships has increased from 100,700 square feet to over
174,748 squarc feet; a 75% increase. Between 2007 and 2009, members of the St. Johns Bar Pilot Association
mmmmmwmmwwwmmmmm Ehmhtm

The pilots carefully set times for the largest vesscls to transit to and from the container vessels at Blount lsland and
TRAPAC. These vessels have superstructures that extend over 170 feet above the water and require precise navigation to
safely pass under the high-tension electrical wires st Blount Island and the Dames Point Bridge. The Dames Point
{Napoleon Bonapartc Broward) Bridge is located in a turn and the width of span with sdequate clearance for the largest
ships is leas than 300 ft. The maneuvering windows for safely moving these large veasels have been cstablished by the
Association’s analysis of the tides, currents and prevailing depths of the St. Johns River.

In 2020, the St. Jolkms Bar Pilot Association will have served the port of Jacksonville for over 190 years. The State
Harbor Pilots in the combined port ares of Jacksoavillo and Fernandina work hard to promote and maintxin a high level of
cooperation betwoen all areas of our local maritime community snd are committed to providing safe, efficient and relisble
pilotass service. As pilots, we are mindful that pilotage fees are 2 portion of the total port costs incurred but it is
imporiant to note that pilotage fees do not gignificently increase port costs. Pilotage charges are nominal companed to tug,
baxth, fuel charges or other port fees.

It is in the public’s best interest to accept those rate changes as presented, because it will ensure that pilois are abie to
continue providing the high level of servioes offered to the Ports of Jacksonvillo and Fernanding. These modifications to
our tariff will allow our Association to atiract and retain properly qualified pilots in the future from the vecy highest lovels
of the talent pool and to upgrade our equipment and invest in the infrastructure necessary to support 8 deepened port
uiilized by ever larger vossols.

We value ourselves as partners in the local port community and recognize that pilotage rates have an effect when
customers are seeking business in & port. The requestod rates are fiir and will not burden the castomers of the Ports of
Femandina or Jacksonville. The proposed rate structure will maintsin pilotage rates that are significantly lower than oar
regional competitors.
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AFPLICATION FOR CHANGE OF RATES OF PILOTAGE

PART C AFFIDAVIT OF APPLICANT (This section must be sworn te in the presemce of 2 Notary Public or an officer suthorized te

mmt

1 herwby certify that I have read the foregomng ststements including all attachmeats and exhilvits, and that they sre troe snd correct (o the best of
my knowledge and belief,

e Dl

county or: D Ja |

STATEOR: |~ 1OV IO~ h
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO BEFORE ME THIS L p oréeptennts 0

Comeisalon B QO 155741 _
Expbon Febrvary 1, 020 IGNATURE OR PERSON ADMINISTERING OATH
i) T Yoo e dsemremc 64 B65T510 '

BPR/matechng FRM/06-95
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St. Johns Bar Pilot Association
and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Financial Statements (Complied)

Year Ended December 31, 2018 (Historical)
Years Ended December 2019 and 2020 (Projected)

DHG

UIXON HUGHES GOODMAN
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St. Johns Bar Pilot Association and Subsidiaries
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)L‘Uu Co ,.'\ vared

Independent Accountants’ Compilation Report

Parinars
St. Johna Bar Ptiot Association and Subsidiaries
Mayport, Florida

Management Is responsible for the accompanying projection of St. Johns Bar Pilots Association and
Subsidiaries (‘the Association®), which comprises the consolidated projecied balance sheets as of
DquuﬁtamoﬁwznmuﬂmuﬂnﬂamuﬂhMdemMMMdhuwnnﬂduuuhmumut
umiuMcuhkmnuumommmlWMﬂMldﬂmﬂmMuumnmuluawwmn”uuum

Statementa on Standards for Accounting and Review Services promulgated by the Accounting and Review
SmeqummbodluAmﬂhHhdumuuummonuhwﬁowﬁu&mmwwmmwumwhﬂh
mdmn-w;mudmutoumwﬂnauwmwcwumunmusufmahhmdh1wmﬁﬁlw
mmznmzzg?mvaHlmmManu0nq*ﬁnlumduhmmuuuﬁhmwhmumummma
on »

ﬂupmhﬁnnudhmqmdb-nﬂmutuﬂumuﬂunﬂbhdﬂhmuubﬂmunhowquhduw
lﬁulmwmImﬂwaWH&IH!&U“HI#BRMMMWGDm!unullﬂmmhmlﬂﬂwn
ﬂhnnnumwhomﬁﬂﬂ“hhnnmnuumﬂihhnuhhhhnmuﬂwuuMauﬂammuruu
occurring after the date of this report.

AsmmtthhnﬂnthﬁnL*uAnuhﬁmhunﬁddmﬁmumnuun!m”MMuﬂumm
obiigation in sccordance with accounting principles generally accapled in the United States of Americs,
Mﬁhmwm-mnwuuhnhmmhﬂuwunbhnunmmummﬁnumhmutuquﬂuumﬂn
periods and a Nablility to be recognized. Quantification of the effects of that depariure on the consolidated
projected financlal statements ks not precticable.

The accompanying projection and this report are intended solely for the Information and use of the St. Johns
&rHHAnuhmmnmsmumwuuﬂFhmhnu-mnmdamhn-uuPmﬂmuﬂﬂuwuhm
&mﬂdPhﬂMmﬁuhuu-ﬂhndhmwumnn-dmuanhmudWIWUHNMIMmﬂnu

specified parties.
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umsmuqnmammwmunmmmm Accounting
Rwhw&mhuummundeAwwtWuﬂnmuﬂMquumumumﬂjzz;mHmwmsz

mwhdbnﬁhmuwpunﬂnnbwmwwnuwmuwuummumnnmthmmnmmmmmw
e .Mnbnuumnunnq*wmaamadunwnmmhuwhmuﬂuwndz

Jacksonville, Florida
August 29, 2019
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Computers, sguipment and fumiture

Less: accumulsied dapreciation
Net property, plant and equipment

Intangibles
Less: eccumulated smortization

Net intanglbles
Total assets
UIABILITIES AND PARTNERS® CAPITAL
Accounts payable and sccrued expenses
Other liabites
Line of credit
Nole paysbie
Total currert Rebikties
Long-tarm fiabiles
Deforred incoma fex lisbiiy

Total iabilies

Total lisbiiities and partners' capital

See accompanying summary of significant assu

accountants’ compliation report.

Historical Profected Projsctad

2018 2019 2020
$ 251885 § 185217 § 59,358
1,132,118 1,001,305 1,028,429
85,355 & .
1,400,338 1,158,612 1,085,787
241,573 241,573 241,573
716,180 718,160 716,100
1,011,383 1,047,383 1,047,383
2,307,888 2,307,880 3,667,888
—— 096968 896068 898,008
5,175,672 5,209,072 0,450,872
3,005,206 4,183,773 4,439,303
1,178,767 1,026,199 2,020,679
121,148 124,148 121,148
118,232 120,550 121,141
—_— 2810 a8 7
S 2881021 2183800 S5 3108373
$ 192101 § 2202 § 35,356
45,000 . .
42,000 121,632 30,408
150,000 A .
138,780 138,780 342,485
537,881 282,614 408,229
241,248 102,485 769,906
40,967 33,982 36,997
820,006 419,041 1,214,822
1,630,025 1,764,350 1,801,751
§ 2851021 § 2183400 3,108,373

mptions and accounting policles and Independent
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8t. Johns Bar Pllot Association and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Income and Changes in Partners’ Capital
Based on Requested Rates

Years Ended December 31, 2018, 2019, and s0s0

Historieal Projected Projected
2018 2019 2020

Revenues $§ 0837015 § 0887815 § 11453258

Saliing, general and administrative expenses 4409217 4,248 108 4,503,111
o?n:':mupl(n?- g (3,081) (4,190) (68,230)
Gain (loss) on sale of equipment 158,259 - (8.271)
Total other expenss, net 162,278 (4,190) (74,801)

income before incoma taxes 5,830,676 5,635,010 8,875,644
Income tax expanse (60,705) {13,841) (27,417)

Net income 5,670,271 5,021,978 6.848,227
Partners’ distributions (5.774,303) (5.688,544) (6.720,835)
Partners’ capital, beginning of year 2,034,957 1,830,625 1,784,350

Pariners' capital, end of year i 1,830,026 $ 1.754,359 ! 1&1 761

8ee accompanying summary of significant mptions and accousnting policles and independsnt
accountants’ compliation report. - o 4
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Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income

Adjustments to reconclie net income to
cash provided by operating activiies:

Gain (loss) on ssle of equipment
Changes in operating sssats and llahliitias:
Accounts receivable

Other recaivabla

Accounts payable and accrued expansa
Ofther liabllities

Net cash provided by operating activities

Net procaads from (payments on) line of credit
Paymanis on contacts payabia
Principal paymants on notes payable
Net cesh used by financing activities
Net decreass In cash
Cash and cash aquivalents, beginning of yesr
Cash snd cash equivalants, end of year
Supplemental disclosuras of cash flow activity:
Cath pald for Interest
Cash paid for income taxes

Non-cash finencing activities relsted
to financing of & boat

Historical Projacted Projected
2018 __2019 2020
$ 5,570,271 $§ 5621978 $ 6848227
181,281 189,306 258 202
22080 (7.008) 2,435
(168,250) = aan
80,825 130,723 (26,034)
(85,355) 85,355 -
(20.577) (130,800) 13,154
> (45,000) 2
5,503,178 5,835,481 7,103,255
285,681 - -
(342,745) (34414) (8,271)
57,084 (34,414) (8.271)
451,283 . .
(6.774,308) (6,068,544) (6,720,835)
(73.175) 79,632 91,224
(150,000) (150,000) i
(178,188) (138,783) (378.784)
(5.724,383) (5,887 605) (7,190,843)
(188,271) (86,648) (85,850)
440,136 251,085 165,217
S 2pes 185217 3 so3se
$ 3382 § 4190 § 86,230
$ 106000 § 34285 8 11,827
$ i 3 - 8 1250,000

8ee acoompanying summary of significant assumptions and accounting policies and independant

accountants’ compllation report.
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St. Johns Bar Pllot Association and Subsidiaries

Sum of Assumptions and Polices

Summary of Significant Assumptions and Accounting Polices

1. Nature of Business and Limitations of Projections

The accompanying projections assume St. JMB«PIMM(&BPA‘)NSMW(M.
mmmmmmuwmmmtmmmmm
Mbhmwmmmmmw.ﬂummwwmmma
operations, and cash flows for the years ending December 31, 2018 through 2020. Accordingly, the projections

ssumptions
wm.nmmmm-mmmmhmm.mwmmm
imhm,mulmuan-mmnmmmm. bacause events and
demMnnﬁydonﬁmnM.mﬂmdemhm

2. Nature diwmmdﬂmmwﬁmhﬁm?oudu

Principles of consolidation

mmmm.mmmmmmmmmhwummmm.
Maﬂaduufh‘luwnmm. balances and profits have besn elimnated.

Revenue recognition
mmmmhmhm-mmdmhmmmummmmm
muwwhmwuwm-mmm.mm
contracts are included hmmmmmmmnmmmmsuundrm
establishes the pilotage rates that pertein to all ship and veaseis subject to State regulation. Any change in statutes
mmhmmdmmmmbmmwmmamm effect the revanue of the
Assoclation. W.mnmmmm-mmmhmwhmmmumu
revenues.

Basis of acoounting

mmwmmnﬂim“wmmdmm“ullhﬁdmmmgm
feveiues are recognized when eamed and costs are recognized when incurred,
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St. Johns Bar Pllot Association and Subsidiaries

Suw of Mﬁ Anwmﬂom and Amounﬂl_l! Palices

Use qf esthnates

The preparation of consolidated finencinl siatements In conformity with U.S. accepled eccounting
principies requires management to make sstimates and assumptions that affect (1) the reported amounts of assets
and llabllities; (2) disclosure of contingent assets and liabliities at the date of the consolidated financial siatements;
and, (3) the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual resuits could differ
from those estimaies and sssumptions.

Cash and cash equivalents

The Company includes all interest eaming deposits of less than three months In maturity to be cash equivalents.
The Company regulery maintains bank deposits in excess of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC)
fimits.

Accounts receivable

The Company grants unaecured credit ta ks customers throughout the world. Trade accounts recsivables are due
on average within 60 days from the dats of imvoice end are past due when paymaent ia not repeived within the stated
tsrms. No allowances Is provided for anticipated loesea on doubtiul accounts. Recalvables are charged off In the
period in which they are determined to be uncollectible, which In the opinion of management, appraximates the
aliowanca method of acoounting for bad debts.

Property, plant ond eguinment

The Compeny reports property, piant and equipment, Including amortizable tooling, at historical cost. Machinery in
progress includes costs Incurred for the construction of machinery and equipment in process. Depreciation Is
computed by straight-iine methods appiled to individual llems, based on the following estimated useful Ives:

Bulldings and Improvemants 7 to 30 years
Boats 5 to 10 years
Fumiture and Equipment 5 to 20 years
Computers 3tp5 years

Rapair and maintenance costs that do not extend the useful iife or otherwiee improve the utiilty of the asset bayond
ita axisting useful state are axpensad In tha period Incumed.

Income taxes

The pariners of SJBPA and membaers of FP elecied to be taxed as s partnership. Therefore, provision for income
taxes has been made only on the Income of SUBPI et ststulory rates. Federal income taxea on the SJBPA and FP'e
income are responsibility of the individual pariners and members. Provision for income taxes is presentsd for 2018,
2019, and 2020 based on net income for those years.

3. Contract Payable

Contract payable relates to the ownership interest purchase of a former partner. The terms of the sgreement provide
for three aqual instaliments of $160,000, with the final payment due in April 2018.

4. Line of Credit

The Association has a $450,000 Iine of credit with 8 bank scoruing interest at a floating rats of monthly LIBOR pius
2.75%. The line of credit Is secured by substantially all property of the Association. The line of credit s subject o
cenain financlal and nonfinancial covenants.

IC Report Page 68

PSP000968



Exh. DL-28
Page 111 of 187

8t. Johns Bar Filot Association and Subsidiaries
Summary of Significant Assumptions and Aceounting Polices

5. Notes Payable
Notes payable Include:

2) Noie payabie to a bank in monhly Instsliments of $11,585 principal with no Interest through September
2021. This note is coliateralized by vehicies.

b) The projections assume the Associstion will purchase a new boat for $1,250,000 in 2020, which will ba
financed for ten years. This nots Is projecied to be payabie in monthly insteliments of approximaaly
$20,000 pius Interest at 6.50%. These axpeciations are based on the Association's need for vessals o
best serve north Florida ports. Tenms are estimatad based on the Association’s history in the maritime

Industry.
6. Retirement Benefits
SJBPI sponsors & qualified 401(k) retirement plan which covers substantially afl employsesa. The corporation makes
an annual contribution to the plan equal o 15% of participanis’ annual salary of employees hired prior to Dscember

31, 2012. Tha corporation makes an annual contribution to the plan equal to 7% pius @ 3.6% match of participants’
annual salery of employees hired after Decamber 31, 2012.

7. Pilot Retirement Obligation

No provision for a retirement plen obligation for pliots is recorded. However, a formal amangement exists that
provides for compensation to pliote when they retina from active service. The amount of compensation is determined
by a formula involving a percentage of an active pliot's gross share, years of service, and age. The amount thet
may be pald by the Association fo retired pliots shafl not exceed 20% of revenues collectsd. Payments to retired
piiots are inciudad in seling, genaral and adminietrative expenses.

8. Revenues

Revenuas are feas derivad from the performance of piloting services in Northeast Florida In accordance with Florida
Statutes goveming vessel traffic at Florida ports.

The projections, basad on current rates, are based on six months actual revenue through June 30, 2019 axpected
to continue at the seme level through Decamber 31, 2018.

The projactions, basad on requesied rates, assume rate increases are grantad effective January 1, 2019 as follows:
2020 22% over 2019 rates
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St. Johns Bar Pilot Assoclation and Subsidiaries
Summary of Significant Assumptions and Accounting Polices

9. Expensea

Expensas have besn projectad based on management's actual data through June 30, 2019, adjusied for known or
expected occumences. Except as discussed below, sefiing and administrative expenses gensrally assume an
annual Increasa of 2.1%, based on a general inflation rate,

Legal and professional fees — An additional $40,000 for expectsd consultation and accountants’ fees ls
added to this expense [n 2019.

Professignal developmant - Expected $50,000, in this expense in 2019 due to an Increasad need for pliot
training for changing tachnology and larger vessals entenng Northeast Florida ports,

Due end sybscriptions — Based on expected payments during 2018 and 2020

- Expacted increase in 2018 of $7,500 to provide for additional travel reiated to incresss
In professional

Euel ~ Expected increase In diesel and oil costs of 26% in 2019.

Interest expanse - Based on notes payable as describe in Note 5.

Deprecigtion expense — Based on msthods described In Note 2.

Piiot retirement - Based on axpeatod payments to retired pilots during 2019 and 2020.
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Based on Requested Rates
Years Ended December 31, 2018, 2019, and 2020
Historical Projected Projected
2018 2019 2020

Automobiie $ 114,784 $ 116,858 S 118,040
Amortization 2,242 2,326 682
Depraciation 178,847 108,982 255,620
Deputy percaniage 140,360 80,063 B
Diesel and oll 168,743 200,032 219,238
Due and subscriptions 218,222 217,880 223,000
inaurance 520,030 530,960 642,110
Lagal and professional fees 326,248 57,8668 50,175
Offica and supplies 60,451 70,910 72,233
Other axpenses 82,035 156,857 80,227
Pilot retirement 1,120,758 1.289.344 1,573,000
Professional development 32,288 50,000 33,858
Rent 8,019 6.145 6,274
Repair and maintenance 138,148 138,007 141,828
Salaries and other bonefits 939,204 058,927 678,085
Standby labor and piiot payout 217,482 55,730 66,001
Texse and licenses 88,480 88,298 90.151
Telephone 50,758 $ 51,624 $ 52,912

Total selkng, peneral end

administrative sxpenses $ 4&9&17 $ 4 108 $ 4|503|1 11

mamw“quwmmﬂumlﬂmﬂuwmﬂ 10

independent accountants’ compilation report.

IC Report Page 82

PSP000972



Exh. DL-28
Page 115 of 187

The St. Johns Bar Pilot
Association and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Financial Statements
Yoar Ended December 31, 2017

DHG

DIXON HHEH 5 GOODMAN )
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The St. Johus Bar Pilot Association amd Subsidlaries
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DHG

PIXON THIBHES GOODMAN |

Independent Auditors' Report

Pariners
The St. Johns Bar Pilot Association and Subsidiaries
Mayport, Florida

We have suditad the accompanying consolidsted financial statements of The St Johns Bar Piiot Association
end Subsidiaries (“the Associstion"), which comprise the consolidated balanca sheet as of Decamber 31,
mvwmmwmmam.whmn‘wwmmmm
yaar then ended, and the reiatad notes to the consolideted financlal statemants.

tmagement's Responwibility
Management is responsible for the preparation snd fair presentation of these consolidated finencial
mhmmmmbummhmmmdm
ﬂmmmm,mmmnmedmmmmmmmm
-ﬂhkmnwmdeWMMMmMmtmmnmmm, whether
due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibiity Is to expreas an opinjon on these consolidatad financial statements based on our audit,
mmmw-mmMnummmmmh the Unlted States of
m.mmmmhmdummmmmmom ressonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material miastatament.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procadures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, inciuding
thmdnhdmwmmdmmmm.mdmm
fraud or error. In meking those risk sssessments, the suditor considers intemal control relevant to the
w-mmﬂmmdwmmmmwmmmmhmmnmi
MmMmlinMdm,Mmhhnmmmﬁummnnn
the effectiveness of the entity's intemal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audk siso
mmhwmdmmmwmuummmmw
muﬁhguﬂmhnnuduhymlmm.umllammemﬂpmmﬁmdma
consolidated financial statemants.

xmmdﬂnwdﬁmMnMothmdmembMIMhMWr
opinion.
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DDAON HUGHI S GONMAN <.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

As more fully described in Note 8 to the consolidated financial statements, the Association has not
mmmcwdhpmmmmwbnznmmmummumuy
accepted in the Uniled States of America, which raquires the cost to be recognized over the &
mmm-m-lwmmnmﬁm.m«mmammm
the consolideted financial statements is not practicable.

Qualified Opinion

in our opinlon, excapt for the effects of the maiter discussed in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph,
ummmmmwmﬁnﬂmmmm.hamuwlm,
the financial position of The St. Johna Bar Pilot Association and Subsidiaries as of Dacamber 31, 2017, and
the consolidated results of their oparations and their cash flows for the year then ended In accordance with

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America

Repori on Supplementary Information

Our awdl wes performed for the purposa of forming en opinion on the basic consoiidated financial
statements of the Association as & whole. The consolidaied schedule of seling and administrative
mmmﬁhpmﬂ-dforpumooudmmhmdhndamquhdpandme
comsoiidated financis) ststemants

Such mmumwdmmmwdmmmmmmmme
underlying accounting and other records used to prepere the consolidated financiel statsments. The
irformation has bean subjected to the auditing procedures appiied in the audit of the coneofidated financial
mmmmmmmm.mmmmmmmm-ﬁmdm
fo the underlying accounting and other records to prepare the basic consolidsted financial statements or to
the basic consolidated financial statements themeelves, and other additional procedures in accordance
mmmmywhmmmsuu-dm.mwrmlm.mmmm
is fairly stated In all material respects in relation to the basic consolideted financisl statements teken se a
whole.

Jacksonville, Florlda
September 20, 2018
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The St. Johns Bar Pilot Assoclation and Subsidiarics

Consolidated Balance Sheet
December 31, 2027
ASSETS
Current assels:
Cash $ 440,138
Accounts recaivable 1,221,843
Total current assals 1,682,078
Property, plant and equipment;
Lend 241,573
Land improvements 685,824
Bulidings 1,011,383
Boats 2,512,888
Computers, equipment and fumitura 628,305
5,080,063
Lese: accumulated depracietion 3,846,672
Net property, plant and equipment 1,144,301
intangible assats, net of eccumuiated amortization of $28,750 5,250
Total assets 3 2,811,720
LIABILITIES AND PARTNERS' CAPITAL
Current fabiiities:
Accounts payable $ 101,867
Accrued expenses 1,197
Income taxes payable 88,814
Other liabllities 45,000
Note payable 106,933
Contract payable 150,000
Line of credit 115,175
Totel current Habiiities 608,786
Long-term Ksbilities
Contract payabla 150,000
Dafarred income tax Hability 17,977
Total long-term Nabilities 167 877
Partners’ capital 2,034,957
Total iabllities and partners’ capital $ 2,811,720
Sse accompanying notes. 3
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The St. Jobms Bar Pilot Association and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statement of Income
Year Ended December 31, 2017

Revenues $ 9,834,456
Saliing, general and administrative expenses 4,222 342
income from operations 5,612,117
Other Income (expanas)’
Intersst income 116
intarest expense (14.914)
Other expense (4,250)
Total other expense, net (19,048)
{ncome before income taxes 5,593,089
Income tax axpense (220,6847)
Net income $ 5|372|422
See accompanying notes. 4
IC Report Page 98

PSP000978



Exh. DL-28
Page 121 of 187

The 8t. Johns Bar Pilot Association and Subsidiaries
Conuwolidated Statement of Changes in Partners’ Capital

December 31, 2017

Partners’ capital, January 1, 2017 $ 1954628
Net income 5.372.422
Partnars’ contributions 483,606
Pariners’ distributions (5,755,778)
Partners’ capital, December 31, 2017 oS 2034057

See accompanying notes. &
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The 8t. Johns Bar Pilot Association and Subsidisies
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended December 31, 2017

Exh. DL-28
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Cash flows from cparating activities:

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating ectivities:

Depraciation and amortization
Defarmed income tawes

Changes in operating assets and Iisbilities:
Accounts receivable
Accounts payable
Accrued axpensea

Income tax payable
Other liabliities

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from inveeting activilies'
Purchase of properiy and equipment

Net cash used by Investing activities
Cash flows from finencing activities:
Partner contributions
Pariner distributions

Net payments on line of credit
Principal payments on notes payable

Net cash ussd by financing activities
Net increase in cash

Cash, Janusry 1, 2017
Cash, December 31, 2017

Suppiemental disciosures of cash flow activity:
Cash pald for interast

Cash paid for income taxss

Non-cash financing ectivities activity related to partner redemption

8ee accompanying notes.

$ 5,372,422

255,605
17,977

13,860
(381)
3,628
54,970
{45,000)

5,673,068

(33,404)

(33,404)

483,686
(6.456,778)
(58,500)
(369.812)

(5,420,405)

219,250

220,686

$ 440,136

$ 14,914

] 74,300

$ 300,000
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The St. Johns Bar Pilot Assoclation and Subsidiaries
Notes to Cansolidated Financial Statements

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Nature of Business and Summary Significant Accounting Policies

Orgoanization

The St Johns Bar Pilot Associstion ("SJBPA") and Subsidiariea (collectively, "the Association") includes ths

accounta of SJBPA and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, St Johna Bar Pllots, Inc. ("6JBPI') and Femandina Pilot,

LLC ("FP"). The Association pilots aasist ships and vessels in and out the Ports of Jacksonville end Femandina in

ﬂN:ﬂhn-tFludda.'l'luhlmltbnctﬂbmnpﬂn.ﬂyhlhuhlppﬁmhninmﬂ\dhweopulﬂommmm
world.

Principles of consclidation

The Association includes the sccounts of the Association and Subsidiaries in the consolideted financial statements
All effects of intercompany transactions, balances and profits have been eliminated.

Revenue recognition

The principal business of the Association s piloting shipa and vessela in and out the ports in north Florida. The
Associstion is regulated by the Florida Department of Business and Professional Regulstion Revenues from
contracts aye Included I the consolidated statement of income at specified pilotage rates. The State of Florida
estmblishes the pllotage rates that pertain to el ship and vessels subject to State regulation. Any change In statutes
surmounding the movement of ships and vessels while entering or leaving a port could affect the revenus of the
Association. Accordingly, income ie recognized when that cost and related profit Is Incurred up to the estimated total
revenues.

Basis of Accounting

The sccompanying consolidated finsncial ststements are prepered on the accruel basis of accounting where
revenues are recognized when aamed end costs are recognized when incurrad.

Use qf estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statsments in conformity with U.S. generally mccepted accounting
principles requires management fo make estimates and assumptions that affect (1) the reported amounts of assets
and fiabiiities; (2) disclosure of contingent sssats and lisbilities st the date of the consolidated financis! statements:
and, (3) the reporied amounts of revenues and expenees during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates and assumptions.

Cash and cash equivalents

The Association inciudes all intarest saming deposits of less than three months in maturity to be cash equivalents.
;I'hu Association regularly maintains bank deposits in excess of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporstion (FDIC)
imits.

Arcounts receivable

The Assoclation grants unsecured credit to Rs customers throughout the world. Trade accounts receivables ere due
on average within 60 days fram the date of invoica and are past due when payment Is not received within the stated
terms. No allowances is provided for anticipatad losses on doubtful sccounts. Receivables are charged off in the
pariod in which they are determined to be uncollectible, which in the opinion of management, approximates the
allowance method of accounting for bad debts. Thers was no bad debt expense in 2017

7
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‘ihe St. Johns Bar Pllot Assoclation and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Property, plant and equipment

The Associstion reports property, plant and equipment, including amortizeble tooling, at historical cost Machinery
in progress jnciudes costs incurred for the conatruction of machinery and equipment in process. Depreciation in
computed by atraight-ine methods applied to Individual tems, based on the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings and Improvements 7 to 38 years
Boats 5to 10 years
Fumniture and Equipment 510 20 yeara
Computers 3to 5 years

Repair and maimenance costs that do not extend the useful #fe or otherwise improve the utlity of the assst beyond
its existing uaeful state are axpensed in the pariod incurred.

Jncome taxves

The members of the Association elected to be taxed as a partnership. Therefore, a provision for income taxes has
been made only on the income of St. Johns Bar Pliots, Inc. (a Florida Corporation) at statutory rates. Federal
income taoss on the Association‘s income are responsibity of the individual partners.

2. Notes Payable

The Association had a term nols payabie n monthly instaliments of $21,581 plus interest eccrued at the fixed rate
of 2.99% per annum. Thia note was repaid in June 2018,

The Associstion had a ferm note payable in monthly instafiment of $10,087 phua Interest socrued st the fived mis
of 1.49% per annum. This note was repaid in May 2018,

3. Line of Credit
The Association had a $450,000 fine of cradit with a bank accruing interest st a flosting rate of monthly LIBOR plus
2.75%. The line of credit was secured by all property of the Association The fine of credit Is subject to certsin

financiel and nonfinancial covenants. As of December 31, 2017, the Association was in compliance with these
covenanis. The line of credit expired on March 1, 2018 and was not renewed.

4. Contract Payable

Contract payable relates to the ownership interast purchase of a former partner. The terms of the agreement provide
for three equel instaliments of $150,000, with the final payment due In April 2019,

5- Retirement Benefits
SJBPI aponsons a qualified 401(k) retirement plan which covers subatantially all employess The corporation mekes

an annual contribution to the plan equal to 15% of participants’ snnual aajary. The contribution for the year ended
December 31, 2017 was $106,603.
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The 8t. Johns Bar Pilot Association and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

6. Pilot Retirement Obligation

Nopmvlubnfurlrukernmtphnubfmﬂonmrpibhhm.mm.anun!undadfomu]-mwnmtam
Mmmmmmmmmnmmmmm.mmndwmh
ddnmhedbylfmnuhlmow!glpnmupofunmmhl‘anmﬂm. years of service, and age. The
mmmhmwhmmtommwnmmmmmwmmm
fo retirad pllots were $874,108 for the year ended December 31, 2017 and are Included in selling, general and
administrative expensas.

7. Obligation Upon Death of Pariners
In the event of death of an active or relire pariner, the Association’s Articles stipulate that each widow (or legal

duhnsa}wllmmweamﬁndplﬂnuﬂmmshmfuraﬁmomh'fdbwmyﬂmduﬂmfmmmmﬁmd
partner.

8. Income Taxes
Thehlluwhuhawquﬂnmmdthopmibnhrhwmumdmst2017'

Current $ 202,670
Defarred — 17877
Total Income tax expense s 220847

On December 22, 2017, the law commonly refermad to as the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (the "Tax Act’) was enacted.
The Tax Act reduces the corporete federal tax rate from 35% to 21% and also pravides for humerous other changes
generally effective beginning after January 1, 2018. Accounting standards require that the effects of a change in
tax law and retes be accounied for in the period of snactment. As a result of the Tax Act, SJBPI adjusted its deferrad
tex assets and liabilities besed upon the enacted rats.

Deferrad income taxes are primarily afiributebls fo net operating loss carmylorwards. eccruals for financial reporting
purposes not currently deductible for income tax purposes, and depreciation of assets.

mtmmmmmuwm«mwmmnmmmmmmm«mm

mmwmmlmgpwmm-mmmmmmmm.
components of the SJBPI's deferred income tax assels and kabllities are as follows at December 31, 2017:

Noncurrent deferred tax lisbiities
Excess of tax over book depreciation and cost s 12977

maeﬂummomuxmdm-nmmommmfadumlmmmmmammma
mmmlmm.mmmwmmmwmmm-mum
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The 8t. Johns Bar Pllot Assoclation mnd Subsidizries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

9. Major Customers

Approximately 27% of the Association's 2017 revenue and 23% of the accounts receivable at December 31, 2017
were derived from two cusiomers.

10. Related Party Transactions

The Association enterad into a month to month lsase agresment with an entity thet is under commeon control for dry
storage snd dock allp The lease includes monthly rent payment of $373

11, Subseguent Events

in March 2018, tha Assoclation entered into & $250,000 line of credit with & bank. Principal is payable in

one
payment of all outstanding principal plus accruad unpeld interest in March 2020. Interast is pavabla monthly at the
one-month ICE LIBOR plus 2.75% with a minmum rate of 3.75%.

in August 2018, the Association entered info a $250,000 line of credit with @ bank. Principal is payable in one
payment of all outstanding principal plus accrued unpaid interest n August 2019. Interest is payable monthly st the
one-month ICE LIBOR plua 2.75% with a minimum rate of 3.75%.

The Association evaluated events and transactions through September 20, 2018, the date the consolidated financial

statements weno avallable for issuance, and in the oplnion of management, the accompanying consolidated
financis! slatemants refiect af matsnial Hem.
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Supplementary Information
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The St. Johns Rar Pilot Assoclation and Sabsldiaries
Consolidated Schedule of Selling, General and Administrative Expenses
Year Ended December 31, 2017
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Automoblie
Amortizstion

Depreciation

Deputy percentage
Diessi and off

Dues and aubacriptions

Legel and professional feas
Miscellaneous

Office and supplies
Pillot retirement
Rent

Repalr and maintenance
Retirement plan
Salaries and other benafits

Standby lahor and pilot payout

Taxes and licensas
Telephone

Total seling, general and sdministrative expenses

See accompanying notes.

$ 122,256
3472
262,123

257,766
133,504
213,091

527,374
13,708
89,392

61,279
874,108
6,826

356,404
105,893
844,108

87,688
89 886
83.788

$ 4,222 342
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St. Johns Bar Pilot Association
and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Financial Statements (Compiled)

Year Ended Decamber 31, 2018 (Historical)
Years Ended December 2019 and 2020 (Projected)

DHG

DIXON HUGHES GOODMAN 11+
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Independent Accountants’ Compilation Report

Parinars
8t. Johns Bar Pliol Association and Subsidiaries
Mayport, Florida

Management [s reaponsible for tha sccompanying projection of 8t Johns Bar Pllots Association and
Subsidiaries (the Association), which comprises the consolidated projecied balance sheels as of
December 31, 2019 and 2020, and the relsted consoliiated stetements of income and changes In pariners'
capital, and cash flows, and the relsted summaries of significant sssumplions and accounting policies In
sccordance with guidelines for the presentation of a projection established by the Amarican Institute of
Cartifiad Public Accountants (AICPA). We have performed e complistion angsgement In accondance with
Staternents on Standards for Accounting and Review Services promuigartad by the Accounting and Review
Services Commities of the AICPA. We did not examine or review the projection nor were we required o
perform any procedures to verify the mooursoy or completensss of the information provided by
management. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion, & conclusion, nor provide any form of assurance
on this projeciion.

The projectad results may not be achieved, as there will usually be differences between the projected and
ectus! reaults becausa events and ciroumsisnoss frequently do not ocour 2@ axpecied, and thess
differences may be material. We have no responsibiiity to update this report for events and circumstances
ocourring after the date of this report.

As more fully described In Note 7, the Associstion has not determined the cost of its pliot retirement
obiigation in accordance with accounting principles gensrally accepted in the United Statea of America,
which requires the cost of retirement obiigations to be recognized over the empioyees’ respective servica
periods and a lability to be recognizad. Quantification of the affects of that depariure on the consolidated
projeciad financial statements Is not practicable.

The accompanying projection and this report are Intsnded solely for the information and use of the St. Johns
Bar Pliot Association and Subsidiaries end Florida Department of Business and Profsesional Regulation,
Board of Piot Commissionars and is not intended to ba and should not ba used by anyone other then thess
specifiad parties,

1
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Report on Compiled 2018 Historical Finameial Stutements

Mhmumwnmwmmm.mmh
mmhdlmdudnofmm.mmmdhmwwmdlm
mdmhm'mwmmmmﬂmmmmmmmmw
whmmmummmmamwmm
mmuunmsummmmmmmmmwwhmw
Review Services commilttes of the AICPA. We did not audit or review the financial statements nor ware we
MhmmeWhlmumdmmmw
.nwmmelm.wmwmwm
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B¢, Johna Ear Pllot Assoclation and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balanee Aheets
Based on Reguested Rates
Decomber 31, 2018, 2019, and 2020
Historloa! Prajectad Projected
2018 2010 2020
ABSETS
Curment assots:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 261,888 $ 166,217 $ 50,358
Accounts receivable 1,132,118 1,001,385 1,028,420
Othar recelvable 85,356 - -
Total curment sssats 1&335 1,156,612 1,085,7!7
Froperiy, piant and squipmeni:
Land 241,873 241,513 241,573
Land improvements 716,160 716,100 718,180
Bulidings 1,011,383 1,047,383 1,047,383
Bosats and equipment 2,307 088 2,507,888 3,667,888
Compuiers, equipment and fumiture 888,068 806,888 896,088
5,175,972 8,200,972 8,436,972
Lees: accumulsted depreciation 3,006,206 4,183,773 4430308
Net proparty, pisnt and equipment 1,178,787 1,020,196 2,020,679
Intangibles 121,148 121,148 121,148
Leas: accumuisted amortization 118232 120,550 121,141
Net intangibies 2916 580 7
Total sssets ] 2,861,021 $ 2,163 $ 3,108,373
LIABILITIES AND PARTNERS' CAPITAL
Current lablies:
Accounts payabile end accrued expanses $ 162,101 $ 22,202 $ 35,350
Other liabiiities 45,000 - -
Line of credit 42,000 121,632 30,408
Coniract payable 150,000 ” B
Nots peyable 138,780 138,780 342405
Total cusrent lisbiities 537,081 282014 408,229
Long-lerm liablilties
Note paysbla 241,248 102.485 760,008
Defermad Income tax abllity 40,6087 33,962 38387
Tota! kabiitles 820,008 410,041 1,214,622
Partners’ capital 1@,!25 1.7“_&_ 1,681,751
Tota! iabifities and pariners’ capital $ 2,651,021 $ 2,183,400 $ 3,106,373

See accompanying summary of significant sseumptions and accounting policies and Independent

ascountants’ complistion report.
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St. Johns Bar Pilot Assoclation and Subsidisries
Consolidated Statements of Income and Changes in Pariners' Capital

Based on Requested Rates

Years Ended December 31, 2018, 2019, and 3020

Revenues
Saelling, general and administrative expenses
Other incoma (expensa):
interest expanse
Gain (loss) on sale of aquipmant
Total other expanse, net

income bafore incoma tances

i -~

§ 9887915 § 0887015 § 11453256
4,400,217 4,248,108 4,503,111
(9,881) (4,100) (06.230)

168,250 . (8.271)

162,278 {4,190) (74,501)
5,830,978 5,636,810 6,676,844
(80,705) {13,641) (27,417)
5,570,211 5,621,978 6,848,227
(6,774,303) (5,680,544) (8,720,835)
2,034,957 1,830,925 1,784,358

§__ 1830825 § 1784350 § 1801751

Mmmnnmlmmdummnm-mdmnlmpmded indepandent

aocountants’ compliation report.
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8t. Johns Bar Pllot Assoclation and Subsidiaries

Comnsolidsted Statesnents of Cash Flows
Based on Requanted Rates

Years Ended December 31, 2018, 2019, and s0z0

Exh. DL-28

Page 136 of 187

Cash flows from operating aclivites:
Nat incoma
Adjustmanis (o reconclia net incoma & nat
cash provided by operating activities:
Depracistion end amortization sxpenss
Change in daferred income taxes
Gain (loss) on sale of equipmant
Changaes In operating sseets snd lahilitiea:
Accounts recelvable
Other recsivable
Accounts payable and accrued sxpsnse
Other liabllities

Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from inveating activities:
Proceeds from sale of equipment
Purchase of property and squipment

Net cash used by investing activitiea

Net proceads from (payments on) line of credit
Payments on contacts payabile
Principal payments on notes paysble
Net cash usad by finencing activities
Net decrease in cash
Cash and cash equivalenis, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year
Supplemental discioaures of cash flow ectivity:
Cash pald for intarest
Cash paid for Income texss

Non-cash financing activities releted
to financing of a boat

Historical Projected Froleciad
2018 2019 2020
$ 5,570,271 $ 50821978 $ es822r
181.281 189,308 256,202
22,960 {7,005) 2435
(168,250) “ 8,21
80,826 130,723 (26,034)
(85,358) 85,358 -
(20.517) (130,800) 13,154
: (45,000) -
5,503,176 _5,835461 7,103,266
285,881 . -
— (342,745) {34,414) (0,271)
{57,084) (34,414) (8,271)
451,283 - -
(5.774,303) (5,688,544) (6,720,835)
(73,176) 79,632 (91,224)
(150,000) (160,000) :
(178,188) (138,783) ______ (378,784)
——(6724383) _ (5807685) _  (7,190,843)
(188,.271) (06,648) (95.868)
440,138 261,865 155,217
S 251805 8 is5217 3 60368
$ 3382 §___ 410 5 e82%
3108000 8 285§ 17
. = o = 51260000

See accompanying summary of significant sssumptions end sccounting policies and Independent

accountanis’ compilation report.
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St. Johna Bar Pllot Assoclation and Subsidinries
Su of Assum and Acco Polices

Summary of Significant Assumptions and Accounting Polices

1. Nature of Business and Limitations of Projections

The accompanying projections assume St. Johna Bar Pllot Association ("SJBPA’) and Subsidiaries (coliectivaly,
hmumammmhmummmmtm.mmwm
present, to the best of management's knowledge and bellef, the Association’s expecied finencial poaition results of
operations, and cash flows for the years ending Dacember 31, 2019 through 2020, Accordingly, the projections
mmﬁmdhwmmmuwmmdmgmm
wmmm.mmummhrmemmmmwmwmnm
mmuzowmmdhmmdmmnmmmmmmm
are those that managament bafieves are significant to the projections. There will usually be differences betwean
projeciad and actual results because events end circumstances frequently do not occur as expectsd, end thoss
differences may be material,

11\0pmmmllbmwmhhnpplblﬂunbrlpwmhmhuﬂdm&nm
Department of Business and Professional Regulation, Board of Pliot Commisaloners in accordance with Florida
mmms-zma.mdwmnymmmmumubh-mma
wmmh.mm.mmWMhmwmmum.mm
mnﬂm“ﬂmhtnmthnthm—.Emﬂhplwm
mhm,mwmmmmmmmmmmm
dmmwdondmnm.uﬂmmmmbam

2. Nature of Business and Summary Significant Accounting Policies

Ovgarndsation

mm.mwpummrsaapmmmumtm.wmwmvhmm

accounts of SJBPA and iks wholly-owned subelidiaries, St. Johna Bar Ptiots, inc. ("SJBPI") and Femandina Pilot,

LLC (FF"). The Association pilots assist ships and vessels In and out the Ports of Jacksonvilie and Femandina in

WFm.mmmm“Mhnwmmmmmm
worid.

Principlss qf consolidation

The Assoclation includea the accounts of the Assoclation and Subsidisries In the consolidated financial siatements.
Al effects of Intercompany transacions, balances and profiis have been eliminated,

Revenue recogiition
mWMMdmmmnmmmmnmmumhmm.m
mhmmwhmwammmm.mm
contracts are Inciuded Iin the consolidated statement of Income at specified pllotage rates. The Stats of Florida
mhmmmmuddﬁmﬂmm&ummmmnm
surounding the movement of ships and vessels while entering or leaving & port could affect the revenus of the
m.mw.mhmmmmmwmumwmnmw
revenues,

Basis qf acoounting

mwmmlwnmm-mmmwuu-dmmm
revenues are racognized when eamed and costs are recognized when Incurred.
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8t. Johns Bar Pilot Associstion and Subsidiaries

Summary of Significant Assumptions and Accounting Polices

Use of estimates

The preparation of consolidsted financial stalements in conformity with U.S. gensrally acoepted acoounting
principles requires management fo make estimates end assumptions that affect (1) the reported amounts of assets
end liabilites; (2) disciosure of contingent sssets and Sabiliies at the date of the consolidated financie! sialements;
and, (3) the reportsd amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates and assumptions.

Cash and cosh egquivalents

The Company inciudes all interest saming deposits of less than three monthe in maturity to be cash equivaients.
Rcmwnmmmmmthm Deposit insurence Corporation (FDIC)

Accoumis receivabls

The Company grants unsecured credit to its customers throughout the world. Trade accounts receivables ere tdue
oh average within 60 days from tha date of Invoics and are past due when payment ls not recelved within the stated
fsrms. No allowancas is provided for anticipsted losses on doubtful accounts. Recaivables are charged off In the
period in which they are determined to be uncaliectible, which in the opinion of management, approximates the
allowance method of accounting for bad debts.

Froperiy, plant and eguipmsnt

The Company reports property, plant and equipment, inciuding amortizable tooling, at historical cost. Machinery in
progress includes costs incurmed for the construciion of machinery and equipment in proceas. Depreciation is
computed by straight-line methods applisd to Individual kems, based on the following estimaied usaful ives:

Buildings and Improvements 7 to 38 years
Boats 6 to 10 years
Furniture and Equipment 5 10 20 yeamn
Compulers 310 5 yaars

Repair and mainfenance costs that do not extend the useful life or otherwise improve the utifity of the asset beyond
li» axisting vseful state are expansed In the period Incurred.

Incoms toxes

The pariners of SJBPA and members of FP elected to be taxed as a parinership. Thersfore, provision for income
taxes has been made only on the incoma of SJBPI at statutory rates. Federal income taxes on the SJBPA and FP's
Income are responsibility of the Individual partners and membars. Provision for income taxes is prasenied for 2018,
2019, and 2020 basad on nat iIncome for thoas years.

3. Contract Payable

Contract payabie relates to the cwnership interest purchase of a former partner. The terms of the agreement provide
for three equal instalments of $150,000, with the final payment due in April 20189,

4. Line of Credit

The Association hes a $450,000 line of credit with a bank accruing interest at a floating rete of monthly LIBOR plus
2.75%. The line of credit is secured by substantially el property of the Association. The line of cradit s subject to
certain financial and nonfinanclal covenants.
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St. Johns Rar Pilot Association and Subsidiavies

Md‘MtMumEm Mmﬂl’oﬂm
5. Notes Payable
Nates payable Include:

8) Nole payabie to a bank in monthly instaliments of $11,585 principsl with no intsrest through September
2021. This note Is collateralized by vehicias.

b) The projections assume the Associstion will purchase a new boat for $1,250,000 in 2020, which will be
ﬂwmmm.mbmumhumhmmww
$20,000 plus interest at 6.50%. These axpactations are based on the Association’s need for vessais fo
best serve north Florids ports. Temms are estimated based on the Association’s history In the mariime

industry.

6. Retirement Benefits
SJBPI sponsors a qualified 401(k) retirement plan which covers substantially all ampioyees. The corporation makes
an annual contribution fo the plan equal to 15% of perticipants’ annual esiary of ampioyess hired prior to December

31.m12.mwnﬁmmmmﬂmnmbmaﬂ-nlqtuih?%pm:s.s%nuuhdmu'
annual salary of employses hired after December 31, 2012,

7. Pilot Retirement Obligation

No provision for a retirement plan obligation for pliots is recorded. However, & formal smangement exists that
provides for compensation to pliots when they retira from active service. The amount of compensation Is determined
by a formula involving a percentsge of an active pilot's gross share, years of service, and sge. The amount that
mumwmmnmuwummzwdmmm.wbm
pliots are inciuded In selling, general and administrative axpenses.

8. Revenues

Revenues ara fees derived fram the performancs of plioting services In Northeast Florida in sccordance with Florida
Statutes governing vessel traffic at Florida ports.

Thopmjodom.Mdmwmﬂuﬂ.nmhuﬂmﬁnuﬂn&ﬂmwmmdmm.mww
to continue st the same level through Dacember 31, 2010.

The projections, based on requestad rates, assume rats Increasas are granied effective January 1, 2019 as follows:
2020 22% over 2018 rates
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8¢. Johns Bar Pilot Association and Subsidiaries

Summary of Significant Assumptions and Accounting Polices
9. Expenses

Expensse have been projectad based on management's actual data through June 30, 2010, adjustad for known or
expacted occurrences. Excapt as discussed below, selling and adminisirative expenses generally assume an
annual increase of 2.1%, based on a general infiation rate.

Lonal and profeesional fees ~ An additional $40,000 for expeciad consultation and eccountants’ fees ls
added to this axpenae in 2019.

Professional development - Expected $50,000, in this axpense in 2019 due fo an increasad need for pliot
training for changing technology and larger vassels entering Northeast Florids ports.

Due and subscriptions — Based on expected payments during 2018 and 2020
ﬁﬂmm-&puhdimh!ﬂﬁdﬂ.i@bpﬂdnhrmwmww
Eual - Expeciad increese in dissel and oll costs of 25% In 2019,

Interest expense — Based on notes payable as describe in Note 5.

Pepreciation axpense — Based on methods described in Nots 2.

Pllot ratirement — Based on expected payments fo retired pllota during 2019 and 2020.
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The 8t. Johns Bar Pilot Aseociation and Subsidiaries
Consclidated Schodule of Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Baged om Requested Rates

Years Ended December 31, 2018, 3019, and 2020
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Dissal and ofl
Due and subscriptions

Historical Projected Projected

2018 2019 2020
$ 114,704 $ 115,856 116,040
2242 2,326 6682
178,947 188,962 255,620
140,350 60,053 -
168,743 200,032 219,238
218222 217,800 223,088
620,039 530,960 542,110
325,248 57,858 59,175
689,461 70,910 72,233
82,035 158,857 80,227
1,120,758 1,260,344 1,573,000
32,288 50,000 33,658
6,019 6,145 8274
136,148 139,007 141,928
836,204 858,927 979,085
217,482 §5,730 56,901
88,480 48,208 00,151
507658 § 51824 52,012
4 17 4 108 4,503,111

See accompanying summary of significant projection assumptions and sccounting policies and 10
Indepandent accountants’ compilation report.
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The St. Johns Bar Pilot
Association and Subsidiaries

Projected Consolidated Financlal Statements (Compiied)
Years Ended December 31, 2018, 2019, and 2020

DHG

DIXOU FIEIGHIE® 1t0EIMARM 1)1
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The 8t. Johuns Bar Pllot Assoclation and Subsidiaries
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DHG

DIAOR BHGHE  GnnMA

Independent Accountants’ Compilation Report

Partners
The St. Johns Bar Pliot Assoclation and Subsidiaries

Mayport, Florida

mmmhmbwhmmmhemmaummmmm
mmmw.mmmmmmm.mm
income and changes lnp-tun'mmcuhﬂm,lndﬂwrdthdmmmuduMnt
mammmhmammgunﬁmhmmd-mm
establishad by the American Institule of Certified Public Accouniants (AICPA). We have performed a
mmn-mwmmehMmmmmmmnmm
promuigated by the Accounting and Review Services Commiittes of the AICPA. We did not examine or
wmmmmmmmmwmmwwmu
mm:dunkmwbnpmﬁdedhymwmlr.mdandm @n opinion, a
Wum,mpm-wmmmmmbmm‘

mm}mmmmumw.nmwmbﬂm“mmmm
mmmme-mmmwdonwmw.mmm
dhmnnybanm.%hmmmpomlbillylomdmmbmpmfarmmckcumm
occurring after the dete of this report.

Mmmﬁﬂyductb.dhﬂota?,hommmwmimdhwndmmm
MInmdmmmmmmmmelnhwm«m
which muhhowdmmmhmkdmthemm'mmum
porbd--'rdllllbllytoblnmunhad.ﬂuunﬂﬁedkmoflheuﬂsﬂsdlhuttpm{umonthammdw
mmwwum;amb.

The accompanying projection and this report are intended solely for the information and use of The St
Johns Bar Pliot Assoclation and Subskiiiaries and Fiorida Department of Business and Profassional
Ruolﬂdion.deoanntCon'lnhdomandhnotntnndodlnbemdnhuuldmtbcuudhylnwnn

other than these specified parties.

?&m@%w«nw

Jacksonville, Florida
September

20, 2018

1
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The 8t. Johne Bar Pllot Assoeintion and Subsidinries

Consclidated Projected Balance Sheetn

Based on Regmested Rates
Degember 31, 2018, 2019, and 2080
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Less: accumuiatad depreciation
Net property, plant and aquipment

intangibles
Less: sccumulated amortzation

Deferred income tax assat
Total assats
LIABILITIES AND PARTNERS' CAPITAL
Cuyrent Bablities:
Accounts payabie and accrued expenssa
Other Babilities
Coniract payable
Line of cradit
Totel cumment lisblliitles

Long-term Habilities
Nate payable
Defesred incoma fax iability
Total Rabilities
Partners' capital

Total Nablities and partners’ capitsl

2018 2019 2020
$ 384,147  $ 155217  $ 5,358
1,227,630 1,338,126 1,371,570
47,715 47,715 36,888
1,639,501 1,541,088 1,488,825
241,673 241,573 241,573
718,180 718,160 716,100
1,011,383 1,047,383 1,047,383
2,307,888 2,307,888 3,657,888
807,393 897,393 897,303
6,174,307 5,210,397 6,460,307
4,012,898 4183773 4,439,303
1,161,490 1,026,624 2,021,004
121,148 121,148 121,148
118,140 120,467 121,040
3,008 081 9
42192
2804008 $ 2566363 3 3,530,120
s 8800 S 12858 § 1,032
45,000 : :
150,000 .
138,780 138,780 342,485
82,175 121,832 30,408
402,766 273,270 373,905
241,248 102,465 780,996
3,808 33,062 -
683,811 409,007 1,143,801
2,120,107 2,150,666 2,388,219
$ 2804008 | $ 2568363  $ 3630120

8aee accompenying summary of significant projection assumptions and sccounting policies and

Indapendent accountants’ complistion report.
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The St. Johns Bar Pllot Assoclation and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Projected Statements of Income and Changes in Partners’ Capital

Based on Requeated Rates
Years Ended December 31, 2018, 2019, and 3020

Exh. DL-28
Page 147 of 187

2018 2019 2020
Revenues $ 10288486 $ 11,214,450 $ 11,494,811
Selling, genera! and sdministrative mpenses 4,137,678 4,160,468 4,174,063
Other income (expensa):
Intorest axpense (3.382) (4,180) (66,230)
Gain on sala of equipment 156,258 = (8.271)
Total other expense, nel 162877 (4,190) (74,501)
Income before income taxes 6,303,085 7,040,792 7,245,347
income tax expense (74,093) (5,980) {76,154)
Net income 6,220,562 7,043,812 7,169,193
Partners' distributions (6.162,328) (7,005,243) (6.941,640)
Partners' caplial, beginning of year 2,052 834 __2,120,187 2,158,666
Partnerns' capital, end of year $ 2,120,187 H 2,158,868 $ 2,388,218

8ee accompanying summary of significant projection sssumptions and accounting policies and

independent accountants' compliation report.
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The 8t, Johns Bar Pilot Assodistion and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Projected Statemenin of Cash Flowa
Based on Requested Ratea

Years Ended December 31, 2018, 2019, and 2030

2018 2019 2020
Cash flows from oparsting sclivities:
Net income $ 6,220,562 $§ 7043012 $ 7.1468,183
Adjustments to reconcile nat Incoma to nel
cash providad by opersfing activities:
Depraciation and amortization expsnss 180,018 180,701 256,202
Change in daferred Income taxes 30,608 (5,848) (76.154)
Gain on sale of equipment (164,268) 8,271
Changss In cpsreling sssets and Esbiiities:
Accourts receivable (5,600) (110,487) (33,453)
Other receivable (47,718) 11,827
Accounts peryable and accrued expense (184,878) 0,058 (11,828)
Other liablities - (46,000}
Net cash provided by opersling activities 8,057,462 7,068,238 7,324,080
Cash flows from investing aclivities:
Procesds from sale of equipment 285,081 - =
Purchase of proparty and equipment (320,808) (43,488) (1,258,271)
Net cash used by investing activitiea (41,217) (43,406) (1,258,271)
Cash flows from finencing activities:
Frocseds from noles payabis 451,283 - 1,250,000
Partner distributions (6,162,328) (7,005,343) (6,041,640)
Net procesds from (peymenis on) fine of credit (53.000) 59,457 (91,224)
Payments on contect paysble (1850,000) (150,000) -
Principal payments on notes paysble (178,188) (138,783) (378,784)
Net cash used by financing activities (6,002 234) (7 .234 068) {8.161,648)
Net decrease In cash (75,889) (208,930) (85,850)
Cash, beginning of year 440 136 364,147 165,217
Cash, end of year $ 384 147 $ 166.217 $ 50,358
Supplamenial disclosurss of cash flow activity:
Cash paid for inferest i g,aazl ! (4,190) ! ge_g,zsol
Cash paid for income taxea $ {1640000 § (34265 § (11,827)

See accompanying aummary of significant projection assumptions and accounting policies and
indapandent accountants' compliation report. 4
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The St. Johns Bar Pilot Association and Subsidiaries
Summary of Significant Assumptions and Accounting Polices

Summary of Significant Assumptions and Accounting Polices

1. Nature of Business and Limitations of Projections

The accompanying projections mesume that The St. Johns Ber Pilot Association ("SJBPA”) and Subsidiaries
(collectively, "the Association”) application for rate increase is granted effective January 1, 2019. These financial
projects present, to the best of management's knowledge and bellef, the Associate's expected financial position
results of oparations, and cash flows for the years ending December 31, 2018 through 2020. Accordingly, the
pld-cliommmwmmudhmmzmn.ﬂudﬂtofﬁtmpmi-cﬂm.ofhmhd
conditions and Its expectad course of action given the hypothetical sssumption. Historical information for the first
sb months of 2018 was usad in development of the 2018 projection. The assumptions disclosed herein are those
that management belisves are significant to the projections. There will usually be differences between projecied
nmgmm-mmmmmmmwmomuem,mmm
may be matarial

The presentation Is to assist the Association In its application for a piotege rete increases to be filed with the Florida
Department of Business and Professional Reguistion, Board of Pliot Commiasioners in sccordance with Florida
Statute 61E13-2.005, Confents of Application by Piol, and should not be considered (o be @ presentation of
expacted future results. Accordingly, these projections may not be used for any other purposes. The assumptions
disciosed herein are those that management believes are significant to the projections. Even # the plotage rste
increase is granted, thers will usually be differences between projected and ectus! results, because events and
clircumatances frequantiy do not occur as expected, and those differences may be matarial

2. Nature of Business and Summary Significant Accounting Policies

Orgamisation

The 5t Johne Bar Pliot Associstion ("SJBPA") end Subsidiaries (collectively, “the Association”) includes the
accourts of SJBPA and ks wholly-owned subsidiaries, St. Johns Bar Pliots, inc. ("SJBPI") and Femendina Pilot,
LLC ("FP7). The Associstion pilots assist ships and vessels in and out the Ports of Jacksonville snd Femandina In
wmmmmmm“pmhmmemMsmmmmmmm

Principles qf consolidation

Tha Associations includes the accounts of the Associations and Subsidiaries in the consotidated financial
statements. All sffects of intercompany transactions, balsnces and profits have besn sliminstad

Revenue recogmition

The principal business of the Asaociation i piloting ships and vesseis in and out the ports in north Florida. The
Association Is reguiated by the Fiorida Department of Business and Professional Regulstion. Revenues from
coniracts are inciuded in the consofidated statement of income st spacified pilotage rates. The State of Florida
Mhpmmmmmwawmmm-mbmm.Anymhm
surmounding the movement of ships and vessels while entaring or leaving a port could affect the revenue of the
Association. Accordingly, income is recognized when that cost and related profit is incurmed up to the estimated total
revenuess.

Basis qf Accounting

chanp-nyhgwmwm“dallmmampnpuudmmembuhdmmm
revenues are recognized when eamed and costs ere recognized when incumed.

)
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The St. Johns Bar Pilot Associstion and Subsidiaries
Summary of Significant Assumptions and Accounting Polices

Use of estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
ptlncblunquknmmmmmdmu&mmdmwmummmmﬂadmmnfm
and liabilities; (2) dieclosure of contingent assets and abllities at the date of the consolidsted financlal statements;
and, (3) the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual resuits could dNTer
from those estimates and assumptions.

Cash and cash equivalents

mcmyhcmdmmmdmhoflnnﬂnnﬂmomomtnlnmuturlymbecnh-qumm.

The Company regularty maintains bank deposits in excess of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC)
limits.

Accounis receivable

The Company grants unsecured credit to ts customers throughout the world Trade accounts receivables are due
on average within 80 days from the dste of Invoice and are past due when payment is not received within the stated
terms. No aliowances is provided for anticipated losses on doubtful accounts. Recsivables are charged off in the
period in which they sre determined to be uncollectible, which in the opinion of management, approximaies the
sliowance method of accounting for bad debis.

Property, plant and equipment

The Company reports property, plant and equipment, including amortizable tooling, et historical cost. Machinary in
mmmmmmmmmmumumwmbmmmpmmmu
computed by straight-ine methods applied to individual keme, based on the following estimated useful fives:

Bulidings and improvements 7 to 39 years
Boats 5 io 10 years
Furniure and Equipment 5 to 20 years
Computers 3to 5 years

Repair and meintanance costs that do not extend the useful life or otherwise improve the utility of the asset beyond
Its exdeting useful state are expansed in the period incumed.

Income tuxes

The members of the Associstion elected to ba taxed as a partnenship. Therefore, provision for income taxea has
bean made only on the Income of St. Johns Bar Pliots, inc. (a Florida Corporation) at statutory rates. Federal income
taxes on ihe Associstion’s Income are responsibility of the individual partners.

3. Note Payable
Notes payable include:

8) Note payabie to a bank In monthly instaiments of $11,585 principal with no interest through September
2021. This nots ls colleteralized by vehicles.

b) Thopmhctlomumeﬂwhmdaﬂonwllpuﬂuulnewboullnzozo.whbhmeMmeedfwbn

msb':itnm is projected to be payable In monthly instaliments of approximately $20,000 plus interest
at 6.50%.
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The St. Johns Bar Pilot Associstion and Subsidiaries
Summary of Significant Assumptions and Aceounti ing Polices

4. Line of Credit
The Association has a $450,000 line of credit with a bank accruing intereat st a flosting rate of monthly LIBOR plus

2.75%. The lina of credit is sacured by all property of the Association. Thae line of credit Is subject to certein financial
and nonfinancial covenants.

5. Contract Payable

c«mmmhmmlmmmm«m.mmdmmm
for three equal inetaliments of $150,000, with the final payment due in April 2019

6. Retirement Benefits

SJBP| sponsors a qualified 401(k) retirement pian which covers substantially all employeas. The corporation makes
an annual contribution to the plan equal to 15% of participants’ snnual salsry.

7. Pilot Retirement Obligation

No provision for a retirement plan obligation for pilots is recorded. However, a formal amengemeni exists that
prowides for compensaation fo pllots whan they retire from active service. The amount of compensation is determined
by a formula Involving a percentage of an active pliot's gross share, years of service, and sge. The amount that
may be paid by the Association to retired pliots shall not excesd 20% of revenues collected. Payments to retired
pilots are included in ssliing, genenal end administrative expenses.

8. Revenues

Revenues are faes derived from the performance of plioting services in Northeast Florida in accordance with Florida
Stalutes govemning vesssl traffic st Fiorida ports.

The projections, basad on current ratas, are based on six monthe actual revenue through June 30, 2018 expected
fo continue at the same lavel through December 31, 2018.

The projections, based on requested rates, assume rate increases are granted effective January 1, 2019 as follows:

2010 9% over 2018 rates
2020 2 5% over 2019 rates
9. Expenses

Expenses have been projecied based on six months actusl data through June 30, 2018, adjusted for known or
expected occurrences. Except as discussed below, seliing end administrative expenses generally assume an
annual increase of 2.1%, based on a general Infletion rate.
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The Bt. Johns Bar Pilot Association and Subsidiaries
Summary of Significant Assaumptions and Accounting Polices

— An additional $272,408 for expecied consultation and accountants' fees is added to
thie expense in 2018.

Professionsl development — Expected $80,000,in this expense n 2018 due to an incremssd need for piiot training
for changing technology and larger veasals entering Northeast Florida ports.

Other axpenses —~ Expected Increase In 2019 of $7,500 to provide for additional travel related to increasa in
professional developmant.

Fuel - Expected incresss in diasel and oll coste of 50% in 2019.

i - Expected increase to $55,000 for 2016 only for refirement of pliot.
Interest expense — Besed on noies payabie ss describe in Note 3.

Depreciation expengs — Based on methods described in Note 1.

Piiot retirement — Based on expected payments to retired pilots during 2018, 2018, and 2020.

10. Income Taxes
Credi for income tax reflects the estimated tax refund resulting from projecied net opemting losses generated by

St Johns Bar Pilots, Inc. for 2018, 2010, and 2020. Provision for income taxes is recorded in 2018, 2018, end 2020
based on projected net income for those years.
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The St. Johns Bar Pllot Association and Subaidiaries
Comsolidated Schedule of Selling, General and Administrative Expenaes

Based em Requested Rates

Years Ended December 31, 2018, 2019, and 2020
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Automobile

Deputy percantage
Diesel and ofl

Dues and subscriptions

Legel and professional fees
Offics and supplies

Total salling, general and sdministrative
expensas

2018 2019 2020

$ 110,019 $ 110,873 $ 111,054
2,242 2,328 582
178,374 184,875 255,620

138,054 88,302 ;
164,853 247279 259,843
180,728 72,130 81,544
497 480 507,827 507,927
304,029 21,002 22,147
40,089 47,029 47,815
101,941 187,417 110,962
1,113,166 1,367,543 1,448,318
20,803 60,000 61,200
6,754 8,808 7,051
165,412 168,888 172,433
884,082 622,525 921,582
84,379 40,375 41,223
63,717 65,055 08,421
§7 922 58,138 60,380
$ 4,137,678 $ 4,160,468 $ 4,174,082

See accompanying esummary of significant projection sssumptione and accounting policles and

independent accountants’ complistion report.
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REPORT OF THE INVESTIGATIVE COMMITTEE DEPARTMENT OF
BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION
PILOTAGE RATE REVIEW COMMITTEE APPLICATIONS FOR CHANGE
OF RATES OF PILOTAGE AT PORT CANAVERAL

The following report and attached materials were considered by the investigative committee and are
forwarded to the Pilotage Rate Review Committee for its action. This report will follow the following
format:

Pages
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY A
ANALYSIS OF DATA FOR REQUEST FOR CHANGE OF RATES B
ATTACHMENTS C

1. Consumer Price Index

2. Agreement between the Canaveral Pilots Association and the
Florida-Caribbean Cruise Association

3. Estimated Handles and Pilotage Revenue for 2022 and 2023

APPLICATIONS DISTRIBUTED SEPARATED BY THE DEPARTMENT
1. Application for Change of Rates of Pilotage — Canaveral Pilots
Association
2. Application for Change of Rates of Pilotage — Florida-Caribbean
Cruise Association
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June 6, 2022

Ms. Amanda Ackerman, Executive Director
Pilotage Rate Review Committee

Department of Business and Professional Regulation
Post Office Box 5377

Tallahassee, Florida 32314-5377

RE:  Applications for Change of Rates of Pilotage at Port Canaveral by the Canaveral Pilots
Association and the Florida-Caribbean Cruise Association,

Dear Ms. Ackerman:
We have completed our investigation of the above referenced applications and hereby present

our findings to the Pilotage Rate Review Committee, as required by Florida Administrative Code
Rule 61G14-22.007.

s

Commodore Thomas L. Bushy, USMS(Ret.) Contract Consultant
Department of Business and Professional Regulation

Lo K L

Richard H. Law, CPA, Contract Consultant
Department of Business and Professional Regulation
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REPORT OF THE INVESTIGATIVE COMMITTEE DEPARTMENT OF
BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION
PILOTAGE RATE REVIEW COMMITTEE APPLICATIONS FOR
CHANGE OF RATES OF PILOTAGE AT PORT CANAVERAL

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

General Comments

The Canaveral Pilots Association (CPA) filed an initial application for a change in pilotage rates in
Port Canaveral on January 7, 2020. Florida-Caribbean Cruise Association (FCCA) filed an alternative
application in Port Canaveral on January 17, 2020. The two applicants had agreed in advance on a
proposed rate structure similar to the Port of Miami and Port Everglades, which provided in general,
some rate discounts for the larger cruise vessels, which had grown in terms of tonnage in the last two

decades.

The investigation of the applications and the rate hearing for these applications was delayed due to a
pending application in Palm Beach and because of the COVID pandemic. The pilots filed an amended
application on March 8, 2022 which requested minor changes to the original application. CPA and
FCCA agreed to the amended, requested changes in rates (except for two elements discussed later in
our report) on April 19, 2022. The cargo customers and US Navy are not parties to this agreement.

The last rate change in Port Canaveral was September 1991. Due to the increased number of cruise
handles and the continuous increase in the size of cruise vessels, the 1991 rates genecrated sufficient

pilotage revenue over the prior 30 years without any rate changes. Non-cruise customers benefitted
from static pilotage rates if the vessels remained the same.

Analysis of Requested Rate Change

The current rates use the draft and tonnage rate model, as follows

Rate Minimum Minimum Fee
Draft $§ 1250 12 $ 150
Tonnage $ .028 2,500 GRT 70
Total Minimum Fee $ 220 *

* Port Canaveral has no vessels that meet the minimum fee. The lowest pilotage fee in 2021 was $568.
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BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION
PILOTAGE RATE REVIEW COMMITTEE APPLICATIONS FOR
CHANGE OF RATES OF PILOTAGE AT PORT CANAVERAL

CPA Proposed rate structure exhibits three distinct rate applications, namely:

e Standard rate for vessels with gross registered tons over 10,000
o Small Vessel rate for vessels with gross registered tons less than 10,000
e Deep Draft rate for vessels with a draft 32-feet or deeper

STANDARD <10,000 GRT DRAFT >32°

Rate Min Fee Rate Fee Rate Fee
LOA $1.00 100° $100 $0.75 $75 $1.00 $100*
BEAM $5.00 30’ $150 $3.75 $112.50 $5.00 $150
DRAFT $30.00 18’ $540 $22.50 $405 $35.0 $1,120
TONNAGE | $0.0125 5000 $62.50 $0.010 $50 $0.0125 $62.50*
BOAT FEE $50 $50 $50
TOTAL $902.50 $692.50 $1,482.50
FEE

* The LOA and tonnage for a 32 foot draft vessel will exceed the minimum sizes by a substantial
amount. Assuming an average 32 foot draft vessel was 90,000 GRT and 900 feet LOA, the related
fees would be $1,125 and $900 for tonnage and draft respectively, and the total fee would be $3,295.

Additional Requested Fees

The docking/undocking fee is almost exclusively to cargo, not cruise vessels. The requested fee is
$300, except for $200 for less than 10,000 GRT.

The pilot boat fee of $50 is charged for each handle and shall be dedicated to a pilot boat capital fund,
which will be used exclusively for pilot boat capital expenditures.

Detention of Pilot: An additional 25% of total pilotage fee per hour after the first half hour. A delay in
departure caused by a medical emergency will not be considered a detention. A delay n arrival,
departure, or shift caused by weather conditions inside Port Canaveral and/or the area offshore of Port
Canaveral out to and including the pilot boarding area will not be considered a detention.

Cancellation of Pilot: 25% of total pilotage fee. Cancellation fee will be assessed for vessels on which
the pilotboarding is canceled with less notice than the current pilot call out time.

Shifting fee within the harbor: 75% of total LOA/Beam/Draft/GRT fee, plus applicable
docking/undocking and pilot boat fees.

Dead Ship Movement: 150% of total pilotage fee. A dead ship movement is defined as the movement

of anyvessel equipped with motive power and/or steering capability when such motive power and/or
steering capability is or becomes unavailable for any reason, during any part of the vessel’s transit.
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REPORT OF THE INVESTIGATIVE COMMITTEE DEPARTMENT OF
BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION
PILOTAGE RATE REVIEW COMMITTEE APPLICATIONS FOR
CHANGE OF RATES OF PILOTAGE AT PORT CANAVERAL

Late Payment Charge: 3% of total pilotage fee per month after 30 days from the date of invoice
submission.

Board Governance Fee: 0% to a maximum of 1.5% (as determined by the Florida Board of Pilot
Commissioners) of total pilotage fee. (This fee is not authorized at any other Florida port.)

The draft rate for vessels with a draft of 32 feet or deeper shall increase by 6.0% each year for 9
consecutive years starting on the anniversary date one year following the effective date of this rate.

All other rates and fees shall increase by 2.50% per year for a period of 9 years starting on the
anniversary date one year following the effective date of this rate.

Comments and Analysis

The minimum fee would increase from $220 to $692, but considering the minimum sized vessel that
calls on the port is larger than the minimum, the current lowest pilotage fee would increase from $568
to $2,447, a $1,879 increase or 331 percent increase.

Cargo customers are not a party to the agreement between the pilots and the cruise customers. The
following is an estimate of the 2022 cargo versus the cruise handles; current pilotage revenue; and
pilotage revenue base on the requested rates:

2022 Estimates
Handles Current Requested Increase Percentage
Revenue Revenue (Decrease) Change
Cargo 1,064 $ 791,000 $2,008,000 $1,217,000 153.6%
Cruise 1,716 $7,496,000 $7,521,000 $ 25,000 .03%

Some examples of the requested changes in pilotage fees include the following:

There are 198 small cargo handles that currently average $ 730 pilotage fee. The requested fee would
average $ 2,877, a $ 2,147 increase or 294%.

Two petroleum tankers with 132 handles have current pilotage fees of $2,741. The requested fee would
be $6,338, a $3,597 increase, or 131 %.

The three largest cruise ships provide 344 handles currently paying $13,436 for pilotage. The

requested rates would decrease the fee to $ 11,424, a decrease of $ 2,012, or 15%. These vessels’
gross registered tonnage is 226,000.
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Cruise vessels with GRT of 140,000 or less are not benefitting from the reduced requested rates. The
138,000 GRT Mariner of the Seas (a Royal Caribbean Cruise Line vessel) has a current fee of § 8,444
and the requested fee would be $ $ 8,447, virtually no change. Another RCCL vessel, the 83,000 GRT
Enchantment of the Seas currently pays $ $ 5,293, but would pay $ 6,673, a $ 1,380 increase or 26%.

The cruise customers continue to increase the size of its vessels. Of the 1,716 cruise handles, only 4
handles of less than 90,000 GRT are estimated in 2022 for Port Canaveral.

Canaveral requests the rate structure similar to the recently adopted rates in Miami and Everglades.
Although Canaveral’s requested rates are slightly less than these two, the corc objective in all three
ports is to raise the minimum pilotage fees for the smaller vessels, typically cargo and give a discount
for the larger cruise vessels.

Royal Caribbean’s Oasis of the Seas, a 225,000 GRT cruise vessel and NCL’s Escape, a 165,000 GRT

vessel would pay the following pilotage fees in the following ports:

Miami Port Everglades Port Canaveral Largest
Difference
Qasis / Per Handle $7,243 $6,700 $5,750 $1,493  20.6%
Escape / Per Handle | $5,736 $5,443 $4,732 $1,004 17.5%
CUSTOMER BASE

Cruise traffic is estimated to make up 62 % of total handles in 2022, and 90 % of total pilotage
revenue. The Cruise customers consist in order of highest number of calls are:

Cruise Customers
Name 2022 Estimated Pilotage Fees Fees w/Requested
Handles Rates
Royal Caribbean 580 $ 2,910,000 $ 2,763,000
Carnival 536 2,007,000 2,125,000
Disney 330 1,355,000 1,424,000
MSC * 158 741,000 721,000
Norwegian Cruise Lines 92 434,000 422,000
Other 20 49,000 64,000
Total 1,716 $ 7,496,000 $ 7,521,000

* MSC is Mediterranean Shipping Company
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Cargo traffic makes up 28% of estimated total handles in 2022, and only 6.6 % of revenue. The
following cargo data is presented by type of cargo instead of the customer name.

Cargo Types
2022 Estimated Handles | Pilotage Fees Fees w/Requested Rates
Bulk Cargo 296 $ 330,000 $ 770,000
Petroleum 378 305,000 717,000
Spaceport 300 94,000 343,000
Navy 42 27,000 74,000
Container 48 35,000 104,000
Total 1064 $ 791,000 $ 2,008,000

Pilot Compensation
Our report presents an analysis of average net income per pilot, including all benefits, for:

1. 2018, based on the most recent audited financial statements;

2. 2021 internal financial statements during the COVID pandemic;

3. 2022 projected financial statements with the existing rate structure;
4. 2023 projected financial statements using the requested rates.

The variations in average net income per pilot are driven primarily by the following:

® 2018 revenue of $5,867,000 is projected to increase to $8,287,000 in 2022, due in part to a 30%
increase in handles and also the continued increase in the size of cruise shops calling at the port.

® A 30% increase in handles would increase revenue by $1,768,000, and the remaining increase of
$660,000 is likely due to the increase in size of vessels.

e The number of retirees increased from 3 to 7 from 2018 to 2021 and forward. Retirement expenses
will increase from $665,000 to $2,507,000 from 2018 to 2022, which substantially reduces the
distributable net income for active pilots.

* Although 2022 projected revenue increased $2,420,000 over 2018’s actual revenue, the net
distributable income for active pilots increased by only $256,000. But since net income was
divided by 9 pilots in 2018 versus 6.5 in 2022, the average net income per pilot increased $220,000.

Please refer to pages 12 and 13 for the analysis of average net income per pilot.
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Workload Per Pilot

The number of handles per pilot has fluctuated significantly from 2019 (pre-Covid) to 2021
and 2022, primarily from two factors:

1. Changes in Traffic;
2. Changes in the number of state pilots, with four pilots retiring in 2020 and
reducing the total number of pilots from 9 to 6.5.

For 2022, the estimated number of handles (2,780 total) results in 427 per pilot per year. The
2023 estimate is 388 per year. Given an average handle time of 3.4 hours, a pilot will spend
approximately 1,500 hours per year on actual piloting duty and will spend significant time for
standby and other related duties, which would exceed more than a 2,080 standard work year.
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CERTIFICATION OF INFORMATION PRESENTED IN APPLICATION

Except for the following, the Investigative Committee did not identify any material deficiencies or errors in
the application.

Section 7 of the pilots’” application does not present average net income per pilot in accordance with
61G14-22.005 (2) FAC.

First, the estimated gross pilotage fees are understated in 2022 and 2023, primarily because available
handle data at the time of estimates were made (January 2022) could not foresee the increase in port
traffic from February to May 2022. Upon the Investigative Committee’s inquiry with the pilots, the
pilots provided revised handle and revenue data for 2022 and 2023, and projected 2023 pilotage revenue
with the requested rates. This revised data is presented on Attachment 5.

Second, the operating expenses for 2018, 2019, 2022 and 2023 include certain fringe benefits such as
health insurance, and other expenses such as lobbying and political contributions, not deemed to be
operating expenses of the pilots’ operation. The Investigative Committee prepared revised analyses of
average net income per pilot, including all benefits for 2018, 2021, 2022 and projected with requested
rates for 2023, which is presented on pages 12 and 13.

ANALYSIS OF DATA FOR REQUEST FOR CHANGE OF RATES [CHAPTER 310.151(5) FL.
STATUTES):

The bold type represents the items listed in the above rule. The standard type is information or
comments by the investigative committee.

In determining whether the requested rate change will result in fair, just, and reasonable rates,
the Board shall give primary considerations to the public interest in promoting and maintaining
efficient, reliable, and safe piloting services.

The Board shall also give consideration to the following factors:

1. The public interest in having qualified pilots available to respond promptly to vessels
needing their service.

The pilots are essential to the safe movement of vessels within the pilotage waters of the State. In
addition to their navigation and supervisory skills, they must be knowledgeable oflocal weather,
hazards, silting, speed and direction of currents, and timing and direction oftidal movements.
They provide development of safety and operational guidelines for the port operation and
participate in the process of port and professional regulations. They also develop training plans
for Deputy Pilots, as well as provide such training.
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The public interest in having qualified pilots available to respond promptly Lo vessels
needing their service. (continued)

The pilots serve multiple public interests:

e Protection of life and property

e Protection of the environment and the economic base that is dependent upon it.

e Providing a sense of security that the entire scope of responsibility is assumed only bythe
best qualified pilots available.

There were no interested parties that attended the Investigative Committee’s Public hearing on
April 21, 2022.

The Canaveral Pilots Association (CPA) describes the risk of a port’s viability if a ship’s
operational systems fail, or a pilot’s actions do not meet the state’s statutory intent. Recent large
container ship groundings, the Ever Given in the Suez Canal, and the Ever Forward in
Chesapeake Bay demonstrate the remarkable costs associated with interference of a navigable
waterway. The global maritime community lost approximately $54 billion in total because of the
Ever Given.

“According to a study by Allianz, one of the world's largest insurers, between 23-29

March, each single day the Suez remained blocked could decrease global annual trade

growth by 0.2-0.4% and cost USD $6-10 billion and, or the equivalent of USD $400

million per hour”. New Zealand Foreign Affairs and Trade Office —2021/04/1

Although not fully calculated, news outlet Maryland Matters reported on April 18, 2022, that
Evergreen Shipping has setup a “responsibility fund” of $100 million to address damage claims
due to the Ever Forward grounding — and this for a casualty thal did nol eflectively block the
channel into the Port of Baltimore.

Since the largest cruise ships in the werld call Port Canaveral homeport — and some measure
1,188 feet length overall, there are risks that a steering or machinery casualty could effectively
block Port Canaveral’s entrance channels since those channels measure slightly over 400-feet in

width.

0 PSP001023



Exh. DL-28
Page 166 of 187

REPORT OF THE INVESTIGATIVE COMMITTEE DEPARTMENT OF
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A determination of the average net income of pilots in the port, including the value of all
benefits derived from service as a pilot. For the purposes of the subparagraph, "net income
of pilots" refers to total pilotage fees collected in the port, minus reasonable operating
expenses, divided by the number of licensed and active state pilots within the ports.

Canaveral Pilots’ Association (CPA) has served Port Canaveral consistently for over 50-years
and has not requested nor been granted a rate increase since October of 1991, Despite the fact
that there has been no rate increases in over 30-years, the CPA pilots have been able to maintain
an acceptable level of compensation because of two factors:

. The Canaveral Port Authority has maximized port development specifically toward the
attraction of larger cruise ships; and

2. Cruise ship dimensions, particularly the measured Gross Registered Tons (GRT) for each
ship, has expanded multiple times since 1991.

In accordance with Rule 61G14-22.007, Florida Administrative Code, the pilots have submitted
audited financial statements for 2017 and 2018 and projected financial statements for 2019 and
2020, with the requested rate increase. Port Canaveral, as well as nearly all US ports that
accommodate cruise ships, was basically shut down by the Covid-19 pandemic. From March
2020 until July 2021 no scheduled cruise service existed — incurring significant loses to all
stakeholders in the port. The CPA saw a reduction of revenues of 64.5% during that period, and
gross revenue fell by $3.7 million (46% decrease for 2021 and a $2.7 million decrease in
revenue).

Due to the pandemic’s effects on operations, CPA reduced operational expenses by delaying the
start date of one designated deputy pilot for six months, and CPA elected to not seek any
replacements during the 2021 examination cycle. They have requested one more deputy pilot in
this year’s cycle, potentially having a new deputy engaged in the fall of 2022.

From 2018 until 2020 CPA had a range in the number of pilots from 6.0 to 9.4 F.T.E. Fractional
numbers of pilots exist because deputy pilots progress through 8 levels over 2.7 years, where
each level allows greater ability to contribute to the number of handles the CPA can attain. But
retirements in 2021 dropped the number to 7.0 and 2022 is projected to be 6.5. The 2023
number should be back to 7.0 pilots, with 2 deputy pilots, and planned for 8 to 9 pilots thereafter.
These fluctuations in the number of pilots from 2018 to 2024 have a significant effect on the
determination of average net income per pilot because dividing a net income by 6 or 9 can result
in a 33% variance in average net income.

Also during 2018 — 2022 period, the number of retirees went from 3 to 7, which shifted
significant amounts of distributable net income from active pilots to retirees.

The following two pages presents a summary of revenue and operating expenses based on: 1) the
2018 audited financial statements; 2) the pilots 2021 internal financial statements which agrees
with their 2021 tax return(s); and 3) projected 2022 (estimated by the pilots). We also present
2023 projected revenues and expenses, assuming the requested rate increase is approved and
applied to the 2023 estimated handle data.
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Pilotage Revenue

Uperating Expense
Boatmen Salary
Deputy Compensation *
Health insurance
Payroll Tax & Retirement
Boat Expenses
Professional Fees
Other Operating Expenses
Interest

Pilotage Fees & Dues

Total Operating Expense

Net Distributable Income

Income Allocations *

Retirees

Retirees (%)

Retiree Shares ($)
Retiree Health

Total Retiree Expense

Number of Retirees

Average Retiree Expense

Pilots

Active Pilot Shares (%)
Active Pilot Shares ($)
Health Insurance

Political & Lobbying Expense

Total Active Pilot Income
Number of Active Pilots

Average Total Income Per Pilot

Plus: Imputed Retirement Benefit

Canaveral Pilots Assoclation

Internal Projected
Audit 2018 Statements 2021 2022
S 5,867,000 $ 3,151,000 S 8,287,000
244,000 230,000 255,000
95,000 132,000 231,000
501,000 535,000 521,000
49,000 46,000 52,000
182,000 179,000 240,000
143,000 67,000 133,000
128,000 143,000 154,000
18,000 32,000 30,000
119,000 66,000 215,000
1,479,000 1,430,000 1,831,000
S 4,388,000 $ 1,721,000 $ 6,456,000
13.17% 39.23% 37.02%
578,000 675,000 2,390,000
87,000 130,000 117,000
665,000 805,000 2,507,000
3 7 7
222,000 115,000 358,000
86.83% 60.77% 62.98%
3,810,000 1,046,000 4,066,000
225,000 210,000 210,000
124,000 52,000 155,000
4,159,000 1,308,000 4,431,000
9 7 6.5
S 462,000 S 187,000 S 682,000
50,000 50,000 50,000

* Deputy pilots are paid a fixed amount based upon their progression at a deputy, and are not included in the share

allocations.

12
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Canaveral Pilots Association

2023 Projection

Revenue at Requested Rates
Operating Expenses (2022)

Adjustments to 2022 Expenses:
Add: Additional Dues & Fees
CPl at 8% (1,831,000* @ 8%)
Additional Deputy Comp.
Total Adjustment to Expenses
Total Adjusted Operating Expenses

Net Income

Retirees
Retiree Income (%)
Retiree Expense ($)
Add: Retiree Health

Total Retiree Income
Number of Retirees

Average Income per Retiree

Pilots
Active Pilot Shares (%)
Pilot Income ($)
Add: Health Insurance

Political & Lobby Expense

Total Pilot Income
Number of Active Pilots

Average Income per Pilot

Plus: Imputed Retirement Benefits

13

$ 9,272,000
1,831,000
35,000
146,000
77,000
258,000
2,089,000
S 7,183,000
37%
2,658,000
117,000
117,000
2,775,000
7
$ 396,000
63%
4,525,000
210,000
155,000
365,000
4,890,000
7
S 699,000
$ 50,000
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A determination of the average net income of pilots in the port, including the value of all
benefits derived from service as a pilot. For the purposes of the subparagraph, '"net income
of pilots" refers to total pilotage fees collected in the port, minus reasonable operating
expenses, divided by the number of licensed and active state pilots within the ports.
(continued)

Volatility of Pilot Income

The estimated revenues for 2022 and 2023 and the resulting average income per pilot is much
higher than the pilots expected when the original and amended applications were prepared. They
were also unexpected when FCCA and the pilots agreed with the requested pilotage rates.

Historically, port traffic has averaged approximately 2,100 handles per year, not counting 2020
and the COVID pandemic period. Estimated handles for 2022 of 2,780 are 32% higher than the
recent average of 2,100 and most of the increase was cargo related. The original 2022 estimate
for cargo traffic was 660, which represented 31% of total trattic of 2,144. The revised 2022
estimatc for cargo is 1,064 handles (38% of total), 404 handles higher than expected.

Given the requested rate increase was primarily focused on the smaller cargo vessels and that
cruise revenue would remain unchanged overall, except for new cruise traffic, the estimated
increase in pilotage revenue for cargo alone is $1,450,000. The average pilotage fee for cargo
vessels with the requested rates would be $1,887 compared to $845 at current rates.

The pilots represented that the predictability of cargo traffic may be more volatile than cruise
traffic, which has long term scheduling and booking commitments.

If overall porl tralfic declines 15% to 2,350 handles and revenue declines by $1.2 million, the
average net income for the 6.5 pilots would decline by $184,615.

If the estimated number of handles remains at 2,780 thru 2023 and 2024, and the number of
pilots is increased to 9 (which was the same number of pilots in 2018 with 2,200 handles), then

average net income as projected in 2023 with the requested rates would decline to $543,000,
versus $699,000.

Reasonable operating expenses of pilots.

CPA maintains an appropriate office adjacent to the docks for their pilot boats along Channel
Cut 2. CPA does not employ a dispatcher and does not serve as Harbor Master. The on-watch
pilot assigns pilots to vessels based upon the watch rotation and/or vessel’s restricting
dimensions for deputy pilots.
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Reasonable operating expenses of pilots. (continued)

The co-chairs (two senior state pilots) work alternating watch schedules. When on-watch
rotation they conduct the business of running CPA — providing dispatch services, arranging port
assistance as needed, liaising with the Port Authority, Harbor Master, US Coast Guard staff and
other stakeholders in Port Canaveral. Additionally, much of the bookkeeping is initiated by the
co-chairs. This represents an effective approach to reducing operating expenses.

The operating expenses incurred by the pilots appear to be reasonable and frugal. With six to
eight active pilots and two deputies generating all of the pilotage revenue, the pilots must operate
in a very cost conscience manner in order to maximize net income per pilot. Other relevant
observations include the following:

I. The COVID Pandemic had a devastating effect on piloting operations in 2020 and 2021.
Piloting revenue in 2020 and 2021 was so low that they were barely able to pay fixed
expenses and keep their boatmen employed and health insurance in force. They borrowed
over § 600,000 and received $ 874,820 PPP and other federal assistance to maintain safe and
reliable piloting operations.

2. They have no vehicles for commuting around the port and they are not reimbursed for local
mileage.

3. They employ four full-time and two part-time boatmen and have no administrative or
bookkeeping staff. The boatmen perform all light boat maintenance. Their average full-time
compensation is § 62,500 plus health insurance and a 12.5% pension contribution.

4. They rent a modest double-wide building, docks and land from the port authority.

They have two pilot boats that are well maintained and suitable for the needs of the port. One

boat, bought in 1998 cost $ 438,000 and the other was bought in 2014 for $ 850,000. Both

are single engine so that they can come along side of nuclear subs for pilot transfers.

bt

As discussed in Section 9 of our report the unfunded pension plan for retirees has a 33% cap on
pilotage revenue which is higher than most of the larger Florida ports that are capped at 20% of
revenue. Also the retirees’ health benefits are more generous than other Florida ports. However,
the current, active pilots are contractually obligated for these benefits.
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4. Pilotage rates in other ports.

Table 1: Comparative Pilotage Rates — 2021 Data — Draft/Gross Tonnage Rate Structure (Shaded cells

indicate non-applicability)

Port Paramet | Length | Min. | Beam/ | Min. | Draft/ | Min. | GT/Ton | Min. Eit.

ers /Feet Feet | Feet Feet | Feet Feet Ton Date
Port All
Canaveral | Vessels $12.50 12° $0.028 2,500 10/1/91
(Present)
Palm All
Beach Vessels' $20.00 | 17’ | $0.032 5,000 2/1/22
Fort Pierce | All

Vessels $30.00 20° $0.06 5,000 10/1/21
Key West | All

Vessels $18.40 12 | $0.0345 2,000 4/1/91

LAll vessels assessed a $25 Boat replacement fee, and a $25 harbor control fee ($50 total)

Table 2: Comparative Pilotage Rates — 2021 Data — Tiered Rate Structure
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Port Parameters | Length/ Min. | Beam/ Min. | Draft/Feet | Min.| GT/Ton Min. Eff.
Feet Fect | Feet Feet Feet Ton Date
Jax/Fern. GT < 10K | $0.75 300°| $3.75 50’ $22.50 18" | $12.50 5,000 7/1/20
GT 10K-40K| $1.00 $5.00 $25.00 $15.00
GT 40K> $1.25 $8.50 $30.00 $22.50
GT 40K> $1.50 $12.00 $40.00 $27.50
40>-draft
Port GT <10K $0.78797 | 100” | $3.93984| 30° $23.63906 | 18" | $0.01103 5,000 2/11/19
Everglades | GT 10K> $1.05063 | 100" | $5.25313 $31.51875 | 18° | $0.01471 5,000
Draft 31’> $31.7080
Miami GT <10K $0.7959 $3.9795 $0.0119386 10/1/17
Draft <31’ $23.8772 18’
Draft 31> $26.7979
GT 10K> $1.0612 $5.306 $0.0159181
Draft <31’ $31.8362
Draft 31> $35.7305
Tampa GT <10K $39.27 12° | $0.0713 2,600 2/1/09
GT 10K> $39.27 20" | $0.0713 2,600
Port GT <10K $0.75 100° | $3.75 30° $22.50 18 $0.0100 5,000 TBD
Canaveral | GT>10K | §1.00 $5.00 $30.00 $0.0125
(Proposed) | Draft 32> | $1.00 $5.00 $35.00 $0.0125

Note: Panama City (10/22/19) uses a modified box formula: $29.92/draft-ft (16-feet min); $2.75/Unit — Unit= (L x B)/100
Pensacola uses a box formula to calculate rates as follows: Ship unit=(Length X Width) / 100.
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4. Pilotage rates in other ports. (continued)

Using example vessel’s dimensions for small, medium, large and extra-large vesscls. Note the
investigative team considered type of vessel to not be germane to analysis comparing rates.

Small Vessel = 300-feet LOA, 50-feet Beam, 17-feet draft, 5,000 GRT
Medium Vessel = 600-fect LOA, 80-feet Beam, 25-feet draft, 20,000 GRT
Large Vessel = 750-feet LOA, 105-feet beam, 35-feet draft, 50,000 GRT
Extra-large = 1,000-feet LOA, 150-feet beam, 30-feet draft, and 130,000 GRT

Table 3: Comparison of all Florida Pilotage Fees — with averages

Port Small Medium Large Extra- | H/L+ Average

- Large All Classes
Port $353 $ 872 $1,837 $4,015 -- $1,769
Canaveral

(Present) -

Key West | $486 | S$L,150 | ** | T 82,224
Miami $ 1,078! $2,325 $3,550 $5,031 2 $2,996
Port §913 $2,132 $3,186 $4,697 3 $2,732
Everglades
Port $918 $2,050 $3,175 $4,325 4 $2,617
Canaveral!

(Proposed)
Tampa Bay $1,023 $2,408 $4,939 * -- $2,790
Jacksonville/ $999 $2,043 $4,124 N == $2,387
Fernandina
Panama City $1,021 $2,268 $3,413 *k - $2,234
Palm Beach' $ 600 $1,365 Ack e -- $983

! Fee applied: Miami Port Control Fee $150. Port Canaveral Boat Fee $50. Jacksonville Training Fee and Port
Control $118. Panama City Boat fee $200. Palm Beach Boat and Harbor Control $50. Annual low percentage
increases on fees may not have been computed into total rates due to accounting department delays.

+ Large vessel (130,000 GRT) high to low numerical position

*Tampa and Jacksonville have bridge vertical clearance that is too low

**Channel depth and width restricts this size vessel
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4, Pilotage rates in other ports. (continued)

Table 4 — Port Canaveral Rate increases over time

Increase all rates and fees at 2.5% for 9 ninc ycars after cffective date. Deep draft fee $35/foot will
increase at a separate annual increase of 6.0%. (Clarifying note: Deep draft rates (deeper than
32.0-feet) - LOA, Beam and GRT will incrcasc at 2.5%, and Draft rate will increase at 6%)

Assumed Small Medium Large Extra
Date Large
2022 $918 $2,050 $3,175 $4,325

2025 (3 years) $989 $2,208 $3,559 $4,658

2028 (6 years) 81,065 $2,378 $3,999 $5,015

2031 (9 years) $1,147 $2,560 $4,505 $5,401
% Increase +25% +25% +42% +25%
over 9 years

Table 5: Pilotage Fee per Nautical Mile (NM), Average Handle Time

Port Distance ! NM(S/B Fee for Small Fee Per NM

to Port) Vessel

Tampa 26 to 44 nm $1,023 $28
Ave. 37

Key West 5.0 nm $486 $97

Port Canaveral 7.5 t0 9.8 nm $918 $ 106

Proposed (Ave. 8.65)

Panama City 8.6 nm $1,021 $119

Miami 8.9 nm $1,078 $121

Palm Beach 4.0 nm $600 $ 150

Fernandina 4.6 to 7.3 nm $999 $ 167
Ave. 6.0

Jacksonville 4.6 to 7.3 nm $999 $167
Ave. 6.0

Port Everglades 3.5nm $913 $ 261

! Distance by chart observation by Pilot Consultant
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4. Pilotage rates in other ports. (continued)

Table 6: Revenue per Handle Analysis

Data from FY 2019 (July 2018-June 2019) — Source: BOPC

FloridaPort Revenue Handles | Revenue/ | Avg Handle Revenue/
Handle Hours HandleHour
Tampa $15,184,424 | 4,757 $3,192 7.0 $456
PanamaCity $594,785 485 $1,226 2.5 $490
Palm Beach $2,398,936 [ 2,822 $850 1.5 $567
Jax/Fern $10,178,063 | 3,989 $2,552 4.0 $638
Port Everglades $13,058,324 | 8,718 $1,498 2.0 $749
Port Canaveral $5,945,468 | 2,189 $2,716 3.5 $776
Miami $15,443,783 | 5,693 $2,712 3.0 $904
Pensacola $149,753 83 $1,804 2.5 $922
Key West* $4,236,453 745 $5,687 2.5 $2,275
Table 7: Revenue per Handle Analysis
Data from Partial FY 2022 (July 2021-March 2022) — Source: BOPC
FloridaPort Revenue | Handles | Revenue/ | Avg Handle Revenue/
Handle Hours HandleHour
Tampa $9,941,505 | 3,413 $2,913 7.0 $416
Palm Beach* $1,176,684 | 1,775 $663 1.5 $442
Jax/Fern $7,450,408 | 2,537 $2,937 4.0 $734
Pensacola $98,889 61 $1,621 2.5 $648
PanamaCity $713,631 434 $1,644 2.5 $658
Port Everglades $12,960,603 | 6,115 $2,120 2.0 $749
Port Canaveral $4,648,079 | 1,758 $2,644 35 $755
Miami $11,656,402 | 3,783 $3,081 3.0 $1,027
Key West* $103,054 61 N/A N/A N/A

*Palm Beach had a rate increase in 2021
**Key West was under strict curtailment of cruise service — started up again in April 2022
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4. Pilotage rates in other ports. (continued)

Table 8: Comparison Florida Ports to other Southern US Ports

Port Small Medium Large Extra- Rank

Large

Port Canaveral $918 $2,050 $3,175 $4,325 Lowest

(Proposed)

Port Everglades $913 $2,132 $3,186 $4,697

Miami $1,078 $2,325 $3,550 $5,031

Galveston, TX' $1,851 $2,724 $3,301 $5,006

Freeport, TX $1,521 $2.,147 $2,766 | **

Brunswick, GA $1,020° $1,894 $4,013 $8,833

Charleston, SC $ 805 $2,036 $4,333 $9,587

Savannah, GA $ 829 $2,085 $4.427 $9,766

Mobile, AL $1,167 $2,440 $4,941 $10,274 Ilighcst

! Galveston, TX values based upon CPA Table 2 because rate information
provided deficient.
2 Minimum drafts applied.

Note: Freeport, TX and Associated Branch Pilots of Louisiana not shown

5. The amount of time each pilot spends on actual piloting duty and the amount of
timespent on other essential support services.

Currently, there are seven state pilots and one deputy pilot in training. The level of the deputy
pilot’s training plan allows him or her to handle vessels on their own, but in restricted drafts and
length overall. This means that the deputy pilot is not a reliable factor in determining the revenue
distribution among the pilots.

The odd number of state pilots results in the current watch schedule as presented below:

Pilots
On Off
28 days on-watch 4 3
28 days off-watch 3 4
Total 7 7

The deputy pilot alternates between the two watch schedules, based on traffic, complexity of
scheduled handles, and unpredictable scheduling events.

When a pilot is off-watch, he is on standby for 19 days, and is fully off-watch for 9 days. The
standby is necessary because a 3 day weekend could bring in 5 to 6 cruise ships per day, which is
10 to 12 handles. The pilots are responsible for providing all of the piloting needs of the port and
they must be available to allow their customers to adhere to the very strict time schedules.
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The amount of time each pilot spends on actual piloting duty and the amount of timespent
on other essential support services. (continued)

Given the 2,780 handles for 2022, the 6.5 state pilots would handle 427 vessels per year (without
counting the deputy — who may be just observing a pilot, as part of his training).

If a pilot is on-watch 182 days (without counting standby days), he will handle, on average, 2.2
handles per day on-watch. Some days could be 0 to 1 and weekends could be 2 to 4.

The handle time ranges from 2.4 to 4.0 hours. The cruise vessels take longer, especially
incoming because they are larger and take longer to maneuver and line-up to enter the channel,
after they provide a safe leeward side for the pilots to board.

Since cruise vessels are 62% of all handles, the weighted average handle time is 3.4 hours.
Given the average handle time of times and the number of handles per pilot per year, this results
in approximately 1,451 actual handle hours per year for each pilot.

When the pilot reaches the desired number of state pilots of 8, the average handle hours are
reduced to 1200 hours.

Pilot Associations in Florida usually employ shoreside personnel, often called dispatchers, to
handle administrative duties such as receiving pilot orders from agents, assigning pilots to jobs,
contacting tugs and line handlers, notifying port authorities, and providing details to accounting
service providers. In Port Canaveral, the only employees are the boatmen. The Port provides a
harbor master to coordinate incoming and outgoing traffic and other such duties. All other
administrative duties, such as billing customers, collecting revenue, procuring goods and services
and paying bills, and maintaining the books and records ( among many other responsibilities) are
performed primarily by two pilots. These duties are routinely handled by the pilots while on
rotation between jobs, or off watch. They are each compensated $ 36,000 per year, in addition to
their percentage share of pilot compensation. In our determination of average net income per
pilot, we have added this compensation back to net income and divided the adjusted net income
by all pilots. In addition to direct pilot business, the pilots have a maritime community
responsibility to attend routine meetings involving the Canaveral Port Authority, the US Navy,
the US Army Corps of Engineers, the US Coast Guard and the Florida Harbor Pilots Association.
Captain Borgie is currently the president of that association. Additionally, there are emergency
meetings when threatening weather such as hurricanes require special planning and vessel
movements. Then, after the storm passes, they must work additional hours to return the maritime
domain to routine operations, as well as surveying channels to detect any weather induced
shoaling.

21 PSP001034



Exh. DL-28
Page 177 of 187

REPORT OF THE INVESTIGATIVE COMMITTEE DEPARTMENT OF
BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION
PILOTAGE RATE REVIEW COMMITTEE APPLICATIONS FOR CHANGE
OF RATES OF PILOTAGE AT PORT CANAVERAL

The prevailing compensation available to individuals in other maritime services of
comparable professional skill and standing.

Comparable maritime employment for harbor pilots is the master (captain) of a US registered
vessel in ocean foreign service. In 2018 the Port Everglades rate hearing disclosed that these ship
masters were compensated on average $325,000 annually. Also, significant to mention, it was
determined the average compensation of a US port state-licensed harbor pilot earned
approximately $580,000 per year.

The prevailing compensation of US pilots and Florida pilots, compared to other comparable
maritime professions is not a finite amount, as it rests with the judgment of the Pilotage Rate
Review Committee. Previous Rate Review Boards and Committees have established a floor of base
compensation for Florida pilots equal to or greater than US flagged senior captains.

Testimony at previous Rate Review Hearings indicated compensation for US captains ranging from
$220,000 to $325,000. Common compensation packages for such captains can differ signiticantly
with pilots. Ship captains typically work large blocks of time at sea and then are off duty, as much
as six months-on and six months-off. Their fringe benefits are usually generous and their pension
plans are funded versus the unfunded pension plans of pilot organizations. The reduction in port
traffic and pilotage revenue during the COVID pandemic has significantly reduced pilot retirement
benefits for some pilot organizations, especially in Florida with its large percentage of cruise ship
traffic. This reduction has demonstrated the stark differences between a funded and unfunded
pension plan.

Captain George Quick, Vice President of Master Mates and Pilots has provided testimony at many
of the previous rate hearings from 2014 to 2018 and testified that US pilots earned an average of
above $410,000 to $498,000. Another maritime consultani, Dibner Martine Associates, LLC,
provided testimony at the 2014 Miami hearing and a tabulation of pilot net income for 25 US ports,
indicating a range of $260,000 to $687,000 and an average of $500,000. Adjusting the $500,000
average in 2018 to the change in the CPI of approximately 15%, would result in an average income

of $575,000.

The impact rate change may have in individual pilot compensation and whether suchchange
will lead to a shortage of licensed state pilots, certified deputy pilots, or qualified pilot
applicants.

CPA has a good history of attracting deputy pilot applications for examination. In 2022 both
Port Canaveral and Port Everglades requested one-pilot each that would be delivered through the
2022 examination cycle. This cycle begins in the fall, cuts off applications in December, BOPC
approval comes in January or February, and examination in March. Grading and challenges to
the exam extends until July — and the DBPR Secretary may make a selection in August.
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The impact rate change may have in individual pilot compensation and whether suchchange
will lead to a shortage of licensed state pilots, certified deputy pilots, or qualified pilot
applicants. (continued)

The problem with the Deputy Pilot (DP) examination cycle, besides its length, is it is a
challenging exam and has restrictions in place to avoid casual participation. Because of this,
often a qualified mariner is approved to sit, but because of work schedule, or a sense that his/her
preparation is lacking, they simply skip taking the exam. Of note, a candidate that fails two
consecutive DP exams must sit out one year. It is not uncommon for a candidate to sit two or
three times before achieving a passing grade — and then they must contend with the scoring
competition to make it into the top five candidates, which the Secretary will select from.
Usually, the top score candidate is selected, but Florida statutes make it clear that gender and
minority status may be considered.

Table AAA below provides insight into the applications for all Florida ports that have harbor
pilots. The column labelled “apps” are the raw applications received by the Board of Pilot
Commissioners. The column “test” indicates the number of candidates that took the
examination, and column “pass” shows the final number of candidates that passed the exam —
where passing grade is 85%

One element of the application process that might need explanation is between the raw
applications and the Board approval to sit for the exam. Occasionally applications are deemed
ineligible due to not meeting qualifications — usually shortage of sea service or too low a US
Coast Guard license level. These circumstances are usually attributed to the applicant not
understanding the minimum requirements.

Within the table, the only time all test takers passed the exam was in Key West in 2017. A look
at the pass numbers makes it clear that 50-60% pass rate would be an exceptional year. Also, it
1s worthy to note that the major ports of Miami, Port Everglades, Port Canaveral and Tampa
enjoy the best attraction for new Deputy Pilots. This can be attributed to the compensation
offered by the Pilot Associations.

23 PSP001036



Exh. DL-28
Page 179 of 187

REPQORT OF THE INVESTIGATIVE COMMITTEE DEPARTMENT OF

BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION
PILOTAGE RATE REVIEW COMMITTEE APPLICATIONS FOR CHANGE

OF RATES OF PILOTAGE AT PORT CANAVERAL
7. The impact rate change may have in individual pilot compensation and whether suchchange
will lead to a shortage of licensed state pilots, certified deputy pilots, or qualified pilot
applicants. (continued)

Table 9: Deputy Pilot applications, tests and pass rates for the years 2017 to 2022.

Application data based upon applications (Apps) reviewed by the Pilot Consultant. Data
on Tests and Pass rates provided by the Bureau of Education and Testing May 2022.

2017 2018 2019

Apps | Test | Pass | Apps | Test | Pass | Apps | Test | Pass
Jacksonville
Port Canaveral 19 9 5 17 12 6
Palm Beach 8 7 4 10 4
Port Everglades 19 12 8 19 12 7
Miami 24 14
Key West 7 5
Tampa Bay 21 9 3 22 15 5 21 14 7
Panama City 5 4 4
Pensacola 4 1 0

2020 2021 2022%*

Apps | Test | Pass | Apps | Test | Pass | Apps | Test | Pass
Jacksonviiie
Port Canaveral 19 9 4 20 10 5
Palm Beach 22 12 4
Port Everglades 19 13 6 30 17 7
Miami
Key West
Tampa Bay 13 10 4 21 TBD | TBD
Panama City
Pensacola 11 7 1

*Scores remain unofficial until challenges heard
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Projected changes in vessel traffic.

Port Canaveral is primarily dedicated towards cruise ship traffic. In addition to the US Naval
Submarine Base in the port, cargo traffic includes petroleum tankers and barges, and general
cargo such as lumber. Although investment in container ship infrastructure was made in recent
years, the only container ship operator ceased operations in 2018 and the roll-on, roll-off (car
carriers) ceased operations in 2019.

Port Canaveral is near capacity on cruise ship calls on four out of seven days — but there are

available berths to handle more in the low service days. Port Canaveral has limited cargo pier
capacity. There is no waterside real estate available for expanding cargo operations at this time.

Traffic for 2019, 2020 and 2021 is presented below:

Number of Handles
2019 2200
2020 1135
2021 1606

The pilots estimated traffic in the amended application and estimates updated in May 2022 and
are as follows:

Estimated Number of Updated Number
Handles of Handles

2022 2335 2780

2023 2235 2720

The amended application dated March 8, 2022, could only base their estimate for 2022 and
2023 traffic based upon January 2022 actual traffic. By May 20, 2022, traffic for January
through April 2022, reported to the Department totaled 944. By annualizing this amount, the
estimate for 2022 could be as high as 2,832. Given this current data, the pilots’ revised their
2022 and 2023 handle estimates, as above.

These variances had a substantial effect on our projected revenue, net income and average net
income per pilot for 2022 and 2023, as presented on pages 12 and 13.
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Cost of retirement and fringe benefit plans.
EMPLOYEES

The pilots employ four full-time boatmen that are covered under the group health insurance plan
and the pension pian. Except for two part-time boatmen, that are called upon only as needed and
do not have any fringe benefits, there are no other employees. The pilots also cover the health
insurance premiums for the employees’ dependents. The policy doubles for workers
compensation coverage and personal health coverage, which is underwritten by Masters, Mates,
and Pilots Health and Benefit Plan. Given the dual coverage, the premiums are higher than most
traditional hecalth plans. The total premium for the four boatmen in 2022 is $134,736, or $33,368
per employee.

The pilots contribute 12.5% of employee compensation to the pension plan. Pilots can
voluntarily contribute to the plan but the amount comes from their individual shares of
compensation.

ACTIVE AND RETIRED PILOTS HEALTH BENEFITS

The pilots also cover each pilot and their dependents with the above health benefit plan. The
premiums, regardless of each pilots’ age or number of dependents is considered as a business
expense in the determination of net income, before income distributions are made. The average
annual premiums in 2022 for the 6.5 full pilots is $ 32,000.

UNFUNDED PENSION PLAN

There is no funded retirement plan although the pilots can make qualified deferrals into the
Association’s pension plan. The unfunded retirement plan has the following attributes:

1. There is a 33.3% cap on pilotage revenue for the aggregate benefits payable in any year.

2. Pilots must serve at least 12 years to earn pension benefits.

3. Pilots earn 2% of annual net income for each year of service, up to a maximum of 25 years,
or 50% of a full pilot’s full share of net income.

4. Pilots must reach age 50 to retire and receive benefits.

5. Retirees receive health insurance for life, including dependents, under the group health plan
discussed above. Once they are Medicare eligible they receive Medicare supplemental
coverage under the same policy.

6. Retirees and their spouses receive a reimbursement for their Medicare premium that is
deducted from their respective Social Security income. Depending upon the retiree’s income,
this premium can range from $1,800 to $6,200 per year. In 2022 total retiree health premiums
and Medicare reimbursements are estimated to total $117,180, or $16,740 average per retiree.
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Cost of retirement and fringe benefit plans. (continued)

The unfunded pension is based on net income, so that in 2020 and 2021, when the COVID
Pandemic resulted in very low net income, very little was owed to the retirees for pension
expenses, for this benefit. However, the health insurance benefits were not based on net income
and the binding obligation was either paid or accrued as a liability until funds were available.

The following schedule presents the total paid to retired pilots in 2018, 2021 and estimated for
2022,

2018 2021 2022
$665,000 $805,000 $3,280,000
Number of retirees 3 7 7
Average per retiree $222.,000 $115,000 $358,000

Analysis of Valuation of Pension Plan

Since the retiree pension plan is unfunded and paid from current piloting operations, we estimate
the imputed future benefit the current pilots earn, year by year until they retire.

The valuation of the pension plan benefit is a highly judgmental issue and should be analyzed by
a qualified actuary in order to determine the imputed benefit to be included in total pilot income.
Recognizing a multitude of risks and uncertainty involved in the valuation of this benefit, the
following simplified analysis is presented for the Rate Review Committee’s consideration:

Assumption 1

Assume an estimated annual pension of $245,000, which is the maximum benefit the IRS allows
a defined benefit plan to make actuarially determined annual contributions.

Assumption 2

The IRS maximum annual contribution to 401K defined contribution plan for 2022 is $61,000.

Assumption 3

Assume the annual funding limit of $61,000 (which changes from year to year, based on changes
in the maximum targeted benefit amount) is the amount required to accumulate funds over a
normal employment period to pay out the maximum allowable future benefit ($245,000) for a

defined benefit plan.
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Cost of retircment and fringe benefit plans. (continued)

Assumption 4

The following negative and positive factors present some of the most significant variables which
could have a negative or positive effect on the valuation of the pension/consulting benefit:

Negative Factors

1. If a pilot voluntarily resigns before he completes 10 years service, he forfeits any future
benefits.

2. Two factors in the plan document can materially limit the annual retirement benefit:

a. The 33% aggregate of total pilot revenue
b. The 50% limit on active pilots’ compensation

3. Many other business and economic factors could affect the future benefit, since it is not
funded. Port traffic, legislative changes, and rate setting events, could have a material impact
on such valuations.

4. The retiree has no residual equity in the unfunded plan. Upon death of the retired pilot or the
spouse, benefits cease. Thercfore, in the example of how much needs to be accumulated to
pay the assumed benefits for 20 to 25 years (above), a premature death with no residual value
would result in a much lower estimate

Positive Factors

The pilots’ income has been relatively stable over the last 30 years (as they have historically),
which means that the $245,000, assumed flat benefit, may increase over time, which would
undervalue our previous computation.

CONCLUSION

Based on the above assumptions, our estimate of the value of the unfunded pension benefit is
estimated to range between $50,000 and $60,000. Given all factors, we will use the lowest
estimate of $50,000 for inclusion of average income per pilot, including all benefits.

BUY-IN/BUY-OUT

The pilots have two entities in their organization structure. Canaveral Pilots Association (CPA) is
a partnership and Harbor Services, Inc, (HSI) is a Sub Chapter S Corporation. HIS is the
primary operating entity that owns the pilot boats and other equipment and pays most of the
operating expenses of the piloting function.

The buy-in and buy-out for HSI is based on book value measured on the tax basis of accounting.
The book value is currently, almost zero, so the buy-in or buy-out for HIS is minimal. The buy-in
for the CPA entity is based on a deferred income arrangement whereas new pilots give up 50%
of a full pilot share of income for four years and afterwards they earn a full share. The buy-in by
the incoming pilots is allocated to the active pilots and the retirees until the four year buy-in is
completed.
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Cost of retirement and fringe benefit plans. (continued)

The current retiree shares range from .35 to .50 of a full (1.0) pilot’s share. For example, the
retirees with the .50 share are paid half of an active pilot’s income distribution. In 2022, there are
7 retirees and their combined shares total 3.012, while the six active pilots’ shares total 5. 125, a
total of 8.137 shares. This percentage allocation based on those shares is 62.98 % for active
pilots and 37.02 % for the retirees. In addition to the share allocation, the retirees receive health
Insurance and the Medicare tax reimbursement,

Physical risks inherent in piloting

The vessels calling at Port Canaveral are predominantly cruise ships, although petroleum tankers
and barges are numerous. The most dangerous part of the harbor pilot’s job is boarding and
disembarking the vessel. Because 85% of vessels calling Port Canaveral are over 10,000 gross
registered tons (GRT), and 77% of those vessels are above 90,000 GRT the boarding and
disembarking process is to a very stable platform — and usually involves a very short pilot
ladder to a sideport near the ship’s waterline. This is not to suggest there is no risk in boarding
or disembarking. Pilot’s falling off the ladder, or the ladder itself failing can lead to serious
injury or death.

Boarding and disembarking a submarine is more dangerous because the hull of a submarine is
round and often has a slick surface that require sailors to assist and even catch the pilot as he
makes the transfer.

According to the Maritime Industry Guide web site, pilots must be aware of death or injury
primarily when falling off the pilot ladder while boarding or disembarking. Such accidents result
in severe danger by falling onto the deck of the pilot boat, or falling between ship and the pilot
boat which results in being struck by one of them, or also falling into the sea may result in

CPA’s application cites specific examples of recent accidents to harbor pilots that resulted in
death. This fact, often occurring to pilots that they have made acquaintance, weights on the
mind of every pilot when they climb a pilot ladder.

Special characteristics, dangers and risks of port.

Port Canaveral is assessed from the Atlantic Ocean north of the Straits of Florida. Ships
approach the inbound channel from distances up to three miles out depending upon the size or
function of the ship or submarine. The channels are all dredged cuts, meaning that they must be
maintained at project depths periodically by the US Army Corps of Engineers. The fact that a
channel may silt in along the edges may make the project width less than the claimed
dimensions, thus creating a grounding risk for the pilots.
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Special characteristics, dangers and risks of port. (continued)

Port Canaveral is basically an east to west channel with three dredged mooring notches, where
the easternmost is the US Naval Submarine Base, the middle notch is primarily used by cargo
ships, and the westernmost notch is mainly cruise ship berths. The port does have a western
entrance for small vessels [rou the Banana River via a lock system. The Banana River has many
recreational boat marinas, and hundreds of moorings and private docks. These recreational
vessels often traverse Port Canaveral to access the Atlantic Ocean and return, This attracts a
significant amount of recreational boat traffic, many operators of which have limited knowledge
of the Rules of the Road and collision avoidance techniques. The pilots are forced to cope with
strict channel limits while navigating ships over 1,000 feet in length while also contending with
smaller craft that often interfere with the pilot’s voyage plan.

Lengths and widths of various “Pilotage Waters’ channels:

As stated above, the channels in Port Canaveral are maintained to project limits. These
dimensional limits (iength and width) have been static for many, many years, although the depths
have been increased to accommodate larger vessels. So, it is noteworthy that as channels have
remained the same size, ships have not. The “Oasis” class Royal Caribbean Cruise line ship
measures 1,188-feet length overall, a beam of 154-feet, and draft of 31-feet. The main channels
in Port Canaveral are only 400-feet wide, meaning the large cruise ships are utilizing 38%
percent of the available width, not including crab angels due to the wind effect on the ship. Take
these factors, and other vessel traffic, and the risks associated with transits into or out of Port
Canaveral have a high risk factor.

Depths of various “Pilotage Waters” channels:

Probably the biggest concern for piloting into Port Canaveral is the available depth of water.
Most channels are maintained between 43-feet and 44-feet — but sections exist in the main channel
and pier facilities that are only 35-feet. The depths, representative at mean low water, can be
impacted by high winds over sustained periods — for exampie a wesierly wind will “push” water
out of the port, reducing the available depth.

List of unusual hazards to navigation:

Port Canaveral is the home of a US Naval Submarine Base — and these large ballistic missile
subs present some unique shiphandling characteristics that the pilots must leamn.

Also, the port is immediately adjacent to Cape Canaveral’s Kennedy Space Center where rocket
launches are routinely conducted. This requires that the pilot be knowledgeable about down-
range danger areas, but also the schedule of impending launches to brief vessel masters entering
or departing. Just last winter the Harmony of the Seas ignored informational broadcasts and
violated a down-range limit, incurring the cancellation of a Space X launch.
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Special characteristics, dangers and risks of port. (continued)

The Space Center, particularly the Space X operations, have increased port traffic by recovering
rockets on barges that are brought into the port for transfer back to the Space Center. Bringing a
barge with a rocket vertically loaded into port attracts recreational boater traffic as they want to
catch a view.

List “Weather Related” hazards to navigation:

Although the weather in Port Canaveral is considered semi-tropical, it is still subject to severe
weather such as tropical storms or hurricanes. But often a high pressure area creates a strong
northernly wind (coming from the north, blowing south) that can generate large offshore ground
swells the make pilot boarding or disembarking more dangerous.

Other relevant information:
Pilot Boats:

CPA owns and operates two pilot boats. Pilot Boat No. 2, built in 1998, is approaching its end-
of- service-life, estimated to be in 2025. Pilot Boat No. 3, built in 2014 is projected to last until
about 2040, but will need to have new engines installed about every 6-7 years. When Pilot Boat
No. 3 was built for a cost of $850,000 — and estimated projections based upon other pilot
organizations is that the replacement of Pilot Boat No. 2 will be upwards to $2 million. CPA has
proposed a $50 per handle “Pilot Boat Re-capitalization” fee. Projected vessel handles in 2022
are 2,780, so this fund may begin with about $139,000 — and projected over the ten-year life of
this rate proposal, can accrue $1.39 million.

If a Pilot Boat goes out of service for repairs, CPA hires local tugs or appropriate small vessels to
sustain their 24/7 operations.

CPA employs only four pilot boat operators. If needed due to illness or injury, they hire contract
boat operators who are paid per diem but get no contributions to a retirement fund or medical
benefits.

Harbor Assist Tugs:

According to the US Coat Pilot, Volume 4, Port Canaveral has three harbor assist tugs — two with
conventional propulsion system, and one with a tractor drive. The tugs are considered adequate
for the needs of the port. Harbor assist tugs are rarely used for any cruise ship, even the largest, as
they have complex maneuvering technologies.
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The Board may take into consideration the consumer price index or any other comparable
economic indicator when fixing rates of pilotage; however, because the Consumer Price
Index or such other comparable economic indicator is primarily related to net income
rather than rates, the Board shall not use it as the sole factor infixing rates of pilotage.

The previous twelve months have contributed to some of the highest increases in inflation and
the CPI in several decades. From April 2021 to April 2022, the CPI has increased 8.3%.

From 1991 to 2022, the CPI increased from 135.2 to 289.1, or 113.8%. Applying the change in
the CPI to pilotage rates is much more relevant to the cargo vessels, where the size of vessels has
not increased as they would have with cruise vessels.

For example, applying the change in the CPI to the current minimum fee of $220 would generate
$470. There are no current vessels which meet the current minimum draft and tonnage to
produce a minimum fee. However, the smallest vessel in 2021 with a pilotage fee of $568 would
have a pilulage fee of $692 with the requested rates. Applying the change in CPI to the existing
fee of $568 would generate $1,214, which is $422 more than the requested pilotage fee of $692.

Cruise vessels have increased their size so much since 1991, that the application of the change in
CPI since 1991 to the existing rates is not meaningful. This point is not intended to suggest that
pilotage fees have not increased dramatically on cruise vessels (much more than the CPI) but to
recognize the other factors, such as: technical requirements of a pilot, complexity of larger
vessels; risks and responsibilities; and increased handle time.
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